
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Tuesday, December 28, 2021 @ 6:00 p.m.  
GoToMeeting 


Present:  
Schumacher (joined at 6:20 pm), Reeves, Engelberger, Doom, Mayor Swadley, Hirsch 


Absent Excused:  
Neigum 


Also Present:  
Finance Director Friedl, Planning Director Scheel, Parks and Recreation Director Glynn 


Call to Order:  
Reeves called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m.  


Communications: 


None.  


Reports: 


 November Treasurer’s Report 
 December 15, 2021 Contingency Report 
 November 30, 2021 Financial Statements 
 November 30, 2021 YTD CIP Report 
 


Approval of the December 14, 2021 Finance Committee Minutes  
Motion by Doom, second by Engelberger to approve the December 14, 2021 minutes. Motion 
carried 5-0. 


 
Discussion and possible action regarding Contract 6-2021 for the Yahara River Pedestrian 
Bridge and River Walk Project and required CIP Budget amendments  


Director Scheel provided a summary of the information included in the bid documents.  
 
Motion by Hirsch to recommend approval of the requested amendments to the 2021 and 2022 
CIP Budgets, project contingency of ten percent and acceptance of Contract 6-2021 with Janke 
General Contractors, Inc. for the base bid and bid alternative amounts totaling $1,319,262, 
second by Doom. Motion carried 5-0 with Schumacher abstaining. 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding City Council pay changes 
 
Based on the information presented, Hirsch believes Council wages should be increased to 
fall more in line with surrounding municipalities. 
 







Reeves noted the other personnel needs for other City departments and feels Council pay 
increases should not be considered until other staffing needs are met. She also noted that 
Stoughton is the only municipality with a full-time mayor, which might impact how 
Stoughton is compared to its neighbors. She further noted that Stoughton has a much larger 
Council than most municipalities in the area and any increase would have a larger impact on 
the City’s budget. 
 
Schumacher agreed with the statements made by Reeves.  
 
Hirsch reiterated the fact that the work done by the Council is important and demanding and 
higher pay could make running for office more attractive and be more inclusionary. 
 
The Finance Committee would like to see a few different scenarios highlighting how potential 
step pay increases could impact future budgets. They would also like to see the number of 
Council/Board and Committee meetings surrounding municipalities require for their 
governing body members. Additional information summarizing how Councils/Boards and 
mayors function when there is a City Administrator was requested as well. This information 
will be brought back for consideration at a future Finance Committee meeting.  
 
Adjournment:  
Motion by Reeves, second by Engelberger to adjourn at 6:55 p.m. Motion carried 6-0. 


Respectfully Submitted,  


Jamin Friedl, Finance Director  


 







FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON  
Tuesday, January 25, 2022, 6:00 P.M.  
This is a teleconference meeting via GoToMeeting  
Access with a computer, tablet or smartphone via GoToMeeting -  
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/495457277  
You may also join by phone using dial-in number 1 866 899 4679  
Access code 495-457-277  
Brett Schumacher (Chair), Lisa Reeves (Vice Chair), Ozzie Doom, Regina Hirsch, Joey Neigum and Mayor Tim 
Swadley  
 
Absent- Michael Engelberger 
Guest-Rodney Scheel, David Ferris 
 
Call to Order-Alder Schumacher called meeting to order at 6:00 
Communications- Mayor Swadley reported Interim Finance Director started today, replacement 
interviews occurred Monday and will resume Wednesday. 
 
Reports-none, should have numbers in February 
 
Approval of the January 11, 2022 Finance Committee Minutes 
Motion to approve by Reeves seconded by Doom  


Carried Unanimous 


Initial Resolution Authorizing $2,815,000 General Obligation Bonds for Street Improvement Projects  
Motion to approve by Reeves seconded by Hirsch 


Carried Unanimous 


Initial Resolution Authorizing $520,000 General Obligation Bonds for Sewerage Projects  
Motion to approve by Hirsch seconded by Reeves 


Carried Unanimous 


Initial Resolution Authorizing $360,000 General Obligation Bonds for Equipment of the Fire 
Department  
Motion to approve by Doom seconded by Reeves 


Carried Unanimous 


Initial Resolution Authorizing $400,000 General Obligation Bonds for Parks and Public Grounds 
Projects 


Motion to approve by Reeves seconded by Neigum 


Carried Unanimous 


Initial Resolution Authorizing $225,000 General Obligation Bonds for River Park Project  
Motion to approve by Doom seconded by Hirsch 


Carried Unanimous 







Initial Resolution Authorizing $700,000 General Obligation Bonds for Community Development 
Projects in Tax Incremental District No. 8  
 
Motion to approve by Reeves seconded by Hirsch 


Carried Unanimous 


Resolution Directing Publication of Notice to Electors Relating to Bond Issues  
 
Motion to approve by Reeves seconded by Doom 


Carried Unanimous 


 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
Future Treatment of Costs Eligible for Special Assessments  
 
Council Pay Adjustments  
 
Adjourn 
Motion to approve by Neigum seconded by Reeves 


Carried Unanimous at 6:36 


 







FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON  
Tuesday, February 22, 2022, 6:00 P.M.  
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.  
https://meet.goto.com/783605613  
 
Brett Schumacher (Chair), Lisa Reeves (Vice Chair), Ozzie Doom, Regina Hirsch, and Mayor Tim 
Swadley  
Absent- Joey Neigum, Michael Engelberger 
Guest-Rodney Scheel, Dan Glynn 
 
Call to Order-Alder Schumacher called meeting to order at 6:03 
Communications- none 
Reports-question regarding Tru Hotel 14k expense 
 
Approval of the February 8, 2022 Finance Committee Minutes 
Motion to approve February 8, 2022 Finance Committee Minutes by Doom seconded by Reeves 


Motion carried unanimously 


51 Underpass Resolution-Director Scheel provided overview 
Motion to approve 51 Underpass Resolution by Hirsch seconded by Doom 


Motion carried unanimously 


JoAnn Grassman, Grand Inspired - Excessive Assessment-Mayor Swadley gave an overview 
No action taken, requested City Attorney be present to discuss at next meeting 
 
Preliminary Resolution Declaring Intent to Exercise Special Assessment Powers for 2022 Street 
and Sidewalk Projects-Director Scheel provided overview 
Motion to Preliminary Resolution Declaring Intent to Exercise Special Assessment Powers for 
2022 Street and Sidewalk Projects by Doom seconded by Reeves  


Motion carried unanimously 


R – 2022 - Authorizing and directing the Director of Planning & Development to prepare and 
submit a Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Grant for Runoff Management. 
(Hydrodynamic Separator) -Director Scheel provided overview 


Motion to Authorizing and directing the Director of Planning & Development to prepare and 
submit a Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Grant for Runoff Management by 
Hirsch seconded by Doom 


Motion carried unanimously 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
 
JoAnn Grassman, Grand Inspired - Excessive Assessment  
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation State/Municipal Financial Agreement for a State-Led Highway Project.  
Future Treatment of Costs Eligible for Special Assessments 
Council Pay Adjustments 
Jefferson St. Bridge 
 
Adjourn 
Motion to approve by Doom seconded by Reeves 


Carried Unanimous at 6:42 























REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES  
Wednesday, September 8, 2021   6:00 p.m. 
Remote GoToMeeting  
 
Present: Dale Reeves, Regina Hirsch, Ozzie Doom, Denise Duranczyk, Lukas Trow, Pete 
Manley 
 
Absent and excused:  Roger Springman 
 
Others present:  Finance Director Friedl, Curt Brink, Gary Becker, Mayor Swadley 
 
Call to order:  Reeves called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Communications: 
 
Trow met with Springman following the last RDA meeting to discuss the website and informed 
the group that some changes/updates will be occurring and that he will be asking for some 
feedback from the members. 
 
Public Comments: 
 
None.  
 
Approval of minutes from August 19, 2021: 
 
Motion by Duranczyk to approve the August 19th minutes, second by Trow. Motion carried 6-0.  
 
Chair Report 
 
Reeves informed the members that he and the Mayor met with representatives from the 
Chamber and that the Chamber believes there is a benefit to the RDA being a member. This will 
be brought forth to the next meeting for discussion and possible action.   


  
New Business 
 


a. Discussion and possible action regarding historical commemorations in the Riverfront 
Development area in anticipation of the City of Stoughton’s 175th anniversary  


 
Reeves discussed with the Chamber and noted the Historical Commemorative 
Committee will be meeting on September 20th. This item will be brought back to the 
next RDA meeting to report the results of that meeting. 
 
The group also discussed utilizing an application to create walking tours of Stoughton 
and the Riverfront Development Area. 


 
b. Discussion and possible action regarding the WEDC Main Street Bounceback Program 


 
Becker provided a summary of the program and recommended that the RDA partner 
with the Chamber to take advantage of this program. One recommendation was to send 







out a brochure with the RDA and Chamber logos to let businesses know this 
opportunity exists. The group also discussed existing businesses they are aware of that 
could be notified of this program in the meantime.  
 


Old Business 
 


a. Discussion and possible action regarding the draft Redevelopment Plan, plans for East 
Main Street/Depot Hill and potential approaches towards promoting the redevelopment 
of the area and potential public improvements that may be needed 
 
A suggestion was made to circulate a survey to begin gathering and disseminating 
information as it relates to redeveloping this area. Becker provided some draft language 
of what the introduction to this document might look like. Another suggestion was made 
to ask whether or not the property owners plan to sell their property in the near future. 
Duranczyk requested a copy of the survey to review prior to moving forward. She also 
asked if the City is positioned/planning to make a financial investment in this area as 
well. Another recommendation was made to review the zoning in this area to see if any 
changes need to be made. Other suggestions to be included in the survey were also 
made and the draft document will be disseminated at a future meeting for further 
discussion.  


 
b. Discussion and possible action regarding potential changes to the verbiage in the 


Agreement to Undertake Development between City of Stoughton Redevelopment 
Authority, the City of Stoughton, and Stoughton Riverfront Development, LLC as it 
relates to the Public Improvements definition and the Municipal Revenue Obligation 
(MRO) 
 
Friedl provided a summary of the discussions held between City staff and Curt Brink’s 
team over the last two weeks and the changes to the structure of the MRO being 
proposed. 
 
The RDA agreed to allow City staff the latitude to move the final language to the Finance 
Committee for approval without bringing the document back to the RDA for approval.  
 


Future Agenda Items: 
- Chamber Membership 
- 175th Anniversary Commemorations 
- East Main Street/Depot Hill Survey 
- Future Riverfront Phase I approvals 
- RDA Website Updates 


 
Adjourn: 
Motion by Trow to adjourn the meeting, second by Doom. Meeting adjourned at 7:17 p.m. 
 







REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES  
Wednesday, October 13, 2021   6:00 p.m. 
Remote GoToMeeting  
 
Present: Dale Reeves, Ozzie Doom, Denise Duranczyk, Lukas Trow, Roger Springman 
 
Absent and excused:  Regina Hirsch, Pete Manley 
 
Others present:  Finance Director Friedl, Gary Becker, Mayor Swadley 
 
Call to order:  Reeves called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Communications: 
 
None. 
 
Public Comments: 
 
None.  
 
Approval of minutes from September 19, 2021: 
 
Motion by Duranczyk to approve the September 8th minutes, second by Trow. Motion carried 4-
0 with Springman abstaining.  
 
Chair Report 
 
None.   


  
New Business 
 


a. Discussion and possible action regarding the RDA joining the Stoughton Chamber of 
Commerce  


 
Duranczyk raised concerns about the City and City Departments paying for 
memberships when the Chamber receives free rent and utilities from the City. She 
stressed the fact that she is not against the Chamber or being a member of the 
Chamber, but she feels that the City and City Departments subsidize the Chamber 
enough and should not have to pay for a membership.  
 
Further discussion was held regarding the value of being a member of the Chamber 
and whether or not it’s work paying the $150 membership fee.  
 
Motion by Trow to authorize funding for the RDA’s Stoughton Chamber of Commerce 
membership, second by Doom. Motion carried 4-1 with Duranczyk voting no. 


 
 
 
 







b. Discussion and possible action regarding the East Main Street Property Owner Survey 
document  
 
Duranczyk suggested adding a question to determine if there are other non-financial 
barriers keeping the owners from investing further in their properties (zoning issues, 
etc.).  
 
Trow asked how this will be distributed. Becker said it will more than likely be mailed 
and potentially posted as an electronic survey. Trow also suggested having a section 
where the owners can add their contact information. 
 
Springman suggested adding website links and reference the RDA informational 
document. Becker also suggested adding a map and a parcel listing and including with 
the survey. 
 
Springman also inquired if the City is planning to invest in this area.  
 
Becker will make the suggested edits and bring the entire package back to the next 
RDA meeting in November.  
 


c. Discussion and possible action regarding updates to the RDA website. 
 


Springman provided a summary of the changes and updates he and Trow have been 
considering.  
 
Trow noted he is working on getting the RDA homepage link from the City’s website 
updated and has been holding off on loading additional Riverfront Project information 
until it is finalized.  
 
Trow will continue to make the suggested updates and report back to the RDA at a 
future meeting.  
 


Future Agenda Items: 
- 175th Anniversary Commemorations 
- Future Riverfront Phase I approvals 
- East Main Street Survey 
- RDA Website Updates 


 
Adjourn: 
Motion by Duranczyk to adjourn the meeting, second by Doom. Meeting adjourned at 6:51 p.m. 
 







REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES  
Thursday, November 4, 2021   6:00 p.m. 
Remote GoToMeeting  
 
Present: Dale Reeves, Ozzie Doom, Denise Duranczyk (left at 6:31 pm), Roger Springman, 
Regina Hirsch, Pete Manley 
 
Absent and excused:  Lukas Trow 
 
Others present:  Finance Director Friedl, Gary Becker, Mayor Swadley, Planning Director 
Scheel, Attorney Dregne, Curt Brink, Matt Brink, John Thousand, and Doug Hursh 
 
Call to order:  Reeves called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Communications: 
 
None. 
 
Public Comments: 
 
None.  
 
Approval of minutes from October 13, 2021: 
 
Motion by Duranczyk to approve the October 13th minutes, second by Doom. Motion carried 6-
0.  
 
Chair Report 
 
None.   


  
New Business 
 


a. Discussion and possible action regarding the approval of the Stoughton Riverfront 
Development General Development Plan (GDP)  


 
Director Scheel spoke about the proposed timeline that the GDP approval is on and 
summarized why a special RDA meeting was necessary to stay within the constraints of 
that timeline. 
 
Doug Hursh summarized the overall concept of the entire planned development. He 
noted that the setbacks have been decreased to a) increase density and b) represent 
how buildings were historically built in the downtown area.  
 
Another big change to the last version of the design is that the basements of the first 
two buildings have been connected, which will increase parking stalls and is more 
economical to build. This will also limit it to one entry and exit point.  
 







Following the presentation by Doug Hursh, John Thousand summarized the CSM and 
some potential changes that will need to be made prior to finalizing. He also touched on 
the pathway and how it will interact with the storm water ponds in terms of elevation and 
grading. He finally touched on the slope of the sidewalks in the development in terms of 
ADA requirements.  
 
At this point Reeves stopped for comments. Duranczyk noted she still has concerns 
with the amount of parking that will be available in this development. She also noted 
that anything planned above and beyond the City’s current building codes should be 
highlighted in the final application.  
 
At this point Curt Brink’s team began working through the GDP that was submitted to 
the RDA. One initial clarification the RDA requested was the mix of 3, 2 and 1 bedroom 
units in Phase 1. Doug Hursh provided the following breakdown: 
 


 17-3 bedrooms 
 28-2 bedrooms 
 33-1 bedrooms 


 
Attorney Dregne requested that the final proposed mix of unit sizes be codified in the 
GDP in some fashion, and Hirsch concurred. Curt Brink noted that the Phase 1 mix is 
pretty well set, but the mix in future phases will depend on the overall demand. Matt 
Brink said a potential range could be provided, but they do want to leave some flexibility 
if the demand is not there for 3 bedroom units. Following further conversation, the RDA 
agreed they are comfortable with the Phase 1 mix as proposed and future phases will 
depend on the market response. The Brink team will revise the GDP to include the 
Phase 1 unit mix with the ability to deviate from the proposed mix by 10%. No 
requirements will be set for future phases at this point.  
 
The RDA then moved on to discuss parking in more detail. One major item discussed 
related to electric vehicle (EV) charging stations. Hirsch noted she would like to see a 
minimum percentage of parking spots dedicated to this in the GDP. It was ultimately 
decided that the GDP should include 2% minimum EV installed and 10% EV ready (i.e. 
the Madison Standard). Brink’s team agreed to this. 
 
Hirsch requested the GDP clarify that all buildings be built as solar ready, with 
infrastructure installed within ten years. Attorney Dregne requested that Brink’s team 
draft the proposed language for this section and send to the City for final 
review/comment.   
 
Brink is requesting some landscaping exemptions due to the area available to meet the 
current requirements. Brink’s team will draft the aspirational language as it relates to the 
requested exemptions and send to the City for final review/comment. 
 
Attorney Dregne will send his notes to the RDA and Brink team to begin revising the 
GDP for redistribution and review in hopes that this can go to City Council on November 
9th.  
 
Brink’s team will make every effort to incorporate the proposed changes into the GDP 
and send to City staff and the RDA members for review and incorporation into the 







November 9th Council packet. If any delays occur, the Council might have to consider a 
special meeting to stay within the constraints of the timeline.  
 
Motion by Hirsch to approve the GDP subject to the GDP being revised to reflect the 
requested changes by the RDA and subject to Hirsch and Doom being satisfied with 
those changes prior to moving to City Council for approval, second by Manley. Motion 
carried 5-0. 


 
Old Business 
 


a. Discussion and possible action regarding the East Main Street Property Owner Survey  
 
This item will be discussed at the November 10th meeting.  
 


b. Discussion and possible action regarding updates to the RDA website. 
 


This item will be discussed at the November 10th meeting.  
  
 


Future Agenda Items: 
- 175th Anniversary Commemorations 
- Future Riverfront Phase I approvals 


 
Adjourn: 
Motion by Springman to adjourn the meeting, second by Doom. Meeting adjourned at 8:53 p.m. 
 







REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES  
Wednesday, November 10, 2021   6:00 p.m. 
Remote GoToMeeting  
 
Present: Lukas Trow, Ozzie Doom, Denise Duranczyk, Roger Springman, Regina Hirsch, Pete 
Manley 
 
Absent and excused:  Dale Reeves 
 
Others present:  Finance Director Friedl, Gary Becker 
 
Call to order:  Trow called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Communications: 
 
None. 
 
Public Comments: 
 
None.  
 
Approval of minutes from November 4, 2021: 
 
Motion by Doom to approve the November 4th minutes, second by Manley. Motion carried 6-0.  
 
Chair Report 
 
None.   


  
New Business 
 
Old Business 
 


a. Discussion and possible action regarding the East Main Street Property Owner Survey  
 
Becker introduced the revised survey and asked if it meets the RDA’s needs.  
 
Duranczyk asked if the survey could be filled out online (Survey Monkey or a similar 
tool).  
 
Hirsch requested that the cover letter have specific instructions and also discuss the 
attachments to the survey and how they can be used, where additional information can 
be found, etc.  
 
Springman asked for additional clarification on item #7 in the survey. Becker mentioned 
the RDA Revolving Loan Fund and that this is a simple way to encourage the property 
owners to open a dialogue with the RDA. He is envisioning a one-on-one meeting with 
the property owners as opposed to a group meeting. He said either he or Trow could 
take part in the meetings to educate the property owners on potential funding 







opportunities. Springman requested that the item in the survey include verbiage 
stressing public and private financing options and also address the fact that meeting 
with RDA is highly encouraged to assist the property owners finding alternative 
financing options. Becker noted he will include the Revolving Loan flyer in the packet as 
well.  
 
Hirsch asked what happens if no one responds to these. Becker said a group meeting 
with the property owners would then be necessary. Hirsch also requested that follow up 
reminders be sent to those property owners who don’t respond in a timely manner.  
 
The RDA also sees value in including a cover letter from both the Mayor and Dale 
Reeves.  
 
Springman would like to see the final package at the December RDA meeting prior to it 
being sent to the property owners.    
 


b. Discussion and possible action regarding updates to the RDA website. 
 


Trow provided a summary of the work done to date on the RDA website and turned it 
over to Springman to discuss his overall vision for the website. Springman noted that a 
number of the Riverfront Project items on the website appear to be outdated and the 
RDA needs to determine how much in terms of hours and money should be spent on 
updating this section. After outlining the changes he would like to see, Duranczyk noted 
that this might be more work than the RDA can do in-house. She requested a detailed 
list of the changes Springman would like to see made to the website to help gauge the 
amount of work that will be necessary to make all of the proposed changes. Springman 
said he will bring the detailed listing to the December RDA meeting for further review.  
 
Trow closed the discussion out with a review of the historical traffic the website has 
seen over the last several years.  
 


c. Review of Council decision on Riverfront Development GDP. 
 
Hirsch provided a summary of the discussions held at the previous night’s Council 
meeting as it relates to the proposed GDP. She noted that the only amendment made to 
the GDP was to reduce the timeline for installing solar from ten years to five years.  
 
She then summarized the changes the Brink team made to the final document that 
resulted from last week’s RDA meeting. 


 
Future Agenda Items: 
- 175th Anniversary Commemorations - RDA collaboration with the Landmarks Commission, 


etc. 
- Future Riverfront Phase I approvals 
- East Main Street Survey  
- RDA Website Revisions 


 
Adjourn: 
Motion by Duranczyk to adjourn the meeting, second by Springman. Meeting adjourned at 6:47 
p.m. 







REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES  
Wednesday, December 8, 2021   6:00 p.m. 
Remote GoToMeeting  
 
Present: Dale Reeves, Ozzie Doom, Denise Duranczyk, Roger Springman, Regina Hirsch, Lukas 
Trow 
 
Absent and excused:  Pete Manley 
 
Others present:  Finance Director Friedl, Gary Becker 
 
Call to order:  Trow called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Communications: 
 
None. 
 
Public Comments: 
 
None.  
 
Approval of minutes from November 10, 2021: 
 
Motion by Duranczyk to approve the November 10th minutes, second by Springman. Motion 
carried 6-0.  
 
Chair Report 
 
None.   


  
New Business 
 
Old Business 
 


a. Discussion and possible action regarding the East Main Street Property Owner Survey  
 
Becker provided a summary of the changes made as recommended at the last RDA 
meeting.  
 
Springman asked if it would be easier to simply include a separate map of the 
Redevelopment Area as opposed to relying on the maps included in the redevelopment 
plan. Becker will include the map on page 16 of the redevelopment plan as a separate 
attachment to make it easier for the property owners to identify the area being 
discussed. 
 
Hirsch asked if we should include a self-addressed return envelope with prepaid 
postage. This will be included with the final packet.  
 
Dale’s name and signature will also be added to the cover letter.  







Becker asked if this area is sufficient or should it be expanded. The RDA agreed that 
this area is sufficient and should be the main focus for now.  
 
Motion by Springman to send out the cover letter and attachments in January, second 
by Duranczyk. Motion carried 6-0. 
 


b. Discussion and possible action regarding updates to the RDA website. 
 
Springman discussed the attachment in the packet.  
 
Duranczyk stated some confusion regarding the proposed presentation and how it 
appears the entire website will only cover the Riverfront Area. Springman clarified that 
these are only the proposed changes for the Riverfront Area tab on the website.  
 
Duranczyk noted the site should also include separate tabs for the East Main Street 
Area and past developments.  
 
Duranczyk and Hirsch both noted if changes are going to be made they should be made 
to the entire website and not just the Riverfront Area tab. They also noted that this might 
be more work than Lukas can take on.  
 
Reeves said it might make sense for him, Springman and Trow to work together on the 
initial layout and verbiage prior to the next RDA meeting and continue the discussion 
then. If the RDA can draft the verbiage and propose a layout they can then discuss 
whether or not Lukas can complete the work or if external help is needed. The general 
consensus is to approach this in sections and not attempt to entire overhaul at once. 
 


c. Discussion and possible action regarding 175th Anniversary Commemorations and 
collaboration with the Landmarks Commission, Chamber, Historical Society, etc. 
 
Springman volunteered to convene a session with representatives from the Landmarks 
Commission, the Historical Society and the City Parks and Rec Department to discuss 
signage. The conversation will address not only the 175th Anniversary, but historical 
commemoration ideas in general.  
 
Additional conversation was held regarding Reeves’ fund raising events and other ideas 
to attract visitors to Stoughton. 


 
Future Agenda Items: 
- Future Riverfront Phase I approvals 
- Riverfront Project Updates 
- RDA Website Updates 


 
Adjourn: 
Motion by Trow to adjourn the meeting, second by Hirsch. Meeting adjourned at 7:08 p.m. 







REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES  
Wednesday, January 12, 2022   6:00 p.m. 
Remote GoToMeeting  
 
Present: Dale Reeves, Roger Springman, Regina Hirsch, Lukas Trow, Pete Manley 
 
Absent and excused:  Ozzie Doom, Denise Duranczyk 
 
Others present:  Finance Director Friedl, Gary Becker 
 
Call to order:  Reeves called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Communications: 
 
None. 
 
Public Comments: 
 
None.  
 
Approval of minutes from December 8, 2021: 
 
Motion by Springman to approve the December 8th minutes, second by Trow. Motion carried 5-
0.  
 
Chair Report 
 
None.   


  
New Business 
 
Old Business 
 


a. Discussion and possible action regarding the East Main Street Property Owner Survey  
 
Becker provided a summary of the changes made since the last meeting. Becker will 
reach out to Mayor Swadley to determine who the final City contact should be. 
Springman and Becker also identified some links that need to edited/added to the RDA 
website to line up with the materials being sent.    
 
The plan is still to send this out in January. 
 


b. Discussion regarding Riverfront Project status update. 
 
Reeves provided a summary of the materials in the packet and he will continue 
discussions with Brink regarding the contingent items that still remain.  
 
 
 







 
Future Agenda Items: 
- Riverfront Status Update – Ongoing Item 
- RDA Website Updates/Outside Consultant 
- Potential update on Downtown Merchants Association 


 
Adjourn: 
Motion by Manley to adjourn the meeting, second by Springman. Meeting adjourned at 6:27 
p.m. 







Stoughton Redevelopment Committee 2-9-22  


 
This is a teleconference meeting via GoToMeeting Access with a computer, tablet or smartphone via 
GoToMeeting  https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/927546853  
dial-in number (877) 309-2073. Access code 927-546-853  
Members:  Regina Hirsch, Denise Duranczyk, Roger Springman, Lukas Trow, Dale Reeves,  
Ozzie Doom and Pete Manley  
 
Guest-Tim Swadley, Gary Becker 
 


Call to Order  


Communications-Pete gave update regarding recent Whitewater Adhoc meeting, Roger gave 
Stoughton School building flyer update. Tim gave update regarding City Council action on 
Riverfront SIP 


Public comments-none 


 
Approval of minutes from the January 12, 2022 meeting 


Motion to approve January 12, 2022 RDA Minutes by Hirsch seconded by Manley 


Motion carried unanimously 


 


Chair Report-Dale discussed 175th Celebration 


 
New Business  
 
A resolution from the RDA Approving the Conveyance of Lot 1 within the Riverfront 
Redevelopment Area to Stoughton Riverfront Development, LLC, and Outlot 1 within the 
Riverfront Redevelopment Area to the City of Stoughton.  


Motion to approve resolution of the Conveyance of Lot 1 and Outlot 1 by Springman seconded 
by Trow 


Motion carried unanimously 


 


Old Business  
 
Discussion and possible action regarding the East Main Street Property Owner Survey.  
 
No action taken 







 
Gary will take care of remaining adjustments per removing Jamin from cover letter and changing 
date issuance and Dale will be working with Tim on mailing.  Gary will set up a Google forum 
for dropping for dropping comments.  With RDA flyer completion/updating, that can now be 
included as well.   


 


Discussion regarding Riverfront Project status update-update on Material Maintenance Plan and 
closing remediation. 


 


 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 


Riverfront Status Update  
Ongoing Item-Regina or Roger working on brochure  
RDA Website Updates/Outside Consultant-Lukas working on website. Derek starting 2-14-22 in 
IT  
Potential update on Downtown Merchants Association  
 


ADJOURNMENT  


Motion to adjourn by Doom seconded by Manley at 7:37 


Motion carried unanimously 







River and Trails Task Force Minutes 
Monday, March 7, 2022 
Virtual Meeting 
 
Present:  Jon Lewis, Sandra Black, Nancy Hagen, Joni Dean, Larry Liebmann, Ralph Erickson, Jim 
Killian, Dan Glynn, Rachel Venegas, Bob Diebel.  
 
Guest:  Phil Caravello. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 


1. The meeting was called to order by Sandra at 1732. 
2. January 3, 2022 Minutes:  After two spelling corrections, the minutes were approved by 


Jon with a second by Nancy.  Carried. 
3. Communications:   Dan discussed the Jefferson Street Bridge Project.  With the new 


standard of a 10’ width requirement, there is not enough land for the bridge abutments.  
The money for this project will be earmarked somewhere else.  There are still a few 
years of life left in this bridge.   
 
Member Communications:  Jon was attempting to reach Larry Mitbo about property on 
the river and was unable to connect.  It was reported that the new business owner is 
Andy Walker, from CEBO Industries.   
 
Rachel reported that she will be on leave for the months of May, June and July.  The 
Mayor can line up someone to take her place.  Phil will check in with Tim about covering 
Rachel’s time off.   
 
Project Updates:  Riverfront:  Dan discussed a meeting taking place in three days with 
three entities:  1) DNR.  2) Army Corps of Engineers and 3) National Park Service to 
discuss who is taking the lead and what they want moving forward.  Dan agreed to send 
a summary of the meeting to our group.  Permits will hopefully be done by July to the 
park service to avoid a delay to the December deadline as it is hoped to bid this out by 
December 2022.   
 
Dan discussed the Riverwalk RDA site sample (the city owns this property).  An old 
railroad tie was hit which didn’t give a good reading.  The plan is to do more drilling in 
about a month and if the sampling is better, the project will move forward.   
 
Dan submitted a grant for Mandt Park to Outdoor Recreation Tourism to further the 
trail including viewing spots,  to be completed in 2024.   
 
Last week Dan submitted a grant for the Mill Pond Restoration.   
 







A TAP (Transportation Alternative Program) grant was submitted that is a 60/40 grant to 
pave Jackson to Buckingham and widen the trail.  This will be rerouted through Virgin 
Park, east of the shelter.   
 
Development Updates:  Dan shared the 51 W. Subdivision Map.  He shared the Stone 
Crest subdivision with a plan to make a trail connection and he shared the trail sites.  
This will expand Racetrack Park to the west.  He also shared the Kettle Park West Map 
for Future Phase 3.  The Teigen Farm plot will connect to Mandt Park near Aaker Road.  


 
OLD BUSINESS 


4. Amundson Park/River Trail Interpretive Signs:  Dan explained a contractor will clean up 
the shoreline of Division Street Park in the spring where the Round Up was 
unnecessarily placed.  A sign will be placed to explain shoreline restoration.  Sandra, 
Nancy and Joni met at Amundson Park and would like three signs placed to include the 
Superfund site, Wetlands and Prairie plants.  The cost of the signs is not known yet, but 
Dan has a resource to get them made. 


 
NEW BUSINESS 


5.  Highway 51 Underpass:  Dan shared the map of the Hwy 51 underpass, which is going 
to the City Council for approval.  All Task Force members approved the Resolution of the 
Common Council which was shared.  Dan also shared the overall trail map of Stoughton 
which was very informative and is available for printing.   


6. Earth Day Cleanup:  April 23, 2022 at 9:00 am at the Pedestrian Bridge. An article will be 
placed in the Tower Times.  Scouts and other groups will be organized for the event. 


7. 2022 Committee Activity:  No goals for next year were brought up but discussion will 
ensue at the next meeting in May. 


8. Future Agenda Items:  None at this time. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 1848 by Bob with a second by Sandra.  Carried. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Joni Dean 











CITY OF STOUGHTON JOINT REVIEW BOARD  
Thursday, October 14, 2021 3:45 p.m.  
Remote GoToMeeting  


Present:  
Frank Sullivan, Mayor Tim Swadley, Adam Gallagher, Laurie Grigg  


Absent and Excused:  
Sarah Ebert 


Others Present:  
City Finance Director Friedl, City Alder Tikalsky 


Call to Order:  
Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 3:45 p.m.  


Roll Call:  
Mayor Swadley called the roll and noted that there were 4 members present.  


Approval of the February 1, 2021 JRB Meeting Minutes:  
Motion by Sullivan to approve the February 1, 2021 JRB meeting minutes, second by Gallagher. 
Motion passed 4-0. 


Annual Review of Stoughton TIF Districts –Jamin Friedl Finance Director 
Friedl presented an overview of the TIF Districts and their financials within the City.    


Review of the August 31, 2021 TID No. 3 Audit Report 
Friedl presented an overview of the August 31, 2021 TID No. 3 audit report.    
 


Review of the December 31, 2020 TID No. 6 Audit Report 
Friedl presented an overview of the December 31, 2020 TID No. 6 audit report.    
 


Adjournment 
Motion by Sullivan, second by Grigg to adjourn at 4:09 p.m.  


 


Respectfully Submitted, 
Jamin Friedl, CPA 
Director of Finance  







City of Stoughton 


Alcohol Policy Subcommittee 


Meeting notes 


 


Prepared by Jerry Deschane, Subcommittee Secretary. 924 Hyland Drive, Stoughton. 


The Alcohol Policy Subcommittee held its first meeting from 2:00 until 2:45 p.m. Tuesday, April 5, 2022 


via Zoom. Individuals present included: Teressa Pellett, John Basco, Joseph Baird, Jim Baldauf, Todd 


McVey and Jerry Deschane. Police Officer Chad O’Neil is also a member but was unable to attend. 


Pellett reviewed the role of the subcommittee which is to assist the City of Stoughton by providing 


recommendations to the Public Safety Committee relative to the city’s alcohol policies. 


Members introduced themselves and organized the subcommittee. Baird agreed to serve as chair, 


Deschane agreed to serve as secretary, Basco, Baldauf and McVey agreed to assist with project research 


and policy drafting as needed. 


The subcommittee will meet the first Tuesday of each month at 1:00 p.m. at locations to be determined 


at the prior meeting. The next meeting will be held (May 3) at Mr. Baird’s place of business.   


 


Adjourned 2:47pm 





		01 - Finance Committee approved minutes 12-28-2021

		02 - Finance Committee approved minutes 01-25-2022

		03 - Finance Committee approved minutes 02-22-2022

		04 - Finance Committee approved minutes 03-08-2022

		05 - Finance Committee approved minutes 04-12-2022

		06 - RDA approved minutes 09-08-2021

		07 - RDA approved minutes 10-13-2021

		08 - RDA approved minutes 11-04-2021

		09 - RDA approved minutes 11-10-2021

		10- RDA approved minutes 12-08-2021

		11- RDA approved minutes 01-12-2022

		12- RDA approved minutes 02-09-2022

		13 RTF Minutes March 2022 Updated

		14 - JRB approved minutes 03-14-2022

		15 - JRB approved minutes 10-14-2021

		16 Alcohol Policy Committee minutes 04.05.22






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Revision to Authorized Signatures for the City of Stoughton with Local Depositories 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
 


 
Fiscal Impact:   Zero 
 
File Number: 


 
R-109-2022 


 
Date 5/10/2022   
044/26/24/02020


 


 


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the Common Council approved the authorized signatures for the City of 
Stoughton with local depositories with R-85-2022 on April 19, 2022; and 


WHEREAS, the finally resolved section approved facsimile signatures for the Mayor and 
Director of Finance/Comptroller but did not include the City Treasurer; and 


WHEREAS, the City Treasurer’s facsimile signature is currently on the physical checks 
issued by the City of Stoughton; 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the facsimile signatures of the Mayor, 
Director of Finance/Comptroller and City Treasurer as adopted by them be approved. 


 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       








 


National Historic Preservation Month 


May 2022 


WHEREAS, The National Trust for Historic Preservation established May as 


Historic Preservation Month in 1973, to promote historic places for the purpose of 


instilling national and community pride, promoting heritage tourism, and showing the 


social and economic benefits of historic preservation; and 


WHEREAS, local historic preservation is an effective tool for revitalizing 


neighborhoods, fostering local pride and maintaining community character while 


enhancing livability and economic development; and 


WHEREAS, historic preservation is relevant for communities across the nation, both 


urban and rural, and for Americans of all ages, all walks of life and all ethnic 


backgrounds; and 


WHEREAS, it is important to celebrate the role of history in our lives and the 


contributions made by dedicated individuals in helping to preserve the tangible aspects 


of the heritage that has shaped us as a people; and 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton community continues to demonstrate its commitment to 


preservation, as it grows and develops, through the nomination of significant cultural 


resources to the State and National Register of Historic Places; the protection of its 


local landmarks, historic districts, and neighborhoods; the integration of historic 


elements with redevelopment; and the recognition, rehabilitation and restoration of 


historic properties 


 


Now, therefore, I, Tim Swadley, Mayor of the City of Stoughton do hereby 


proclaim May 2022 to be National Historic Preservation Month. 


In testimony whereof, I, Tim Swadley, Mayor of the City of Stoughton, hereunto 


set my hand and caused the great seal of the City of Stoughton to be affixed this 


tenth day of May in the year two thousand and twenty-two. 


 


 


 


 


Tim Swadley, Mayor of the City of Stoughton 







 


National Police Week 
May 8-15, 2022 


To recognize National Police Week 2022 and to honor the service and sacrifice of 
those law enforcement officers killed in the line of duty while protecting our 
communities and safeguarding our democracy.  


WHEREAS, there are more than 900,000 law enforcement officers serving in 
communities across the United States, including the dedicated members of the 
Stoughton Police Department;  


WHEREAS, there have been 60,105 assaults against law enforcement officers in 
2021, resulting in approximately 17,902 injuries and 458 line-of duty deaths;  


WHEREAS, since the first recorded death in 1786, more than 21,500 law 
enforcement officers in the United States have made the ultimate sacrifice and been 
killed in the line of duty, including one member of the Stoughton Police 
Department, Patrolman Paul Kraby; 


WHEREAS, the names of these dedicated public servants are engraved on the walls 
of the National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial in Washington, DC; 


WHEREAS, new names of fallen heroes are being added to the National Law 
Enforcement Officers Memorial this spring, including 458 officers killed in 2021 in 
the line of duty; 


WHEREAS, May 15 is designated as Peace Officers Memorial Day, in honor of all 
fallen officers and their families and U.S. flags should be flown at half-staff; 


THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Mayor Tim Swadley formally designates 
May 8-15, 2022 as Police Week in the City of Stoughton, and publicly salutes the 
service of law enforcement officers in our community and in communities across the 
nation. 


 
 
 


 
Tim Swadley, Mayor of the City of Stoughton 





		04c Proclamation Historic Preservation Month May 2022

		04d Proclamation Police Week 2022






 
 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City Official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B” Beer and “Class B” 
Wine Retailers License and Special Event License to the Taste of Stoughton 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Public Safety recommended approval 4-0 on April 26, 2022 


   
File Number: R-110- 2022 


 
Date Introduced:   May 10, 2022 


 
WHEREAS it is in the best interest of the City to approve an Application for a Temporary Class 
‘B” Beer and “Class B” Wine Retailers License and Special Event License Taste of Stoughton; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the Public Safety Committee met on April 26, 2022 to consider the terms of the 
Temporary Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Wine Retailers License and Special Event License and 
recommends approval, now therefore 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 
official(s) be hereby directed and authorized to execute the Temporary Class “B” Beer and “Class 
B” Wine Retailer’s License and a Special Event License based on no fines or fees due to the City 
of Stoughton, attached hereto and incorporated as part of this resolution, between the City of 
Stoughton and the Taste of Stoughton.  
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                             
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
 


 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote    _ 
 











May be Granted and Issued only to:
(1) Bona	fide	clubs.
(2) State, county, or local fair associations, or agricultural societies.
(3) Churches, lodges, or societies that have been in existence for at least 6 months prior to the date of application.
(4) Posts of veterans organizations.
(5) Chambers of commerce or similar civic or trade organizations organized under ch. 181, Wis. Stats.


Application:
(1) Filing:  In writing, for each event, on Form AT-315.
(2) The	local	licensing	authority	may	act	on	application	or	authorize	an	official	or	body	of	the	municipality	to	issue	the	license.


(ss. 125.26(1) and 125.51(1)(a), Wis. Stats.)
(3) The	written	application	shall	be	filed	with	the	clerk	of	the	municipality	in	which	premises	are	located:


 Class “B” (Beer):
a. The governing body shall establish any waiting period before granting of a license for events lasting less than 4 days


(s. 125.04(3)(f), Wis. Stats.)
b. At least 15 days prior to the granting of the license for events lasting 4 or more days.


 “Class B” (Wine):
The	application	shall	be	filed	with	the	clerk	of	the	local	municipality	in	which	the	event	will	be	held	at	least	15	days	prior
to the granting of the license.


(4) Seller's Permit:  Sec. 77.54 (7m), Wis. Stats., provides an exemption from Wisconsin sales and use taxes relating to
certain	sales	by	a	nonprofit	organization.		Check	the	box	if	your	organization	qualifies	for	the	exemption	and	therefore	is
not required to hold a seller's permit.


(5) Publication:  Not required.


Fee: Determined by the municipality, but may not exceed $10.  (Exception:  No additional fee may be charged if organization 
is applying for both a Temporary Class “B” and a Temporary “Class B” license for the same event.)


Duration:		The	day,	or	consecutive	days,	that	the	specified	event	is	in	progress.		A	municipality	may	issue	up	to	20	licenses	to	
the same licensee for a single event, if each license is issued for the same date and time.


Restrictions:
(1)  License may not be issued to individuals.
(2)  Licenses to organizations, other than ex-servicemen’s organizations, can be issued only for a picnic or similar gathering.


They may not be issued for business or social meetings of the organization.
(3)  Licenses for club or organization meetings may be issued only to ex-servicemen’s posts.
(4) 	License	may	cover	either	a	specified	area	or	the	entire	picnic	grounds.
(5)  License issued to a county or district fair must cover the entire fairground (ss. 125.26(6) and 125.51(10), Wis. Stats.)
(6) No license to clubs having any indebtedness to any wholesaler for more than 15 days for beer (s. 125.33(7), Wis. Stats.)


and 30 days for wine (s. 125.69(4)(b), Wis. Stats.)
(7)  Licensed operator(s) must be present at all times (ss. 125.26(6), 125.32(2) - Beer; 125.51(10), 125.68(2) - Wine; 125.17)
(8)  The licensed club, club members, or any other persons are not permitted to possess intoxicating liquor on licensed premises 


on the Temporary Class “B”/”Class B” licensed picnic area. (s. 125.32(6), Wis. Stats.)
(9) Not more than 2 wine licenses may be issued to any club, county or local fair association, agricultural association, church,


lodge, society, chamber of commerce or similar civic or trade organization or veterans' post in any 12 month period. A
municipality may issue up to 20 wine licenses to the same licensee if: 1) each license is issued for the same date and
times, 2) the licensee is the sponsor of an event held at multiple locations within the municipality on this date and at these
times, 3) an admission fee is charged for participation in the event and no additional fee is charged for service of alcohol
beverages at the event, and 4) within the immediately preceding 12-month period, the municipality has issued these multiple 
licenses for fewer than 2 events.  In addition, each event for which multiple licenses are issued shall count as one license
toward the 2-license limit.


 (10) Licensed organizations must purchase their product from a licensed wholesaler.


NOTE: Most coolers presently on the market have a fermented malt beverage base allowing sale under a beer license, 
e.g. Bartles and James, Seagrams, etc.


Additional Information











Entrance/Exit


Open Area
For tables/chairs, eating 


& band viewing


Korgen Dr.


Taste of Stoughton Site Map


June 19, 2022


Vendor Tent


Entrance/Exit


Fenced Off Area


Porta Potty’s – 6 regular, 1 ADA 


ADA


Generator


Power Cluster Box 


H
o


el
A


ve
.


Bouncy House & Slide & 
Obstacle Course


FO
O


D
 V


EN
D


O
R


S 
H


ER
E


Ticket 
Stand/


ID Check/ 
INFO 


Mad City 
Corn Hole





		18 R-110-2022 Taste of Stoughton

		18a  Taste of Stoughton

		June 2016 AT-315 Application for Tempoary Class _B_ _ _Class B_ Retailer's License (fillable)_Redacted

		Special_Event_Permit_Form_Redacted

		TOS SITE MAP 4.19.22












 


Meetings of:       COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   


Date//Time:       Tuesday, April 26, 2022, 7:00 p.m. 


Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting. (Virtual and in person) 


  Virtual: You can join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom:  


  https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83839158249?pwd=K3hNR0ViRmxmclZGUFErVjBtbG85Zz09 


Meeting ID: 838 3915 8249 


Passcode: 251338  


  In person: Council Chambers, (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


           321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin    


   


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki,  


                 Tom Majewski, Lisa Reeves, Brett Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky, Rachel Venegas, and Frank Raff 


 
CALL TO ORDER 


Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 


 


Roll Call 


Clerk Christen called the roll and noted there were 11 Alders.  Venegas absent and excused. 


 


Minutes and Reports - the following minutes were entered into the records. 


Planning Committee (3/14/22); Tree Commission (3/10/22); Park & Rec. (3/16/22); Whitewater Park Steering 


Committee (2/21/22, 3/21/22); Public Works (2/17/22) 


 


Public Comment Period: 


• Carl Chenoweth, 409 Garfield Street, spoke about redistricting and the maps that were just approved. 


 


Communications and Presentations: 


• Proclamation recognizing Library Board member Mike Vienneau  


• Syttende Mai Proclamation 


• Public Works Week Proclamation 


• Police Week Proclamation  


• Clerks Week Proclamation  


• Mental Health Month Proclamation 
• Older Americans Proclamation 


 


Mayor Swadley recognized the many people that are encompassed within the proclamations and thanked them for their 


dedication. 


 


Consent Agenda: 


 A.  Council Minutes April 12, 2022 


 B.  R-91-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator licenses to various 


 applicants. 


C. R-92-2022 Resolution confirming the Mayor's Committee Appointments to Boards, Committees, and 


Commissions, Pursuant to 2-127 of the Municipal Code. 


D. Final Minutes of the March 14, 2022, Regular Utilities Committee Meeting, Stoughton Utilities March 


Payments Due List Report, Stoughton Utilities January Financial Summary, Stoughton Utilities February 


Financial Summary, Stoughton Utilities Statistical Report  


 


   



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83839158249?pwd=K3hNR0ViRmxmclZGUFErVjBtbG85Zz09





 


Motion by Jenson, second by Majewski to approve the consent agenda.  Motion carried 11-0. 


  


OLD BUSINESS 


 


 O-10-2022 Ordinance to annex approximately 38 acres from the Town of Dunkirk (Robert Hostrawser) 


 


Motion by Caravello, second by Hundt to approve O-10-2022 Ordinance to annex approximately 38 acres from 


the Town of Dunkirk (Robert Hostrawser). Motion carried 11-0. 


 


O-11-2022 Ordinance to annex approximately 20 acres from the Town of Pleasant Springs (Moe Family Farm, 


LLC)                


Motion by Caravello, second by Schumacher to approve O-11-2022 Ordinance to annex approximately 20 acres 


from the Town of Pleasant Springs (Moe Family Farm, LLC). Motion carried 11-0.  


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


R-93-2022 Resolution approving the Conditional Use permit for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use at 


Cheeser’s, 183/187 E. Main Street.   


Motion by Caravello, second by Hirsch to approve R-93-2022 Resolution approving the Conditional use 


permit for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use at Cheeser’s, 183/187 E. Main Street.   Motion carried 


11-0.  


R-94-2022 Resolution approving Certified Survey Map (CSM) for property located at the northeast corner of 


Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive (Emmi Roth).   


Motion by Caravello, second by Majewski to approve R-94-2022 Resolution approving Certified Survey Map 


(CSM) for property located at the northeast corner of Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive (Emmi Roth).   


Motion carried 11-0. 


 


O-12-2022 Ordinance approving Planned Development – General Development Plan for property located at the 


northeast corner of Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Dive (Emmi Roth).   


 


Caravello read O-12-2022 Ordinance approving Planned Development – General Development Plan for 


property located at the northeast corner of Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Dive (Emmi Roth) as a first 


reading. It will be back before the Council May 10.  


 


R-95-2022 Approving a Conditional Use Permit Application for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use at 


2125 McComb Road, Unit 100. 


Motion by Caravello, second by Reeves to approve R-95-2022 Approving a Conditional Use Permit 


Application for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use at 2125 McComb Road, Unit 100.  Motion carried 11-


0. 


O-13-2022 Ordinance amendments to sections 78-920 and 58-2.  


Caravello read O-13-2022 Ordinance amendments to sections 78-920 and 58-2 as a first reading.  It will be back 


before Council May 10, 2022. 







R-96-2022 Authorizing Funding for 2022 Services Provided by Becker Professional Services, LLC for 


Economic Development Projects.  


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-96-2022 Authorizing Funding for 2022 Services 


Provided by Becker Professional Services, LLC for Economic Development Projects.  Motion carried 11-0. 


R-97-2022 Resolution approving a Pre-Annexation Agreement between the City of Stoughton and R.O.B. Real 


Estate Brokerage & Builders, LLC. 


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves R-97-2022 Resolution approving a Pre-Annexation Agreement 


between the City of Stoughton and R.O.B. Real Estate Brokerage & Builders, LLC.  Motion carried 11-0. 


 


R-87-2022 Authorizing the Director of Parks & Recreation to apply for a 2022 WDNR Grant.  


 


Motion by Caravello, second by Hirsch to approve R-87-2022 Authorizing the Director of Parks & Recreation 


to apply for a 2022 WDNR Grant. Motion carried 11-0. 


 


R-88-2022 Resolution Authorizing vacating Nordic Ridge Outlot #7 for Parks & Recreation. 


 


Motion by Caravello, second by Ligocki to approve R-88-2022 Resolution Authorizing vacating Nordic Ridge 


Outlot #7 for Parks & Recreation.  Motion carried 11-0. 


 


 


R-89-2022 Directing the Director of Parks & Recreation to accept $239,200 in Department of Natural 


Resources Stewardship Grant Funds for Riverfront Development Phase II upland trails.  


 


Motion by Caravello, second by Ligocki to approve R-89-2022 Directing the Director of Parks & Recreation to 


accept $239,200 in Department of Natural Resources Stewardship Grant Funds for Riverfront Development 


Phase II upland trails. Motion carried 11-0. 


 


R-90-2022 Collateral Assignment of Development Agreement with RHD Properties, LLC for 51 West Project. 


        


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-90-2022 Collateral Assignment of Development 


Agreement with RHD Properties, LLC for 51 West Project.  Motion carried 10-1.  Majewski opposed. 


  


Stoughton Opera House Friends Association – Facility Use Agreement renewal for 2022-2023 season. 


 


Motion by Hundt, second by Heili to approve Stoughton Opera House Friends Association – Facility Use 


Agreement renewal for 2022-2023 season.  Motion carried 11-0. 


 


Litigation regarding North American Fur Auctions (US) Inc. and NAFA Properties Stoughton, LLC 


 


Motion by Reeves, second by Jenson to adjourn into closed session pursuant to Wis. State Statute 19.85(1) (g) 


Conferring with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning 


strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved.  Roll 


call was taken and motion carried 11-0. 8:42 p.m. 


 


ADJOURNMENT 


 
 


 








CATHERINE E. ALBRECHT-WIESE 
ATT OR NEY  


CWIES E@B OARDMA NCLARK.C OM  


DIREC T  (608)  286  7181  


FAX  (608)  283  1709  


 


  


April 28, 2022 
 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
City of Stoughton 
Attn: Mayor Tim Swadley 
207 S. Forrest Street 
Stoughton, WI  53589 
Email: tswadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us  


One Community Bank 
Attn: Scott Hoerth, Senior Market President 
733 N. Main Street 
Oregon, WI 53575 
Email: shoerth@onecommunity.bank   


 
RE: Proposed Waiver of Conflict of Interest 
 
Dear Mayor Swadley and Mr. Hoerth: 
 
This firm represents One Community Bank ("Bank") in connection with various 
matters, and also represents the City of Stoughton (the "City") in connection with 
various matters. The Bank has asked Boardman & Clark LLP to represent the Bank in 
connection with a loan to Kettle Park West, LLC ("Loan"), which will include a letter of 
credit that the Bank will provide to the City of Stoughton pursuant to a development 
agreement between the City and Kettle Park West, LLC. 
 
Given that we represent the City in other matters, the Bank’s request raises a potential 
conflict of interest. 
 
Under certain ethical rules, a lawyer may not represent a client if the representation of 
that client would be directly adverse to another client, unless certain conditions are 
met. Those conditions are: 
 
(1) The lawyer reasonably believes that the lawyer will be able to provide 
competent and diligent representation to each affected client; 
 
(2) The representation is not prohibited by law; 
 
(3) The representation does not involve the assertion of a claim by one client against 
another client represented by the lawyer in the same litigation or other proceeding 
before a tribunal; and 
 
(4) Each affected client gives informed consent, confirmed in a writing signed by the 
client. 
 







 
APRIL 28, 2022 
PAGE 2 
 


 


 


 
 
 
 


We hold the stated belief. These and other facts are the basis for our belief. You are each 
sophisticated and experienced entities. Our representations of each of you have not 
resulted in the transmission of privileged or confidential information that would be 
detrimental to the other in negotiating this transaction. It is our understanding that the 
City has retained separate legal counsel on this matter. 
 
Our representation of the Bank would not be prohibited by law. Our representation of 
the Bank should not involve the assertion of any claim against the City. Our 
representation of the Bank would have these consequences: 
 
(1) We will owe our various duties as lawyers, including diligence and 
confidentiality, only to the Bank in this transaction. 
 
(2) If any material dispute arises between the Bank or the City during the 
transaction, which the parties are unable to amicably resolve, then we might be 
required to withdraw from any further representation of the Bank, who might have to 
obtain other counsel. 
 
The Bank should consent to our representation only if the Bank believes that we can 
perform our various duties, including diligence and confidentiality, even though we 
have represented the City and its interests in other matters. 
 
The City should consent to our representation of the Bank only if it believes we will 
keep confidential and not communicate to the Bank any confidential information we 
may have received in prior representations relevant to these transactions. We do not 
believe we have received any confidential information that relates to this transaction. 
 
If you are willing to consent to our representation of the Bank in connection with the 
Loan, please sign the consents at the bottom of this letter, and fax or e-mail your 
consents to us.  
 
Please call if you have any questions about the disclosures made in this letter.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
BOARDMAN & CLARK LLP 


 
Catherine E. Albrecht-Wiese  


 
CEW/cp  







 
APRIL 28, 2022 
PAGE 3 
 


 


 


 
 
 
 


The City of Stoughton hereby waives the potential of interest disclosed in this letter and 
consents to Boardman & Clark LLP’s representation of One Community Bank in the 
matter described in this letter. 
 
      City of Stoughton 
 
 
Dated:      By:        
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
 
 
One Community Bank hereby waives the potential of interest disclosed in this letter and 
consents to Boardman & Clark LLP’s representation of One Community Bank in the 
matter described in this letter. 
 
      One Community Bank 
 
 
Dated:      By:        
       Scott Hoerth, Senior Market President 
 
 
 
 
 








RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to various applicants. 


 
Committee 


 


 
N/A 


Fiscal Impact: N/A 


 
File Number: R-98-2022


 
Date Introduced:   May 10, 2022


WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from 
the following applicants: 


Place of Business Name  
Christina Purves Argo Craft Tavern 


WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Clerk have reviewed and approved the issuance of an 
Operator Licenses to said applicants, now therefore 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 
official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue Operator Licenses to the above named 
applicants. 


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action:        Override Vote 








RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Confirming the Mayor’s Citizen Appointments to Boards, Committees, and Commissions, Pursuant to 
2-127 of the Municipal Code.


Committee Action: N/A 
Fiscal Impact: $-0- 


File Number: R-99-2022 Date Introduced:  May 10, 2022 


WHEREAS, the Mayor has submitted citizen appointment for non-standing boards, committees, and 
commissions for the 2022-2023 term; and 


WHEREAS, the appointment is as follows: 


Sustainability Committee 
 Heath Massey


Redevelopment Authority
David Pluymers


Therefore, 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) 
c o n f i  r m  t  h e  M  a  y o  r ’ s  c i  t  i  z  e n  a p p o i  n t  m e n t  t o  n o n -standing b o a r d s  , c  o m m  i t t  e  e  s  , and 
commissions. 


Council Action:  Adopted  Failed  Vote   _ _


Mayoral Action: Accept           Veto 


Tim Swadley, Mayor  Date 


Council Action:  Override  Vote 















 











CITY OF STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 


Application for Appointment to City Boards/Commission/Committees 


If you are interested in serving the community as a committee member, please complete this 


application form and return it by email to the City Clerk: hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us or you can 


mail it to City Hall Attn: City Clerk, 207 S. Forrest St., Stoughton, WI 53589.  Committee 


applications are kept on file and reviewed as necessary to fill vacancies. If you have additional 


questions, please contact City Hall at 608-873-6677 or email Holly Licht at the email listed above. 


Thank you for your interest! 


Name: 


Street Address: 


City: State: Zip Code: 


Phone #: Email: 


Aldermanic District (You can find your district by going to myvote.wi.gov): 


Choose a Committee(s) 


__ Ad Hoc Whitewater Steering Committee 


__ Arts Council  


__ Board of Appeals 


__ Business Park North Committee  


__ Cemetery Board  


__ Commission on Aging  


__ Community Affairs/Council Policy (CACP) 


__ Finance Committee   


__ Food Pantry Committee  


__ Housing Authority  


__ Landmarks Commission  


__ Library Board  


__ Opera House Board 


__ Parks & Rec Committee 


__ Plan Commission  


__ Public Safety Committee  


__ Public Works Committee  


__ Police & Fire Commission  


__ Redevelopment Authority  


__ Rivers & trails Task Force  


__ Seniors In Need Committee  


__ Tree Commission 


__ Utilities Committee  


___ Other (please specify): _____________ 


Background (related experiences, skills or qualifications). You may also attach your resume: 


Why you are interested in this committee(s): 


Kurt Byfield


408 W Prospect Street


Stoughton WI 53589


608-712-9510 Kbyfield@charter.net


District #1


X


I have nearly 30 years of experience working for the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources, and am 
currently a Grant Project Manager covering the motorized recreational trail needs of 31 counties with over 
7,700 miles of trail in Southern and West Central Wisconsin.    I work with Snowmobile, ATV, UTV and Off 
Highway Motorcycle trails and have recently begun working with the Federal Recreational Trails Program 
(RTP).   While my work is focused on motorized recreation, I feel there’s significant overlap between the 
motorized and non-motorized worlds.    



mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us





I am an avid cyclist, covering over 4,000 per year on both road and trail.   Last year I rode the trails in 
Stoughton for over 600 miles and would like the opportunity to give something back to the system that I 
enjoy so much.   Thru my position with the DNR, I’m exposed to a wide of trail systems and outdoor 
opportunities and I find myself wondering how those could be incorporated into the area around Stoughton.   
And as I ride, I often find myself looking for ways that the trails could be improved or places where new trial 
systems could be introduced to the city and made available for all residents to enjoy.  I figure the best way to 
implement ideas is to participate in the process.





























		05c  R-99-2022 Resolution confirming the Mayor’s Committee Appointments to Boards, Committees, and Commissions

		05c  R-81-2022 Resolution confirming the Mayor’s Committee Appointments to Boards, Committees, and Commissions

		05d Verstegen application for Stoughton DEI TF

		05e Etahn Scheiwe

		05f Jen Cummings

		05-Kurt Byfield



		05c David Pluymers RDA Application 2022 04 27

		05c Sustainability committee application










CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
Approving a General Development Plan for Property located at the NE Corner of Williams Drive and 


Glacier Moraine Drive, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends Council approval 7  – 0  
Fiscal Impact:       Increased Tax Base  
File Number: O - 12 - 2022 Date Introduced:  April 26, 2022 


Re-Introduced:     May 10, 2022       
 


 
RECITALS 


 
1. Emmi Roth (the “Applicant”) has requested general development plan (GDP) amendment 


approval for approximately 20 acres of land located in the NE corner of Williams Drive 
and Glacier Moraine Drive. 


 
2. The Planned Development District is intended to provide a voluntary regulatory 


framework designed to encourage and promote improved environmental and aesthetic 
design in the City by allowing for greater design freedom, imagination and flexibility in 
the development of land while insuring substantial compliance with the basic intent of the 
City’s Zoning Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan.  The comparable zoning district for 
the land proposed to be zoned PD-Planned Development – General Development Plan, 
used for establishing base-line zoning requirements and identifying needed flexibility, is 
Planned Industrial. 


 
3. The Applicant has submitted a General Development Plan (“GDP”) Amendment for the 


property listed above.  The GDP is attached as Exhibit A to this Ordinance. 
 
4. On April 11, 2022, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing 


regarding the Applicant’s proposed zoning amendment.  The public hearing was preceded 
by the publication of a class 2 notice, and other notice as required by law.  


 
5. The Plan Commission found that the proposed zoning amendment is consistent with the 


City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and recommend approval of the proposed 
General Development Plan, subject to certain conditions.   


 
6. The Common Council has considered the Plan Commission’s recommendation, and finds 


that, subject to certain conditions, the proposed General Development Plan is consistent 
with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and has the potential for enhancing the 
use of the lands and increasing the City’s tax base. 


 
 


 
 
 
 







 
ORDINANCE 


 
The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows: 
 


1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance as if set 
forth in full. 
 


2. Subject to the conditions set forth in Section 6 below, the GDP is approved.  
 


3. No part of the lands zoned PD - Planned Development may be developed until a Specific 
Implementation Plan (SIP) has been approved by the City Plan Commission. 


 
4. The following exceptions to the otherwise applicable requirements are approved:  


 
• Sec. 78-105(5)(a)(8)b. M.  Maximum building height: 


 
PI District requirement: 40 feet maximum 
 
Requested exception: 49 feet maximum 
 


• Sec. 78-604(3)(d)  Parking lot landscaping islands: 
 


Code requirement:  Parking lot design shall employ interior landscaped islands 
with a minimum of 400 square feet at all parking aisle ends, and in addition 
shall provide a minimum of one landscaped island of a minimum of 400 square 
feet in each parking aisle for every 20 cars in that aisle. Aisle-end islands shall 
count toward meeting this requirement.  


 
Requested exception:   180 square-foot islands. 


 
5. The lands zoned PD - Planned Development shall be developed and used in full 


compliance with all standards and requirements in Chapter 78 of the City Code that apply 
to the specific comparable zoning district, except as flexibilities are expressly authorized 
in this ordinance or in an approved Specific Implementation Plan.  Chapter 78 of the City 
Code, this Ordinance and the approved Specific Implementation Plan will constitute the 
zoning regulations for the property, and may be enforced as any zoning regulation in the 
City of Stoughton.  A copy of this Ordinance and the Specific Implementation Plan shall 
be maintained and kept on file in the City of Stoughton Planning Office.  
 


6. As part of the specific implementation plan review and approval, the following 
requirements will need to be met: 


• Developer has dedicated all easements deemed necessary by the City or Stoughton 
Utilities to provide water, sanitary sewer, electric and other utility services needed 
to serve the lands in the GDP; 


• Developer has obtained approval by the City for a stormwater management plan 
and permit for development of the lands in the GDP; 


• Developer has obtained approval for the Urban Service Area Amendment; 
• Developer has obtained approval by the City for the Annexation; 
• Developer has obtained approval by the City for the CSM. 







 
7. This ordinance and exceptions provided for in Section 4 above shall take effect upon 


passage and publication pursuant to law.   
 
 


 
Dates 
Council Adopted:     
 
Mayor Approved:             
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
Published:     
 
Attest:               


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Emmi Roth GDP Ordinance.docx 







T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\041122\PC Info\Emmi Roth GDP Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  April 7, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the April 11, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and Common Council 


Meetings of April 26 and May 10, 2022  
 
Rezoning request for property located at the northeast corner of Williams Drive and Glacier 
Moraine Drive from Rural Holding to Planned Development – General Development Plan 
(GDP)  
Emmi Roth is proposing to rezone the above named property from Rural Holding to Planned 
Development – General Development Plan to allow some flexibility in development.  Flexibilities 
include an increase in building height and a reduction is the parking lot island requirement.   A 
public hearing and recommendation to Council is necessary.  The ordinance, staff review and 
rezoning documents are provided. 
 
 
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Hybrid Public Hearing on Monday, April 
11, 2022 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, to consider a proposed 
rezoning of the property at the NE corner of Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive.  The 
request is by Strand Associates for Emmi Roth and the property is currently owned by Moe 
Family Farms LLC.  The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from Rural Holding to 
Planned Development – General Development Plan.  The property description is as follows: 
 
Part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 and part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 
and part of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 and part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 
1/4 all in Section 32, Township 6 North, Range 11 East, Town of Pleasant Springs, Dane County, 
Wisconsin, more fully described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the South 1/4 corner of said Section 32; 
Thence N 0° 00' 27" W, 743.37 feet along the west line of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 
of said Section 32 to the point of beginning; 
Thence, S 89° 22' 48" W, 42.02 feet to the westerly right-of-way line of Williams Drive; 
Thence, N 00° 01' 58" W, 880.05 feet along said westerly right-of-way line; 
Thence, N 89° 22' 48" E, 42.42 feet to the west line of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of 
said Section 32; 
Thence, continuing N 89° 22' 48" E, 238.59 feet; 
Thence, N 00° 01' 58" W, 25.00 feet; 
Thence, N 89° 22' 48" E, 682.27 feet; 
Thence, S 00° 01' 58" E, 905.05 feet to the northerly right-of-way line of Glacier Moraine Drive; 
Thence, S 89° 22' 48" W, 921.25 feet along said northerly right-of-way line to the point of 
beginning; 
Containing 864,744 square feet (19.852 acres), more or less including areas within Williams 
Drive. 
 
See additional information including location map at: http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-
commission/ 
 
In-Person: Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 


321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 


Virtual:  You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via Zoom 
https://zoom.us/j/92518762219?pwd=VDAzKzd1Y0RWRkp3S3d0OFJRb2FtUT09 
 
Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 925 1876 2219  Passcode: 788399 
 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written 
comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 
For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-
646-0421.   
 
Published March 24 and 31, 2022 Hub 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Rezoning Notices\Planning GDP -  Emmi Roth Notice.doc 



https://zoom.us/j/92518762219?pwd=VDAzKzd1Y0RWRkp3S3d0OFJRb2FtUT09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





JDT:tll:cdj\S:\MAD\3700--3799\3701\021\Correspondence\_City\2022.03.28 PDP_GDP Materials\Application Letter.docx 


April 6, 2022 


Mr. Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 
City of Stoughton Planning Development Services 
207 South Forrest Street 
Stoughton, WI 53589 


Re: Industrial Food Production and Storage Facility (Development) 
Emmi-Roth USA (Applicant) 


Dear Mr. Stacey: 


Strand Associates, Inc.® (Strand) is representing the Applicant, and, on behalf of the Applicant, Strand 
is submitting this Planned Development Application (Application) for the proposed Development for the 
purposes of developing the agricultural property located at the northeast corner of Williams Drive and 
Glacier Moraine Drive in Stoughton, Wisconsin. 


The Applicant is currently under contract to purchase approximately 19 acres at this site for development 
of a food production and associated office facility at this location. The Development includes an 
approximately 134,000-square-foot food production and storage facility which includes production 
space, cold and dry storage, shipping and receiving docks, and a two-story portion for office 
administration and employee welfare areas. The two-story office building will be constructed facing 
Williams Drive. Truck staging and dock areas will be located on the south side of the building with truck 
access from Glacier Moraine Drive. Employee vehicle access and parking will be from Williams Drive. 
A concept plan view of the building, parking, and truck access is enclosed. 


The Development is the only occupant of the site. The total building footprint is approximately 3.33 acres 
with approximately 5.73 of total impervious area. Approximately 12.39 acres of open space remains in 
the Development. 


The building is proposed to be constructed of a steel structure supporting a white insulated metal 
panel (IMP) exterior wall system for the cold storage and production portions of the building. Stained 
insulated pre-cast concrete wall panels are proposed for the two-story office and utility chiller room. IMP 
is a durable, high-performing thermal envelope which provides an interior finish compliant with the 
Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP) standards (required for food production and storage facilities) in a 
single-wall system that can be efficiently installed in the vertical orientation. 


Additionally, the City of Stoughton municipal code requires that the parking lot islands be a minimum 
of 400 square feet at all parking lot ends, and in addition, shall provide a minimum of one landscaped 
island of a minimum of 400 square feet in each parking aisle for every 20 automobiles. The Applicant 
requests relief from the island size requirement associated with the Zone PI standard, as the size is larger 
than typical parking lot island size requirements and affects the layout and sizing of the proposed parking 
lot. 


Because of the nature of the process and product produced in the facility, the Development requires a 
significant amount of cold storage area for efficient operation. Investigation of multiple storage rack 
configurations, room sizes, and ceiling heights has revealed the most economical layout for both 
construction and operation is an approximately 200- by 300-foot area with a 46-foot clear height, which 
requires an overall building height of approximately 49 feet. The remaining production areas of the 


EXHIBIT   A







Mr. Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 
City of Stoughton Planning Development Services 
Page 2 
April 6, 2022 


 


 


 
JDT:tll:cdj\S:\MAD\3700--3799\3701\021\Correspondence\_City\2022.03.28 PDP_GDP Materials\Application Letter.docx 


facility have a planned building height of approximately 38 feet while the two-story office will have an 
approximate building height of 26 feet. All portions of the facility will incorporate applicable 
code-required fire protection elements including an automatic fire suppression sprinkler system 
throughout the building as well as any additional firefighting mechanisms required by the fire 
department. The Applicant requests relief from the height limitation of 40 feet associated with the 
Zone PI standard. 
 


In general, the proposed planned development aligns with the City of Stoughton (City) Comprehensive 
Plan goal to strengthen and diversify the nonresidential tax base and employment opportunities. Upon 
completion of the project, approximately 140 jobs will be created with the potential for additional job 
creation after planned near-future expansion of the facility. For this specific location, the Development 
supports the City’s Comprehensive Plan policy to provide efficient and logical expansion areas for the 
City’s industrial parks and to provide for new commercial development opportunities on the east side of 
the community. 
 


Increasing the height of the cold storage area to 49 feet allows for the most efficient organization of the 
building program and minimizes the building footprint. The proposed layout and height increase: 
1) improves construction efficiency leading to reduced on-site waste, time on site, and embodied energy 
and carbon; 2) increases the amount of site area for planned native plantings; and 3) allows for efficient 
expansion and adaptive reuse opportunities due to the rectangular shape and standard bay spacing. 
Additionally, the project will incorporate infrastructure for a future roof-mounted solar array on the 
38-foot-high production space, contributing further to the City’s goals for sustainable development.  
 


In summary, the following is a list of requested exceptions based on the PI district requirements. 
 


1. Maximum building height to be increase from 40 feet to 49 feet. 
 


2. Parking lot island size to be decreased from 400 square feet to 180 square feet. 
 


Generally, signage will follow the requirements of Zone PI. Signage is expected to include a company 
sign, meeting the zoning size requirements, attached to the building along with a monument sign closer 
to the intersection of Glacier Moraine and Williams Drive. The general location of these is indicated on 
the enclosed drawings. 
 


Based on the previously mentioned information, the Applicant submits this Application for consideration 
and approval of the proposed Planned Development and requests support of the Development. 
 


Thank you for the consideration of the enclosed Planned Development Application and associated 
conceptual drawings. Please contact me at 608-251-4843 if you need any additional information or if you 
have questions concerning this Application. 
 


Sincerely, 
 


STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC.® 
 
 
 
 
James D. Ternus, P.E. 
 


Enclosures 







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


City of Stoughton Application for Planned Development (PD) Review and Approval
(Requirements per Section 78-914)


Applicant Name: _______________________________________________________________


Applicant Address: ______________________________________________________________


Applicant Phone and Email: _______________________________________________________


Property Owner Name (if different than applicant): _____________________________________


Property Owner Phone: __________________________________________________________


Subject Property Address: _________________________________________________________


This form is designed to be used by the Applicant as a guide to submitting a complete application for a
planned development and by the City to process said application. Parts II is to be used by the Applicant
to submit a complete application; Parts I - III are to be used by the City as a guide when processing said
application.


I. Recordation of Administrative Procedures for City Use


Application form filed with Zoning Administrator Date: _______________


Application fee of $_____ received by Zoning Administrator Date: _______________


II. Application Submittal Packet Requirements for Applicant Use


PD Process Step 1: Pre-application


Step 1 does not require the submittal of an application packet; however, Steps 2-4 do require submittal
of all application materials to the Zoning Administrator prior to Plan Commission review. This step is
not mandatory but optional at the discretion of the applicant or Zoning Administrator.


 A. Contact the Zoning Administrator to place an informal discussion item for the PD on the Plan
Commission agenda (if deemed necessary by the applicant or Zoning Administrator). No details
beyond the name of the Applicant and the identification of the discussion item as a PD is required to
be given in the agenda.


 B. Engage in an informal discussion with the Plan Commission regarding the potential PD. Appropriate
topics may include: location, project themes and images, general mix of dwelling unit types and/or
land uses being considered, approximate residential densities, and non-residential intensities, general
treatment of natural features, general relationship to nearby properties and public streets, and
relationship to the Comprehensive Plan.


NOTE: Points of discussion and conclusions reached in this stage of the process shall in no way be
binding upon the Applicant or the City, but should be considered as the informal, non-binding basis for
proceeding to the next step.


PD Process Step 2: Concept Plan


The Applicant shall provide a draft application for staff and Planning Commission review as follows:


 A. Provide Zoning Administrator with draft PD Concept Plan Submittal Packet for
determination of completeness prior to placing the proposed PD on the Plan Commission
agenda for Concept Plan review. The submittal packet shall contain all of the following items:
 (1) A general written description of proposed PD including the following:


 General project themes and images.







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


 The general mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses.


 Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described by
dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio.


 The general treatment of natural features.


 The general relationship to nearby properties and public streets.


 The general relationship of the project to the Comprehensive Plan.


 An initial draft list of zoning standards which will not be met by the proposed
PD and the location(s) in which they apply and, a complete list of zoning
standards which will be more than met by the proposed PD and the location(s) in
which they apply. Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to provide the
Plan Commission with information necessary to determine the relative merits of
the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and in regard to the
mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design flexibility.


 (3) A written description of potentially requested exemption(s) from the requirements of the
underlying zoning district, in the following order:
1. Land Use Exemptions


2. Density and Intensity Exemptions


3. Bulk Exemptions


4. Landscaping Exceptions


5. Parking and Loading Requirements Exceptions


 (4) A conceptual plan drawing (at 11" x 17") of the general land use layout and the general
location of major public streets and/or private drives. The Applicant may submit
copies of a larger version of the plan in addition to the 11" x 17" reduction.


PD Process Step 3: General Development Plan (GDP)


The Applicant shall submit an application for staff and Planning Commission review as follows:


 A. Provide Zoning Administrator with a draft GDP Submittal Packet for determination of
completeness prior to placing the proposed PD on the Plan Commission agenda for GDP
review. The submittal packet shall contain all of the following items:
 (2) A map of the subject property for which the PD is proposed:


 Clearly indicating the current zoning of the subject property and its surroundings,
and the jurisdiction(s) which maintains that control.


 Map and all its parts clearly reproducible with a photocopier.


 Map size of 11" x 17" and map scale not less than one inch equals 800 feet.


 All lot dimensions of the subject property provided.


 Graphic scale and north arrow provided.


 (3) A general written description of proposed PD including:
 General project themes and images.


 The general mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses.


 Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described by
dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio.


 The general treatment of natural features.







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


 The general relationship to nearby properties and public streets.


 The general relationship of the project to the Comprehensive Plan.


 A statement of Rationale as to why PD zoning is proposed. This shall identify
barriers that the Applicant perceives in the form of requirements of standard
zoning districts and opportunities for community betterment the Applicant
suggests are available through the proposed PD zoning.


 A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met by the proposed PD
and the location(s) in which they apply and a complete list of zoning standards
which will be more than met by the proposed PD and the location(s) in which
they apply shall be identified. Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to
provide the Plan Commission with information necessary to determine the
relative merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and
in regard to the mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design
flexibility.


 A written description of potentially requested exemptions from the requirements
of the underlying zoning district, in the following order:


1. Land Use Exemptions.


2. Density and Intensity Exemptions.


3. Bulk Exemptions.


4. Landscaping Exceptions.


5. Parking and Loading Requirements Exceptions.


 (4) A General Development Plan Drawing at a minimum scale of 1"=100' (11" x 17"
electronic copy shall also be provided) of the proposed project showing at least the
following information in sufficient detail to make an evaluation against criteria for
approval:
 A conceptual plan drawing (at 11" x 17") of the general land use layout and the


general location of major public streets and/or private drives.


 Location of recreational and open space areas and facilities and specifically
describing those that are to be reserved or dedicated for public acquisition and
use.


 Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the approximate areas
of large development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape surface
area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans required by
the Plan Commission or Common Council.


 Notations relating the written information provided in (3), above to specific areas
on the GDP Drawing.


 (5) General conceptual landscaping plan for subject property, noting approximate locations of
foundation, street, yard and paving, landscaping, and the compliance of development
with all landscaping requirements of this Ordinance (except as noted in the listing of
exceptions) and the use of bufferyards.


 (6) A general signage plan for the project, including all
 Project identification signs.


 Concepts for public fixtures and signs (street light fixtures and/or poles or street
sign faces and/or poles) which are proposed to vary from City standards or
common practices.







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


 (7) Written justification for the proposed Planned Development. (See Section 78-905 for
requirements of the conditional use procedure.)


PD Step 4: Specific Implementation Plan (SIP)


The Applicant shall submit an application for staff and Planning Commission review as follows:


 A. After the effective date of the rezoning to PD/GDP, the Applicant may file an application for
the proposed SIP with the Plan Commission. This submittal packet shall contain the following
items, prior to its acceptance by the Zoning Administrator and placing the item on the Plan
Commission agenda for SIP review.
 (2) A map of the subject property for which the PD is proposed:


 Clearly indicating the current zoning of the subject property and its environs, and
the jurisdiction(s) which maintains that control.


 Map and all its parts clearly reproducible with a photocopier.


 Map size of 11" by 17" and map scale not less than one inch equals 800 feet.


 All lot dimensions of the subject property provided.


 Graphic scale and north arrow provided.


 (3) A general written description of proposed SIP, including:
 Specific project themes and images.


 The specific mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses.


 Specific residential densities and non-residential intensities as described by
dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio.


 The specific treatment of natural features.


 The specific relationship to nearby properties and public streets.


 A Statement of Rationale as to why PD zoning is proposed identifying perceived
barriers in the form of requirements of standard zoning districts and
opportunities for community betterment through the proposed PD zoning.


 A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met by the proposed SIP
and the location(s) in which they apply and a complete list of zoning standards
which will be more than met by the proposed SIP and the location(s) in which
they apply shall be identified. Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to
provide the Plan Commission with information necessary to determine the
relative merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and
in regard to the mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design
flexibility.


 (4) A Specific Implementation Plan drawing at a minimum scale of 1"=100' (and electronic
copy at 11" x 17") of the proposed project showing at least the following information
in sufficient detail:
 An SIP conforming to all requirements of Section 78-908(3). If the proposed PD


is a large or group development (per Section 78-205 (11) or (12)) also provide a
proposed preliminary plat or conceptual plat.


 Location of recreational and open space areas and facilities specifically describing
those that are to be reserved or dedicated for public acquisition and use.


 Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the precise areas of all
development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape surface







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans required by
the Plan Commission or Common Council.


 Notations relating the written information (3), above to specific areas on the
GDP Drawing.


 (5) A landscaping plan for subject property, specifying the location, species, and installed
size of all trees and shrubs. Include a chart which provides a cumulative total for each
species, type and required location (foundation, yard, street, paved area or bufferyard)
of all trees and shrubs.


 (6) A series of building elevations for the entire exterior of all buildings in the PD, including
detailed notes as to the materials and colors proposed.


 (7) A general signage plan including all project identification signs, concepts for public
fixtures and signs (such as street light fixtures and/or poles or street sign faces and/or
poles), and large or group development signage themes which are proposed to vary
from City standards or common practices.


 (8) A general outline of the intended organizational structure for a property owners association, if
any; deed restrictions and provisions for private provision of common services, if any.


 (9) A written description which demonstrates the full consistency of the proposed SIP with
the approved GDP.


 (10)A written description of any and all variations between the requirements of the applicable
PD/GDP zoning district and the proposed SIP development.


III. Final Application Packet Information for City Use


PD Step 3: General Development Plan (GDP)


The process for review and approval of the PD shall be identical to that for conditional use permits per Section
78-905 of the Zoning Ordinance and (if land is to be divided) to that for preliminary and final plats of subdivision
per the Municipal Code. All portions of an approved PD/GDP not fully developed within five years of final
Common Council approval shall expire, and no additional PD-based development shall be permitted. The
Common Council may extend this five years period by up to five additional years via a majority vote following a
public hearing.


Notified Neighboring Property Owners (within 300 feet) Date: ______________


Notified Neighboring Township Clerks (within 1,000 feet) Date: ______________


Class 2 legal notice sent to official newspaper by City Clerk Date: ______________


Class 2 legal notice published on ___________ and ____________ Date: ______________



mstacey

Cross-Out







COUNTY HIGHWAY B


W
IL


LI
AM


S 
D


R
IV


E
GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


N
O


R
TH


 PAIG
E STR


EET


YAHARA RIVER


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


KRIEDEMAN DRIVE


HYLAND DRIVE


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132490010


P
R


O
P


O
S


E
D


 S
IT


E
 I


N
FO


R
M


A
T


IO
N


 M
A


P


3


A S S O C I A T E S®


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


E
M


M
I-


R
O


T
H


 U
S


A
, P


R
O


JE
C


T
 D


E
LT


A


C
IT


Y
 O


F 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


3701.021


MAY


LEGEND:


PROPOSED SITE



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200'



AutoCAD SHX Text

400'







Residential and Commercial Site Design Consultants



AutoCAD SHX Text

36"



AutoCAD SHX Text

16"



AutoCAD SHX Text

12"



AutoCAD SHX Text

12"



AutoCAD SHX Text

12"



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

\ST-17-22\ST17BASE.DWG



AutoCAD SHX Text

EMMI-ROTH USA, PROJECT DELTA



AutoCAD SHX Text

QUAM ENGINEERING, LLC



AutoCAD SHX Text

Phone (608) 838-7750;  Fax (608) 838-7752



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATED: MARCH 28, 2022



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET: C-1



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

4604 Siggelkow Road, Suite A - McFarland, Wisconsin 53558



AutoCAD SHX Text

QUAM ENGINEERING, LLC 4604 Siggelkow Road, Suite A - McFarland, WI 53558  (608) 838-7750 4604 Siggelkow Road, Suite A - McFarland, WI 53558  (608) 838-77504604 Siggelkow Road, Suite A - McFarland, WI 53558  (608) 838-7750



AutoCAD SHX Text

www.quamengineering.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

50



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WILLIAMS DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED BUILDING



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET POND



AutoCAD SHX Text

INFILTRATION POND



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED OFFICE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY/PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

20' WIDE FIRE LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

MONUMENT SIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED WALL SIGN







Residential and Commercial Site Design Consultants



AutoCAD SHX Text

36"



AutoCAD SHX Text

16"



AutoCAD SHX Text

12"



AutoCAD SHX Text

12"



AutoCAD SHX Text

12"



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

WB-67



AutoCAD SHX Text

AASHTO 2018 (US)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

18"



AutoCAD SHX Text

\ST-17-22\ST17BASE.DWG



AutoCAD SHX Text

EMMI-ROTH USA, PROJECT DELTA



AutoCAD SHX Text

QUAM ENGINEERING, LLC



AutoCAD SHX Text

Phone (608) 838-7750;  Fax (608) 838-7752



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATED: MARCH 28, 2022



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET: C-2



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

4604 Siggelkow Road, Suite A - McFarland, Wisconsin 53558



AutoCAD SHX Text

QUAM ENGINEERING, LLC 4604 Siggelkow Road, Suite A - McFarland, WI 53558  (608) 838-7750 4604 Siggelkow Road, Suite A - McFarland, WI 53558  (608) 838-77504604 Siggelkow Road, Suite A - McFarland, WI 53558  (608) 838-7750



AutoCAD SHX Text

www.quamengineering.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

50



AutoCAD SHX Text

100



AutoCAD SHX Text

GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WILLIAMS DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED BUILDING



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET POND



AutoCAD SHX Text

INFILTRATION POND



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED OFFICE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY/PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHORT GRASS PRAIRIE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHORT GRASS PRAIRIE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

CANOPY TREE (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

NATIVE PLANTING GROUPS (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

ORNAMENTAL TREE (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

5' STONE MAINTENANCE STRIP



AutoCAD SHX Text

5' STONE MAINTENANCE STRIP



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

MEADOW/WET PRAIRIE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCREEN PLANTINGS (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

NATIVE FOUNDATION PLANTINGS (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

CANOPY TREE (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

CANOPY TREE (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHORT GRASS PRAIRIE



AutoCAD SHX Text

EVERGREEN TREE (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

5' STONE MAINTENANCE STRIP



AutoCAD SHX Text

5' STONE MAINTENANCE STRIP



AutoCAD SHX Text

20' WIDE FIRE LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text

POSSIBLE ON-GOING AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

MONUMENT SIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED WALL SIGN







COUNTY HIGHWAY B


W
IL


LI
AM


S 
D


R
IV


E
GLACIER MORAINE DRIVE


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


N
O


R
TH


 PAIG
E STR


EET


YAHARA RIVER


BUSINESS PARK CIRCLE


KRIEDEMAN DRIVE


HYLAND DRIVE


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132490010


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132485601


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132490010


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132485601


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132495020


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132481105


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132485307


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132383202


1680 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132395002


1600 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132492402


1588 Williams Drive
PARCEL # 061132492310


381 E. Main Street
PARCEL # 061132492702


125 County Highway B
PARCEL # 061132380205


125 County Highway B
PARCEL # 061132380107


125 County Highway B
PARCEL # 061132380009


P
R


O
P


O
S


E
D


 U
R


B
A


N
 S


E
R


V
IC


E
 A


R
E


A


1


A S S O C I A T E S®


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


E
M


M
I-


R
O


T
H


 U
S


A
, P


R
O


JE
C


T
 D


E
LT


A


C
IT


Y
 O


F 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


3701.021


MAY


LEGEND:


EXISTING URBAN SERVICE
AREA


PROPOSED URBAN
SERVICE AREA
AMENDMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200'



AutoCAD SHX Text

400'







E
X


IS
T


IN
G


 L
A


N
D


 U
S


E
 M


A
P


2


A S S O C I A T E S®


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


E
M


M
I-


R
O


T
H


 U
S


A
, P


R
O


JE
C


T
 D


E
LT


A


C
IT


Y
 O


F 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


3701.021


MAY


LEGEND:


PROPOSED URBAN
SERVICE AREA
AMENDMENT (CURRENTLY
ZONED RURAL HOLDING)



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

200'



AutoCAD SHX Text

400'







[- 1 -] 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON       RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT        DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589    (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning          fax: (608) 873-5519 


       
 


April 7, 2022 
 
Strand Associates 
James Ternus 
910 West Wingra Drive 
Madison, WI. 53715 
 
 
Dear Mr. Ternus: 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed PD-GDP - Planned Development – General 
Development Plan to develop approximately 20 acres for Emmi-Roth at the northeast corner of 
Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive.  A public hearing is scheduled for April 11, 2022 for 
the proposed rezoning.  The following items are identified for your review.   
 
1. General Development Plan requirements per zoning code section 78-914(7) are as follows: 


A. A location map of the subject property as depicted on the planned land use map shall be 
provided.  Provided  


B. A map of subject property showing all lands within 300 feet of the boundaries of the 
subject property, together with the names and addresses of the owners of all lands on 
said map including indication of current zoning of subject property.  Staff Completed 


C. A general description of the general development plan including: 
a. General project themes and images; Provided 
b. The general mix of dwelling units and/or land uses; N/A 
c. Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described 


by dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio; 
Provided 


d. General treatment of natural resources; N/A 
e. General relationship to nearby properties and streets; Provided 
f. The general relationship of the project to the comprehensive plan.  Provided 
g. A statement of rationale as to why the PD zoning is proposed which identifies 


barriers the applicant perceives in the form of requirements of standard zoning 
districts and opportunities for community betterment the applicant suggests are 
available through the proposed PD zoning;  Provided 


h. A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met and which will be 
more than met by the proposed PD and the locations in which they apply and a 
complete list of zoning standards which will be more than met by the proposed 
PD and the location in which they apply shall be identified, as compared with 
the most comparable zoning district.  Essentially, the purpose of this listing 
shall be to provide the plan commission with information necessary to 
determine the relative merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus 



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning





[- 2 -] 
 


public benefit and in regard to the mitigation of potentially adverse impacts 
created by design flexibility. Provided 


i. A written description of potentially requested exemptions from the 
requirements of the most comparable zoning district, in the following order:  


a) Land use exemptions: N/A 
b) Density and intensity exemptions: N/A 
c) Bulk exemptions: See below 
d) Landscaping exceptions: See below 
e) Parking and loading requirements exceptions: N/A 


 
The following is the list of requested exceptions based on the PI – Planned Industrial 
district requirements: 


• Maximum building height from 40 feet to 49 feet. 
• Parking lot island size from 400 square feet to 180 square feet. 


 
D. A general development plan drawing shall be provided with at least the following 


information in sufficient detail to make an evaluation against criteria for approval:  
a. A conceptual site drawing of the general land use layout and the general 


location of major public streets and/or private drives;  Provided  
b. Location of recreational and open spaces areas and facilities; N/A 
c. Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the approximate area 


of all development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the 
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape 
surface area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans 
required by the plan commission or common council; and N/A 


E. A general conceptual landscaping plan for subject property, noting approximate 
locations of foundation, street, yard, paving and landscaping.   Provided 


F. A general signage plan for the project, including all project identification signs and 
concepts for public fixtures and signs, such as street light fixtures and/or poles or street 
sign faces and/or poles) which are proposed to vary from City standards or common 
practices. Provided 


G. Written justification for the proposed planned development. The applicant shall use the 
requirements of the zoning map amendment procedure (subsections 78.903(4) (c) 1 
through 3) to develop said written justification.  Provided 
The process for review and approval of the GDP shall be identical to that for zoning 
map amendments per section 78-903 of this chapter and (if land is to be divided) to 
that for preliminary and final plats of subdivision per the Municipal Code.  


All portions of an approved PD/GDP not fully developed within five years of final 
common council approval shall expire, and no additional PD-based development shall 
be permitted. The common council may extend this five years period by up to five 
additional years via a majority vote following a public hearing. Completed portions of 
the PD/GDP shall retain the PD/GDP status.  


 



https://www.municode.com/library/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-903AMOFZOMA





[- 3 -] 
 


2. The following principal and conditional uses are allowable within the Planned Industrial 
district:   
 
Office.  Description: Office land uses include all exclusively indoor land uses whose primary 
functions are the handling of information or administrative services. Such land uses do not 
typically provide services directly to customers on a walk-in or on-appointment basis.  
Parking required:  1 space per 300 square feet of gross floor area. 
 
Distribution center.  Description: Distribution centers are facilities oriented to the short-term 
indoor storage and possible repackaging and reshipment of materials involving the activities and 
products of a single user. 
Parking required:  1 space per employee on largest workshift. 
Note:  There are no residentially zoned properties adjacent to this property to trigger any 
additional zoning requirements. 
 


3. The plan should indicate the urbanization of the east side of Williams Drive.  This should 
include addition of curb and gutter, storm sewer/inlets, asphalt path extension (10 feet wide), 
and fire hydrant adjustments if necessary.  A 10 foot wide terrace is suggested between the curb 
and gutter and path. 
 


4. All off-street parking areas designed to have head-in parking within six and one-half feet of any 
lot line shall provide a tire bumper or curb of adequate height and which is properly located to 
ensure that no part of any vehicle will project beyond the required setbacks.  We suggest curb 
and gutter be used in parking lots and at key access points at a minimum.  Curb and gutter will 
help control drainage, but will also better define hard surface areas and minimize disturbance of 
turf areas. 


 
5. All driveways within the right-of-way shall be concrete.  


 
6. Since there is a paved path on the south side of Glacier Moraine Drive, we are recommending 


no sidewalk along the north side of Glacier Moraine Drive however, a 5-foot wide, 6” think 
sidewalk section is still required through the access drive on Glacier Moraine Drive placed 6” 
out from the property line.  


 
7. Curb ramps and path crossings of driveways shall be concrete. 
 
8. Driveway widths shall be evaluated for truck turning movements.  Code allows 30 feet of width 


at the property line and 35 feet at the curb.  The Plan Commission has the ability to approve a 
wider with if necessary for truck turning movements. 


 
9. Provide sidewalk connection between asphalt path along Williams Drive and building. 


 
10. Signage, trees and any plantings at the access drives and at the Williams Drive and Glacier 


Moraine intersection shall meet all (10-foot) vision corner requirements. 
 


 
 







[- 4 -] 
 


 
 
 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


 


 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


s:\planning\developments\emmi roth\gdp materials\emmi roth gdp review 2022.doc 





		10 O-12-2022 Emmi Roth GDP Ordinance

		10a Emmi Roth PD-GDP

		C1-Concept Site 03-28-2022.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		Concept





		C2-Concept Landscape 03-28-2022.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		Landscape





		Planned Development Review and Approval Site Maps.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		PROPOSED URBAN SERVICE AREA

		Plot





		3 EXISTING LAND USE MAP

		Sheets and Views

		EXISTING LAND USE MAP

		Plot







		3 PROPOSED SITE INFORMATION MAP

		Sheets and Views

		EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MAP

		Plot













		Applicant Name: Strand Associates, Inc. - Jim Ternus

		Applicant Address: 910 West Wingra Drive, Madison, WI  53715

		Applicant Phone and Email: 608-251-4843, jim.ternus@strand.com

		Property Owner Name if different than applicant: Emmi-Roth USA

		Property Owner Phone: Rob Fisher 850-251-8176

		Subject Property Address: NE Corner of Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive

		Date: 3/16/2022

		Application fee of: 440

		Date_2: 3/18/22

		Check Box43: Yes

		Check Box44: Yes

		Check Box45: Yes

		Check Box46: Off

		Check Box47: Off

		Check Box48: Yes

		Check Box49: Yes

		Check Box50: Yes

		Check Box51: Yes

		Check Box57: Yes

		Check Box58: Yes

		Check Box59: Yes

		Check Box60: Yes

		Check Box52: Yes

		Check Box53: Yes

		Check Box61: Yes

		Check Box62: Yes

		Check Box63: Yes

		Check Box54: Yes

		Check Box55: Yes

		Check Box56: Yes

		Check Box64: Yes

		Check Box65: Yes

		Check Box66: Yes

		Check Box67: Yes

		Check Box68: Yes

		Check Box69: Yes

		Check Box70: Yes

		Check Box71: Yes

		Check Box72: Yes

		Check Box73: Off

		Check Box74: Yes

		Check Box75: Yes

		Check Box76: Yes

		Check Box77: Yes

		Check Box78: Yes

		Check Box79: Off

		Check Box80: Yes

		Check Box82: Off

		Check Box88: Off

		Check Box81: Off

		Check Box96: Off

		Check Box83: Off

		Check Box84: Off

		Check Box85: Off

		Check Box86: Off

		Check Box87: Off

		Check Box89: Off

		Check Box90: Off

		Check Box91: Off

		Check Box92: Off

		Check Box93: Off

		Check Box94: Off

		Check Box95: Off

		Check Box97: Off

		Check Box98: Off

		Check Box99: Off

		Check Box101: Off

		Check Box102: Off

		Check Box103: Off

		Check Box104: Off

		Check Box105: Off

		Check Box106: Off

		Class 2 legal notice published on: 3/24/22

		and: 3/31/22

		Date_3: 3/21/22

		Date_4: 4/5/22

		Date_5: 3/16/22

		Date_6: 

		Check Box100: Off








T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\April 26, 2022\12 O-13-2022 Amending Ch. 78 and 58.docx 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
Amending Sections 78-920 and 58-2 of the Stoughton Municipal Code relating to  


the abatement of zoning violations. 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends Common Council approval 7 - 0 
Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O-13-2022 Date Introduced:  April 26, 2022 


 
The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 
 
1. Section 78-920 of the Stoughton Municipal Code is amended to provide as follows: 


 
Sec. 78-920 Violations and penalties. 
 


(1) Violation of this chapter.  It isshall be unlawful to construct or use any land, engage in 
any development activity (including disruption of protected vegetation), or construct or 
use any structure, land or water in violation of any of the provisions of this chapter, or 
otherwise neglect, refuse or fail to comply with this chapters requirements.  Any person 
who violates or fails to comply with any of the provisions of the chapter shall, upon 
conviction thereof, be subject to the penalties set forth in subection (2),  below, and in 
addition, shall pay all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney and other fees 
involved in the case.  Each day a violation exists or continues shall constitute a separate 
offense.   
 


(2) Penalties.  Any person, firm or corporation who violates any provision of this chapter 
fails to comply with the provisions of this Code or any order of the zoning 
administrator shall, upon convictionfiscation thereofore, be subject to a forfeiture 
pursuant to section 1-3 of this Code.forfeit a fee according to the city’s current deposit 
schedule.  Each day a violation exists or continues shall constitute a separate offense.   


 
(3) Stoughton promulgated correction of violation.  In addition to any other penalty 


imposed by this Subchapter for a violation of the provisions of the chapter, the city 
reserves and maintains the continued right to abate violations of this chapter. 


 
 . Hazardous condition caused by violation of this chapter.   If the zoning 


administrator determines that a violation of this chapter exists, and further 
determines that the nature of such violation poses a great and immediate danger 
to the public health, safety, peace, morals or decency, the zoning administrator 
shall cause the violation to be abated. Costs associated with said abatement shall 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\April 26, 2022\12 O-13-2022 Amending Ch. 78 and 58.docx 
 


be charged to the owner of the property on which said violation has occurred per 
subsection (c), below. The zoning administrator is hereby authorized to abate a 
violation of this chapter. 
 


 . Non-hazardous condition caused by violation of this chapter.  If the zoning 
administrator determines that a violation of this chapter exists, and further 
determines that the nature of such violation is not such as to pose great and 
immediate danger to the public health, safety, peace, morals or decency, the 
zoning administrator shall serve written notice by registered mail on the current 
owner of the property (as indicated by current City of Stoughton tax records) on 
which said violation is occurring to remove said violation within ten working 
days. If such violation is not removed within such ten working days, the zoning 
administrator shall cause the violation to be abated per subsection (a), above. 
Costs associated with said abatement shall be charged to the owner of the 
property on which said violation has occurred per subsection (c), below. 


 
 . Cost of abatement. In addition to any forfeiture imposed by this subchapter for a 


violation of the provisions of this chapter, the cost of abating a violation of this 
chapter per subsections (a) and/or (b), above, may be collected as a debt from 
the owner of the property on which said violation has occurred. An account of 
the expenses incurred by the city to abate the violation shall be kept and such 
expenses may be charged to and paid by the property owner. Notice of the bill 
for abatement of the violation shall be mailed to the last known address of said 
property owner by Registered Mail, and shall be payable within 30 calendar 
days from the receipt thereof. Within 60 days after such costs and expenses are 
incurred and remain unpaid, the city clerk shall enter such charges onto the tax 
roll as a special tax as provided by State Statute 66.615(5). 


 
2. Section 58-2 of the of the Stoughton Municipal Code is amended to provide as follows: 
 
Sec. 58-2.  Public nuisance defined. 


A public nuisance is a thing, act, occupation, condition or use of property which shall 
continue for such length of time as to: 
Any of the following is a public nuisance:   


(a) Any act, occupation, condition or use of property which shall continue for such length of 
time as to:  
(1) Substantially annoy, injure or endanger the comfort, health, repose or safety of the 


public.  
(2) In any way render the public insecure in life or in the use of property.  
(3) Greatly offend the public morals or decency.  
(4) Unlawfully and substantially interfere with, obstruct, or tend to obstruct or render 


dangerous for passage any street, alley, highway, navigable body of water or other 
public way or the use of public property.  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\April 26, 2022\12 O-13-2022 Amending Ch. 78 and 58.docx 
 


(b)  A violation of this Chapter 58. 
(c) A violation of Section 10-318. 
(d) A violation of this Code that continues for more than one day, or that is repeated more than 


one time. 
 
3. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 
 


Dates 
 
Council Adopted:   
 
Mayor Approved:            
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
 
Published:    
 
Attest:             


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 







T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\041122\PC Info\78-920 and 58-2 Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  March 24, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the April 11, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and  


Common Council Meetings of April 26 and May 10, 2022. 
 
Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-920 and 58-2, relating to the abatement of 
zoning violations. 
This ordinance amendment is proposed by City Attorney Matt Dregne to clean up the abatement of 
zoning violations language in the ordinances to allow staff to more effectively abate violations.  A 
public hearing and recommendation to Council is necessary.  The ordinance is provided.   
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/



		12 O-13-2022 Amending Ch. 78 and 58

		12a Ordinance Amending Ch. 78 and 58






 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE  


STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve an amendment to the Water Utility 


2022 Capital Improvement Plan to fund the 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee recommended Common Council approval 5 – 0 on 5/4/22. 


 
Fiscal Impact: $0.00 


 
File Number: 


 
R-100-2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
May 10, 2022 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, at its December 20, 2021 meeting, the Stoughton Utilities Committee approved the 


Stoughton Utilities five-year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), and  


WHEREAS, water main abandonment projects were included on Academy Street, Giles Street, and West 


South Street in a total of $180,000.00, and 


WHEREAS, the public bidding for the full street reconstruction projects resulted in a low bid where the 


water utility allocation of the project totaled $240,092.25, and 


WHEREAS, staff recommends only awarding the base bid for the abandonment of water main on 


Academy Street in the amount of $187,742.25, and  


WHEREAS, staff has proposed to amend the Capital Improvement Plan to increase the Academy Street 


project cost, eliminate the Giles Street main abandonment project and reallocate those funds to the 


Academy Street Project, as well as reallocate portions of other project funds in a total of $62,742.25 to 


the Academy Street Project, and 


WHEREAS, the amendment will result in a total overall increase of $0.00 to the 2022 Capital 


Improvement Plan, and 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met on May 4, 2022 to consider and approve the proposed 


amendment to the Stoughton Utilities Water Five Year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan in the total 


amount of $0.00 to fund the 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 base bid, and 


recommended approval of the CIP amendment to the Stoughton Common Council, now therefore 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the Stoughton Utilities Water 


Five Year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan be amended in the total amount of $0.00 to fund the 


2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 base bid. 


  







Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    


Mayor Timothy Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  


 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, May 4, 2022 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  1 


Location: Virtual Participation: GoToMeeting ID 472-256-509 


Members Present: Citizen Member David Erdman (Chair), Alderperson Regina Hirsch, Alderperson 


Fred Hundt, Mayor Tim Swadley, Alderperson Joyce Tikalsky, 


Excused: Citizen Member John Kallas (Vice-Chair), Citizen Member Dustin Thoren 


Absent: None 


Others Present: Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Finance 


Manager Shannon Statz, Stoughton Utilities Director Jill Weiss 


Call to Order:  Chairperson Erdman called the regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting to order at 5:00 


p.m. with a quorum present. 


Public Comments:  There were no public comments. 


Amendment to the Water Utility 2022 Capital Improvement Plan to Fund the 2022 Academy Street 


Reconstruction Contract 1-2022:  Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that water utility costs for 


the 2022 main abandonment projects had come in higher than budgeted.  Staff will be proposing that the base 


bid be accepted at a cost of $187,742.25 without the bid alternatives.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Hundt, the motion seconded by Tikalsky, to approve an amendment to the Stoughton Utilities Water 


Five Year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan in the total amount of $0.00 to fund the 2022 Academy Street 


Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 base bid, and recommend approval of the CIP amendment to the Stoughton 


Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0.   


Amendment to the Wastewater Utility 2022 Capital Improvement Plan to Fund the 2022 Academy Street 


Reconstruction Contract 1-2022:  Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that wastewater utility costs 


for the 2022 main abandonment projects had come in higher than budgeted.  Staff will be proposing that the 


base bid be accepted at a cost of $620,355.25 without the bid alternatives.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Hundt the motion seconded by Tikalsky, to approve an amendment to the Stoughton Utilities 


Wastewater Five Year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan in the total amount of $93,355.25 to fund the 2022 


Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 base bid, and recommend approval of the CIP amendment to 


the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0.   


Amendment to the 2022 Stoughton Utilities Operating Budget to Fund the 2022 Academy Street 


Reconstruction Contract 1-2022:  Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that the previously 


discussed Water and Wastewater Capital Improvement Plans have been amended to increase the project cost, 


as well as reallocate portions of other project funds to the Academy Street Project.  The amendment will result 


in no change to the total amount of the 2022 Water Capital Improvement Plan and an increase of $93,355.25 to 


the total amount of the 2022 Wastewater Capital Improvement Plan.    



bhoops

Highlight







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:    May 3, 2022 


To:      Stoughton Utilities Committee   


From:    Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:   Amendment to the Water Utility 2022 Capital Improvement Plan to Fund the 2022 


Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022   


At its December 20, 2021 meeting, the Stoughton Utilities Committee approved the Stoughton 


Utilities five-year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  Included in the packet is a copy 


of the approved five-year CIP for the Stoughton Water Utility. 


Included in the approved CIP were the following projects: 


• 2022 Main abandon- Academy: East to E South   $ 125,000.00 


• 2022 Main abandon- Giles: N Lynn to Church St   $   20,000.00 


• 2022 Main abandon- W South: S Van Buren to S Monroe  $   35,000.00 


Stoughton Utilities has bid these projects, along with other road reconstruction costs, and the total 


project low bid for the water utility share of these items were as follows:  


• 2022 Main abandon- Academy: East to E South   $ 187,742.25 


• 2022 Main abandon- Giles: N Lynn to Church St   $   36,350.00 


• 2022 Main abandon- W South: S Van Buren to S Monroe  $   16,000.00 


The Academy Street project was the base bid, with the two other abandonment projects included 


as bid alternatives.   


Staff will be proposing that the base bid be accepted at a cost of $187,742.25 to the water utility 


without the bid alternatives.  To fund the cost difference from budget to bid, staff is proposing to 


amend the Capital Improvement Plan to increase the project cost, eliminate the 2022 Main 


abandon- Giles: N Lynn to Church St project and reallocate those funds to the Academy Street 


Project, as well as reallocate portions of other project funds in a total of $62,742.25 to the Academy 


Street Project.  The amendment will result in a total overall increase of $0.00 to the 2022 Water 


Capital Improvement Plan. 


It is requested that the Stoughton Utilities Committee review and approve an amendment to the 


Stoughton Utilities Water Five Year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan in the total amount 


of $0.00 to fund the 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 base bid, and 


recommend approval of the CIP amendment to the Stoughton Common Council. 







bhoops

Text Box





		08 R-100-2022  Resolution Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve

		08a Utilities - CIP Amendment - WT










 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE  
STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve an amendment to the Wastewater 
Utility 2022 Capital Improvement Plan to fund the 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-
2022.  
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee recommended Common Council approval 5 – 0 on 5/4/22. 


 
Fiscal Impact: $93,355.25 
 
File Number: 


 
R-101-2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
May 10, 2022 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, at its December 20, 2021 meeting, the Stoughton Utilities Committee approved the 
Stoughton Utilities five-year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), and  


WHEREAS, a sanitary sewer reconstruction project was included on Academy Street in an amount of 
$460,000.00, and 


WHEREAS, the public bidding for the full street reconstruction projects resulted in a low bid where the 
wastewater utility allocation of the project totaled $620,355.25, and 


WHEREAS, staff has proposed to amend the Capital Improvement Plan to increase the project cost, as 
well as reallocate portions of other project funds to the Academy Street Project, and 


WHEREAS, the amendment will result in a total overall increase of $93,355.25 to the 2022 Capital 
Improvement Plan, and 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met on May 4, 2022 to consider and approve the proposed 
amendment to the Stoughton Utilities Wastewater Five Year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan in 
the amount of $93,355.25 to fund the 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 base bid, and 
recommended approval of the CIP amendment to the Stoughton Common Council, now therefore 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the Stoughton Utilities 
Wastewater Five Year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan be amended in the total amount of 
$93,355.25 to fund the 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 base bid. 


  







Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    
Mayor Timothy Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  
 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, May 4, 2022 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  1 


Location: Virtual Participation: GoToMeeting ID 472-256-509 


Members Present: Citizen Member David Erdman (Chair), Alderperson Regina Hirsch, Alderperson 


Fred Hundt, Mayor Tim Swadley, Alderperson Joyce Tikalsky, 


Excused: Citizen Member John Kallas (Vice-Chair), Citizen Member Dustin Thoren 


Absent: None 


Others Present: Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Finance 


Manager Shannon Statz, Stoughton Utilities Director Jill Weiss 


Call to Order:  Chairperson Erdman called the regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting to order at 5:00 


p.m. with a quorum present. 


Public Comments:  There were no public comments. 


Amendment to the Water Utility 2022 Capital Improvement Plan to Fund the 2022 Academy Street 


Reconstruction Contract 1-2022:  Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that water utility costs for 


the 2022 main abandonment projects had come in higher than budgeted.  Staff will be proposing that the base 


bid be accepted at a cost of $187,742.25 without the bid alternatives.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Hundt, the motion seconded by Tikalsky, to approve an amendment to the Stoughton Utilities Water 


Five Year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan in the total amount of $0.00 to fund the 2022 Academy Street 


Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 base bid, and recommend approval of the CIP amendment to the Stoughton 


Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0.   


Amendment to the Wastewater Utility 2022 Capital Improvement Plan to Fund the 2022 Academy Street 


Reconstruction Contract 1-2022:  Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that wastewater utility costs 


for the 2022 main abandonment projects had come in higher than budgeted.  Staff will be proposing that the 


base bid be accepted at a cost of $620,355.25 without the bid alternatives.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Hundt the motion seconded by Tikalsky, to approve an amendment to the Stoughton Utilities 


Wastewater Five Year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan in the total amount of $93,355.25 to fund the 2022 


Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 base bid, and recommend approval of the CIP amendment to 


the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0.   


Amendment to the 2022 Stoughton Utilities Operating Budget to Fund the 2022 Academy Street 


Reconstruction Contract 1-2022:  Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that the previously 


discussed Water and Wastewater Capital Improvement Plans have been amended to increase the project cost, 


as well as reallocate portions of other project funds to the Academy Street Project.  The amendment will result 


in no change to the total amount of the 2022 Water Capital Improvement Plan and an increase of $93,355.25 to 


the total amount of the 2022 Wastewater Capital Improvement Plan.    



bhoops

Highlight







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:    May 3, 2022 


To:      Stoughton Utilities Committee   


From:    Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:   Amendment to the Wastewater Utility 2022 Capital Improvement Plan to Fund the 


2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022   


At its December 20, 2021 meeting, the Stoughton Utilities Committee approved the Stoughton 


Utilities five-year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  Included in the packet is a copy 


of the approved five-year CIP for the Stoughton Water Utility. 


Included in the approved CIP was the following projects: 


• 2022 Academy: East to E South     $460,000.00 


Stoughton Utilities has bid these projects, along with other road reconstruction costs, and the total 


project low bid for the wastewater utility share of these items were as follows:  


• 2022 Academy: East to E South     $620,355.25 


Staff will be proposing that the base bid be accepted at a cost of $620,355.25 to the wastewater 


utility. To fund the cost difference from budget to bid, staff is proposing to amend the Capital 


Improvement Plan to increase the project cost, as well as reallocate portions of other project funds 


to the Academy Street Project.  The amendment will result in a total overall increase of $93,355.25 


to the 2022 Wastewater Capital Improvement Plan. 


It is requested that the Stoughton Utilities Committee review and approve an amendment to the 


Stoughton Utilities Wastewater Five Year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan in the total 


amount of $93,355.25 to fund the 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 base bid, 


and recommend approval of the CIP amendment to the Stoughton Common Council. 







bhoops

Text Box





		09 R-101-2022 An amendment to the Wastewater Utility 2022 Capital Improvement Plan to fund the 2022 Academy St Reconstruction

		09a Utilities - CIP Amendment - WW










 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE  
STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve an amendment to the 2022 Stoughton 
Utilities Operating Budget to fund the 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022. 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee recommended Common Council approval 5- 0 on 5/4/22. 


 
Fiscal Impact: $26,623.00 
 
File Number: 


 
R-102-2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
May 10, 2022 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, at its December 20, 2021 meeting, the Stoughton Utilities Committee approved the 
Stoughton Utilities 2022 Operating Budget, and  


WHEREAS, a sanitary sewer reconstruction project on Academy Street was included in the 2022 Capital 
Improvement Plan in an amount of $460,000.00, and 


WHEREAS, water main abandonment projects on Academy Street, Giles Street, and West South Street 
were included in the 2022 Capital Improvement Plan in the combined amount of $180,000.00, and 


WHEREAS, the public bidding for the full street reconstruction projects resulted in a base bid of 
$1,766,427.25, with the water allocation being $187,742.25 and the wastewater allocation being 
$620,355.25, and 


WHEREAS, staff has proposed to amend the Water and Wastewater Capital Improvement Plans to 
increase the project costs, as well as reallocate portions of other project funds to the Academy Street 
Project, and 


WHEREAS, for the water utility to fully fund its share of the project, the 2022 Stoughton Utilities 
Operating Budget will not need to be amended, and 


WHEREAS, the majority of this difference for the wastewater utility will be funded by reallocating 
previously budgeted funds in the amount of $66,732.25, and 


WHEREAS, for the wastewater utility to fully fund its share of the project, the 2022 Stoughton Utilities 
Operating Budget will need to be amended to increase the total wastewater utility budget in the amount 
of $26,623.00, with such funds to be drawn from utility cash reserve, and 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met on May 4, 2022 to consider and approve the proposed 
amendment to the Stoughton Utilities 2022 Operating Budget in the amount of $26,623.00 to fund the 
2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 base bid, and recommended approval of the 
operating budget amendment to the Stoughton Common Council, now therefore 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the Stoughton Utilities 2022 
Operating Budget be amended in the total amount of $26,623.00 to fund the 2022 Academy Street 
Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 base bid. 







Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    
Mayor Timothy Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  
 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, May 4, 2022 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  1 


Location: Virtual Participation: GoToMeeting ID 472-256-509 


Members Present: Citizen Member David Erdman (Chair), Alderperson Regina Hirsch, Alderperson 


Fred Hundt, Mayor Tim Swadley, Alderperson Joyce Tikalsky, 


Excused: Citizen Member John Kallas (Vice-Chair), Citizen Member Dustin Thoren 


Absent: None 


Others Present: Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Finance 


Manager Shannon Statz, Stoughton Utilities Director Jill Weiss 


Call to Order:  Chairperson Erdman called the regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting to order at 5:00 


p.m. with a quorum present. 


Public Comments:  There were no public comments. 


Amendment to the Water Utility 2022 Capital Improvement Plan to Fund the 2022 Academy Street 


Reconstruction Contract 1-2022:  Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that water utility costs for 


the 2022 main abandonment projects had come in higher than budgeted.  Staff will be proposing that the base 


bid be accepted at a cost of $187,742.25 without the bid alternatives.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Hundt, the motion seconded by Tikalsky, to approve an amendment to the Stoughton Utilities Water 


Five Year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan in the total amount of $0.00 to fund the 2022 Academy Street 


Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 base bid, and recommend approval of the CIP amendment to the Stoughton 


Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0.   


Amendment to the Wastewater Utility 2022 Capital Improvement Plan to Fund the 2022 Academy Street 


Reconstruction Contract 1-2022:  Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that wastewater utility costs 


for the 2022 main abandonment projects had come in higher than budgeted.  Staff will be proposing that the 


base bid be accepted at a cost of $620,355.25 without the bid alternatives.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Hundt the motion seconded by Tikalsky, to approve an amendment to the Stoughton Utilities 


Wastewater Five Year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan in the total amount of $93,355.25 to fund the 2022 


Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 base bid, and recommend approval of the CIP amendment to 


the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0.   


Amendment to the 2022 Stoughton Utilities Operating Budget to Fund the 2022 Academy Street 


Reconstruction Contract 1-2022:  Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that the previously 


discussed Water and Wastewater Capital Improvement Plans have been amended to increase the project cost, 


as well as reallocate portions of other project funds to the Academy Street Project.  The amendment will result 


in no change to the total amount of the 2022 Water Capital Improvement Plan and an increase of $93,355.25 to 


the total amount of the 2022 Wastewater Capital Improvement Plan.    



bhoops

Highlight







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, May 4, 2022 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  2 


Staff explained that for the water utility to fully fund the project, the 2022 Stoughton Utilities Operating Budget 


will not need to be amended.  Staff further explained that for the wastewater utility, the majority of the project 


cost difference will be funded by reallocating previously budgeted funds in the amount of $66,732.25.  However, 


to fully fund the project, the 2022 Stoughton Utilities Operating Budget will need to be amended to increase the 


total wastewater utility budget in the amount of $26,623.00.  These funds will come from utility cash reserve, 


reducing the cash reserve balance to be equal to 3.32 months of operating expenses, down from 3.46 months 


as originally budgeted.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Hundt, the motion seconded by Tikalsky, to approve an amendment to the Stoughton Utilities 2022 


Operating Budget in the total amount of $26,623.00 to fund the 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 


1-2022 base bid, and recommend approval of the budget amendment to the Stoughton Common Council.  The 


motion carried unanimously 5 to 0.   


Declaration of Official Intent 2022-1:  Stoughton Utilities and City of Stoughton staff presented and discussed 


the declaration of official intent to reimburse an expenditure with proceeds of a borrowing or borrowings 


authorized by the issuer.  This is the first declaration for the year 2022 and preserves the ability to borrow funds 


up to $620,355.25 for the 2022 Lead Water Service Replacements Contract 4-2021, including but not limited to 


engineering, legal, construction, property restoration, and other incidental expenses associated with the 


replacement of public and private lead water service lines, full or in part, from the water main to the water meter.  


Discussion followed.   


Motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded by Tikalsky, to approve the Declaration of Official Intent No. 2022-1 and 


recommend the approval and the adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council.  


The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Bid Award of 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 to Wolf Paving & Excavating of 


Madison, Inc.:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the April 21, 2022 bid tabulation for the 2022 


Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022.  Staff explained that the bid for Contract 1-2022 includes the 


following work:  1,200 linear feet of sanitary sewer; 200 linear feet of water main; 1,300 linear feet of storm sewer; 


100 linear feet of trenchless casing installation across railroad; 5,000 tons of base course; 3,500 linear feet of 


concrete curb and gutter; 14,000 square yards of concrete sidewalk and driveway apron; 1,500 tons of asphaltic 


concrete pavement; restoration; traffic control; epoxy pavement markings; and related miscellaneous work.   


Staff informed the committee that bids received for Contract 1-2022 ranged from $1,766,427.25 to 


$2,441,163.70, and Wolf Paving & Excavating of Madison, Inc. (Wolf Paving) of Sun Prairie, Wisconsin, was the 


apparent low bidder for the base bid with a bid of $1,766,427.25.  The bid was deemed to be responsive.   


Staff further explained that two optional bid alternatives were included for water main abandonment on West 


South Street (Bid Alternative No. 1) and Giles Street (Bid Alternative No. 2).  Bids for Bid Alternative No. 1 ranged 


from $21,144.00 to $36,350.00, and Bid Alternative No. 2 ranged from $9,030.00 to $16,000.  Wolf Paving was 


the apparent high bidder for both Bid Alternative No. 1 and No. 2, with bids of $36,350.00 and $16,000 


respectively.  Staff recommended to proceed with awarding the contract without the inclusion of the alternative 


bid items.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Hundt, the motion seconded by Tikalsky, to approve the award of 2022 Academy Street 


Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 to Wolf Paving & Excavating of Madison, Inc., and recommend approval of the 


bid award to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0.   



bhoops

Highlight







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:    May 3, 2022 


To:      Stoughton Utilities Committee   


From:    Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:   Amendment to the 2022 Stoughton Utilities Operating Budget to Fund the 2022 


Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022   


At its December 20, 2021 meeting, the Stoughton Utilities Committee approved the Stoughton 


Utilities 2022 Operating Budget.   


Stoughton Utilities has bid the 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022. Staff will 


be proposing that the base bid be accepted at a cost to the water utility of $187,742.25 and a cost 


to the wastewater utility of $620,355.25.   


Staff is proposing to amend the Water and Wastewater Capital Improvement Plans to increase the 


project cost, as well as reallocate portions of other project funds to the Academy Street Project.  


The amendment will result in a total overall increase of $0.00 to the 2022 Water Capital 


Improvement Plan and $93,355.25 to the 2022 Wastewater Capital Improvement Plan.   


For the water utility to fully fund the project, the 2022 Stoughton Utilities Operating Budget will 


not need to be amended. 


For the wastewater utility, the majority of the project cost difference will be funded by reallocating 


previously budgeted funds in the amount of $66,732.25.  However, to fully fund the project, the 


2022 Stoughton Utilities Operating Budget will need to be amended to increase the total 


wastewater utility budget in the amount of $26,623.00.  These funds will come from utility cash 


reserve, reducing the cash reserve balance to be equal to 3.32 months of operating expenses, down 


from 3.46 months as originally budgeted. 


It is requested that the Stoughton Utilities Committee review and approve an amendment to the 


Stoughton Utilities 2022 Operating Budget in the total amount of $26,623.00 to fund the 2022 


Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 base bid, and recommend approval of the budget 


amendment to the Stoughton Common Council. 





		10 R-102-2022 An amendment to the 2022 Stoughton Utilities Operating Budget to fund the 2022 Academy St Reconstruction Contract

		10a  Utilities - Budget Amendment - WW






 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE  
STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Wolf Paving & 
Excavating of Madison, Inc. for the 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee recommended Common Council approval 5 – 0 on 5/4/2022 


 
Fiscal Impact: $1,766,427.25 
 
File Number:  


 
R-103-2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
May 10, 2022 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, the base bid for the 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 includes the 
following work:  1,200 linear feet of sanitary sewer; 200 linear feet of water main; 1,300 linear feet of 
storm sewer; 100 linear feet of trenchless casing installation across railroad; 5,000 tons of base course; 
3,500 linear feet of concrete curb and gutter; 14,000 square yards of concrete sidewalk and driveway 
apron; 1,500 tons of asphaltic concrete pavement; restoration; traffic control; epoxy pavement markings; 
and related miscellaneous work, and  


WHEREAS, bid alternatives were included for the abandonment of water main on West South Street 
(Bid Alternative No. 1) and Giles Street (Bid Alternative No. 2), and  


WHEREAS, bids for Contract 1-2022 were opened on April 21, 2022 with three competitive bids being 
received, and 


WHEREAS, Wolf Paving & Excavating of Madison, Inc. (Wolf Paving) of Sun Prairie, Wisconsin, was 
the apparent low bidder for the base bid, with a base bid of $1,766,427.25, and 


WHEREAS, Wolf Paving & Excavating of Madison, Inc. (Wolf Paving) of Sun Prairie, Wisconsin, was 
the apparent high bidder for Bid Alternatives No. 1 and No. 2, with bids of $36,350.00 and $16,000 
respectively, and 


WHEREAS, Strand Associates, Inc., Stoughton Utilities’ contracted engineering consultant, has 
reviewed the bids and supports awarding the contract for the base bid to the low responsible bidder, Wolf 
Paving & Excavating of Madison, Inc., and 


WHEREAS, your Stoughton Utilities Committee met on May 4, 2022 to consider this request, approved 
the request, and recommends approval and the adoption of the corresponding resolution, and 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 
hereby directed to enter into an agreement with Wolf Paving & Excavating of Madison, Inc. for the 2022 
Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022.for the base bid amount of $1,766,427.25, conditioned 
upon approval as to form by the Stoughton City Attorney. 


 







Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    
Mayor Timothy Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  
 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, May 4, 2022 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  2 


Staff explained that for the water utility to fully fund the project, the 2022 Stoughton Utilities Operating Budget 


will not need to be amended.  Staff further explained that for the wastewater utility, the majority of the project 


cost difference will be funded by reallocating previously budgeted funds in the amount of $66,732.25.  However, 


to fully fund the project, the 2022 Stoughton Utilities Operating Budget will need to be amended to increase the 


total wastewater utility budget in the amount of $26,623.00.  These funds will come from utility cash reserve, 


reducing the cash reserve balance to be equal to 3.32 months of operating expenses, down from 3.46 months 


as originally budgeted.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Hundt, the motion seconded by Tikalsky, to approve an amendment to the Stoughton Utilities 2022 


Operating Budget in the total amount of $26,623.00 to fund the 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 


1-2022 base bid, and recommend approval of the budget amendment to the Stoughton Common Council.  The 


motion carried unanimously 5 to 0.   


Declaration of Official Intent 2022-1:  Stoughton Utilities and City of Stoughton staff presented and discussed 


the declaration of official intent to reimburse an expenditure with proceeds of a borrowing or borrowings 


authorized by the issuer.  This is the first declaration for the year 2022 and preserves the ability to borrow funds 


up to $620,355.25 for the 2022 Lead Water Service Replacements Contract 4-2021, including but not limited to 


engineering, legal, construction, property restoration, and other incidental expenses associated with the 


replacement of public and private lead water service lines, full or in part, from the water main to the water meter.  


Discussion followed.   


Motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded by Tikalsky, to approve the Declaration of Official Intent No. 2022-1 and 


recommend the approval and the adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council.  


The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Bid Award of 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 to Wolf Paving & Excavating of 


Madison, Inc.:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the April 21, 2022 bid tabulation for the 2022 


Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022.  Staff explained that the bid for Contract 1-2022 includes the 


following work:  1,200 linear feet of sanitary sewer; 200 linear feet of water main; 1,300 linear feet of storm sewer; 


100 linear feet of trenchless casing installation across railroad; 5,000 tons of base course; 3,500 linear feet of 


concrete curb and gutter; 14,000 square yards of concrete sidewalk and driveway apron; 1,500 tons of asphaltic 


concrete pavement; restoration; traffic control; epoxy pavement markings; and related miscellaneous work.   


Staff informed the committee that bids received for Contract 1-2022 ranged from $1,766,427.25 to 


$2,441,163.70, and Wolf Paving & Excavating of Madison, Inc. (Wolf Paving) of Sun Prairie, Wisconsin, was the 


apparent low bidder for the base bid with a bid of $1,766,427.25.  The bid was deemed to be responsive.   


Staff further explained that two optional bid alternatives were included for water main abandonment on West 


South Street (Bid Alternative No. 1) and Giles Street (Bid Alternative No. 2).  Bids for Bid Alternative No. 1 ranged 


from $21,144.00 to $36,350.00, and Bid Alternative No. 2 ranged from $9,030.00 to $16,000.  Wolf Paving was 


the apparent high bidder for both Bid Alternative No. 1 and No. 2, with bids of $36,350.00 and $16,000 


respectively.  Staff recommended to proceed with awarding the contract without the inclusion of the alternative 


bid items.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Hundt, the motion seconded by Tikalsky, to approve the award of 2022 Academy Street 


Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 to Wolf Paving & Excavating of Madison, Inc., and recommend approval of the 


bid award to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0.   



bhoops

Highlight







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:    May 3, 2022 


To:      Stoughton Utilities Committee   


From:    Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:   Bid Award of 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 to Wolf 


Paving & Excavating of Madison, Inc.  


Bids for the 2022 Academy Street reconstruction project were opened on April 21, 2022. Three 


bids were received with the resulting bid tabulation attached. 


The base bid for Contract 1-2022 includes the following work:  1,200 linear feet of sanitary sewer; 


200 linear feet of water main; 1,300 linear feet of storm sewer; 100 linear feet of trenchless casing 


installation across railroad; 5,000 tons of base course; 3,500 linear feet of concrete curb and gutter; 


14,000 square yards of concrete sidewalk and driveway apron; 1,500 tons of asphaltic concrete 


pavement; restoration; traffic control; epoxy pavement markings; and related miscellaneous work. 


Base bids received for Contract 1-2022 ranged from $1,766,427.25 to $2,441,163.70. 


Wolf Paving & Excavating of Madison, Inc. (Wolf Paving) of Sun Prairie, Wisconsin, was the 


apparent low bidder for the base bid with a bid of $1,766,427.25.  The bid was deemed to be 


responsive. 


Two optional bid alternatives were included for water main abandonment on West South Street 


(Bid Alternative No. 1) and Giles Street (Bid Alternative No. 2).  Bids for Bid Alternative No. 1 


ranged from $21,144.00 to $36,350.00, and Bid Alternative No. 2 ranged from $9,030.00 to 


$16,000.   


Wolf Paving was the apparent high bidder for both Bid Alternative No. 1 and No. 2, with bids of 


$36,350.00 and $16,000 respectively. 


It is staff’s recommendation to proceed with awarding the contract without the inclusion of the 


alternative bid items.   


We are requesting that the Stoughton Utilities Committee approve the award of 2022 Academy 


Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 to Wolf Paving & Excavating of Madison, Inc., and 


recommend approval of the bid award to the Stoughton Common Council. 


 







 
Section 00 11 13-1 


1040.137/1-2022 


 
SECTION 00 11 13 


 
ADVERTISEMENT TO BID 


 
CITY OF STOUGHTON 


STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
        ACADEMY STREET RECONSTRUCTION 


CONTRACT 1-2022 
 


 
The City of Stoughton (OWNER) is requesting Bids for the construction of the following Project: 
 


Academy Street Reconstruction 
Contract 1-2022 


 
Electronic Bids for the construction of the Project will be received by the City of Stoughton, located at 
207 South Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589, until Wednesday, April 20, 2022, at 1 P.M., local time. At 
that time the Bids received will be publicly downloaded and read aloud publicly via teleconference. The 
login information for the teleconference is as follows:  (608) 571-7149, Conference ID 539112367#. 
 
The Project includes the following Work:  1,200 linear feet of sanitary sewer; 200 linear feet of water 
main; 1,300 linear feet of storm sewer; 100 linear feet of trenchless casing installation across railroad; 
5,000 tons of base course; 3,500 linear feet of concrete curb and gutter; 14,000 square yards of concrete 
sidewalk and driveway apron; 1,500 tons of asphaltic concrete pavement; restoration; traffic control; 
epoxy pavement markings; and related miscellaneous work. 
 
Complete digital Project Bidding Documents are available at www.strand.com or at www.questcdn.com. 
Download the digital Bidding Documents for $60 by inputting Quest project number 8164286 on the 
website’s Project Search page. Please contact QuestCDN.com at (952) 233-1632 or info@questcdn.com 
for assistance with free membership registration, downloading, and working with this digital Project 
information. 
 
For this Project, Bids will ONLY be received and accepted via the online electronic Bid service through 
QuestCDN.com. To access the electronic Bid form, download the Project Documents and click the online 
Bidding button at the top of the Advertisement. 
 
The Issuing Office is Strand Associates, Inc.®, 910 West Wingra Drive, Madison, WI 53715.  
 
All Bidders submitting a sealed Bid shall obtain the Bidding Documents from QuestCDN.com. 
 
Bidders who submit a Bid must be a Plan Holder of record at the Issuing Office. Bids from Bidders who 
are not on the Plan Holders List may be returned as not being responsive. 
 
The Bid must be accompanied by Bid security made payable to OWNER in an amount of 10% of the 
Bidder’s maximum Bid price. 
 
The City of Stoughton reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, to waive any technicality, and to accept 
any Bid which it deems advantageous. All Bids shall remain subject to acceptance for 85 days after the 
time set for receiving Bids. 
 
Contract award shall be made based on the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder. 



http://www.strand.com/

http://www.questcdn.com/

mailto:info@questcdn.com





 
Section 00 11 13-2 


1040.137/1-2022 


 
Prospective Bidders are required to complete and submit a prequalification questionnaire with supporting 
documents to OWNER (see Instructions to Bidders). Prequalification forms will be provided with Bidding 
Document sets. Completed forms are to be submitted no later than 4 P.M., local time, on April 14, 2022. 
 
The Strand Associates, Inc.® project manager is Mark A. Fisher, P.E., and can be contacted at 
Strand Associates, Inc.®, 910 West Wingra Drive, Madison, WI 53715, (608) 251-4843, regarding the 
Project. 
 
For further requirements regarding Bid submittal, qualifications, procedures, and Contract Award, refer 
to the Instructions to Bidders that are included in the Bidding Documents. 
 
Published by the authority of the City of Stoughton 
 Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and Development 
 
Dated at City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
March 31, 2022 and April 7, 2022 
 
 


END OF SECTION 







 


1040.137\MAF:lerR:\MAD\Documents\Specifications\Archive\2022\Stoughton, City of (WI)\1040.137.1-2022.MAF\(16) Specification Letters\(a) Resulting Bid Tabulation\042122.docx 


 
 
April 21, 2022 
 
 
Mr. Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and Development 
City of Stoughton 
207 South Forrest Street   
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 
Re: Academy Street Reconstruction 


Contract 1-2022 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 
Dear Rodney, 
 
Bids for the Academy Street Reconstruction project were opened on April 20, 2022. Three Bids were 
received with the resulting Bid tabulation enclosed.  
 
Wolf Paving & Excavating of Madison, Inc. (Wolf Paving) of Sun Prairie, Wisconsin, was the apparent 
low Bidder with a base bid of $1,766,427.25. The Bid included a Bid Bond for 10 percent and Addendum 
No. 1 was acknowledged. The Bid is deemed to be responsive. 
 
Wolf Paving’s bid for Alternative Bid No. 1 was $36,350. Alternative Bid No. 1 includes water main 
abandonment on West South Street for Stoughton Utilities.  
 
Wolf Paving’s bid for Alternative Bid No. 2 was $16,000. Alternative Bid No. 2 includes water main 
abandonment on Giles Street for Stoughton Utilities.  
 


Strand Associates, Inc. has previously worked with Wolf Paving on projects for the City of Stoughton, 
Village of Waunakee, and Town of Brookfield. For those projects, the owners determined Wolf Paving 
to be responsible. Wolf Paving was a prequalified bidder, so if a Contract is to be awarded, we 
recommend proceeding in accordance with Article 18 of the Instructions to Bidders.  
 
Please contact me with any questions regarding this project. 


 
Sincerely, 
 
STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC.® 


 
Mark A. Fisher, P.E. 
 
Enclosure 
 
c:   Brett Hebert, Director of Public Works, City of Stoughton 
 Jill Weiss, P.E., Utilities Director, Stoughton Utilities    







Section Title Line Item Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension


1 8-IN DIA PVC Sanitary Sewer LF 180 $100.00 $18,000.00 $228.00 $41,040.00 $195.64 $35,215.20


2 12-IN DIA PVC Sanitary Sewer LF 130 $145.00 $18,850.00 $315.00 $40,950.00 $210.89 $27,415.70


3 15-IN DIA PVC Sanitary Sewer LF 700 $195.00 $136,500.00 $312.00 $218,400.00 $229.94 $160,958.00


4 21-IN DIA PVC Sanitary Sewer LF 110 $375.00 $41,250.00 $510.00 $56,100.00 $351.90 $38,709.00


5 Install 100-LF of Minimum 36-IN Steel Casing for Sanitary Sewer (INCL 21-IN PVC Sanitary Sewer) (No Open Cut Allowed) LS 1 $198,925.00 $198,925.00 $145,000.00 $145,000.00 $276,947.20 $276,947.20


6 15-IN by 4-IN Wye Fitting EA 6 $715.00 $4,290.00 $782.00 $4,692.00 $2,937.16 $17,622.96


7 15-IN by 6-IN Wye Fitting EA 6 $795.00 $4,770.00 $852.00 $5,112.00 $3,013.39 $18,080.34


8 12-IN by 4-IN Wye Fitting EA 1 $460.00 $460.00 $505.00 $505.00 $2,631.00 $2,631.00


9 12-IN by 6-IN Wye Fitting EA 1 $485.00 $485.00 $534.00 $534.00 $2,664.03 $2,664.03


10 4-IN PVC Sanitary Sewer Lateral LF 200 $72.00 $14,400.00 $102.00 $20,400.00 $95.28 $19,056.00


11 6-IN PVC Sanirary Sewer Lateral LF 200 $75.00 $15,000.00 $109.00 $21,800.00 $102.90 $20,580.00


12 4-FT DIA Sanitary Sewer MH EA 10 $5,385.00 $53,850.00 $8,066.00 $80,660.00 $7,279.39 $72,793.90


13 5-FT DIA Sanitary Sewer MH EA 2 $8,105.00 $16,210.00 $11,120.00 $22,240.00 $10,069.19 $20,138.38


14 Connect New Sanitary Sewer to Existing MH LS 1 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $1,196.00 $1,196.00 $19,036.94 $19,036.94


15 Sanitary Sewer Spot Repair EA 1 $3,510.00 $3,510.00 $18,825.00 $18,825.00 $7,908.24 $7,908.24


16 Remove and Replace MH Casting and Adjusting Rings EA 2 $915.00 $1,830.00 $1,425.00 $2,850.00 $1,060.78 $2,121.56


17 Abandon/Remove Existing Sanitary Sewer LS 1 $6,275.00 $6,275.00 $2,530.00 $2,530.00 $13,148.64 $13,148.64


18 Hauled-In Granular Backfill for Sanitary Sewer T 3800 $16.00 $60,800.00 $26.00 $98,800.00 $8.96 $34,048.00


19 4-IN DIA Water Main LF 35 $137.00 $4,795.00 $167.00 $5,845.00 $205.80 $7,203.00


20 6-IN DIA Water Main or Fire Hydrant Lead LF 30 $118.00 $3,540.00 $137.00 $4,110.00 $177.86 $5,335.80


21 8-IN DIA Water Main LF 190 $185.00 $35,150.00 $148.00 $28,120.00 $203.26 $38,619.40


22 8-IN Valve and Road Box EA 1 $3,035.00 $3,035.00 $3,516.00 $3,516.00 $4,753.84 $4,753.84


23 10-IN Valve and Road Box EA 2 $4,405.00 $8,810.00 $2,706.00 $5,412.00 $6,198.28 $12,396.56


24 Fire Hydrant W/ Auxiliary Valve and Road Box EA 3 $8,270.00 $24,810.00 $8,912.00 $26,736.00 $11,236.69 $33,710.07


25 1-IN Corporation Stop, Curb Stop, and Box EA 1 $735.00 $735.00 $827.00 $827.00 $4,358.74 $4,358.74


26 1-IN Water Service LF 30 $70.00 $2,100.00 $102.00 $3,060.00 $80.04 $2,401.20


27 Lower Existing Water Service EA 8 $2,500.00 $20,000.00 $980.00 $7,840.00 $2,477.28 $19,818.24


28 Lower Existing 10-IN Water Main INCL Water Main, Fittings, and Connections EA 2 $9,500.00 $19,000.00 $6,904.00 $13,808.00 $11,223.98 $22,447.96


29 Connect New Fire Hydrant Lead to Existing Water Main Tee EA 3 $1,250.00 $3,750.00 $6,332.00 $18,996.00 $896.90 $2,690.70


30 Connect New Water Main to Existing Water Main EA 4 $1,850.00 $7,400.00 $6,105.00 $24,420.00 $4,840.22 $19,360.88


31 Adjust Existing Water Valve Box EA 10 $215.00 $2,150.00 $431.00 $4,310.00 $412.88 $4,128.80


32 Abandon Existing Water Main and Appurtenances LS 1 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $2,530.00 $2,530.00 $10,798.40 $10,798.40


33 Hauled-In Granular Backfill for Water Main T 350 $16.00 $5,600.00 $26.00 $9,100.00 $8.96 $3,136.00


34 Slurry Backfill for Water Main CY 90 $250.00 $22,500.00 $224.00 $20,160.00 $181.67 $16,350.30


35 12-IN RCP Storm Sewer LF 300 $54.15 $16,245.00 $87.00 $26,100.00 $82.58 $24,774.00


Sanitary Sewer


Water Main


Storm Sewer


Academy Street Reconstruction, Contract 1-2022, City of Stoughton, Wisconsin (#8164286)


Contract 1-2022


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin


Solicitor: Strand Associates, Inc.


April 20, 2022  1 P.M.


Wolf Paving Fischer Excavating, Inc. Speedway Sand & Gravel Inc.


 1040.137\MAF:ler\R:\MAD\Documents\Specifications\Archive\2022\Stoughton, City of (WI)\1040.137.1-2022.MAF\(14) Bid Tabs\Stoughton.1-2022.BidTab.xlsx







36 15-IN RCP Storm Sewer LF 160 $57.65 $9,224.00 $83.00 $13,280.00 $86.39 $13,822.40


37 18-IN RCP Storm Sewer LF 100 $62.85 $6,285.00 $95.00 $9,500.00 $96.55 $9,655.00


38 24-IN RCP Storm Sewer LF 185 $84.25 $15,586.25 $112.00 $20,720.00 $158.80 $29,378.00


39 27-IN RCP Storm Sewer (EXCL Fittings) LF 20 $107.95 $2,159.00 $135.00 $2,700.00 $236.29 $4,725.80


40 36-IN RCP Storm Sewer LF 670 $175.60 $117,652.00 $181.00 $121,270.00 $235.02 $157,463.40


41 6-IN PVC Underdrain for Roadway LF 150 $35.00 $5,250.00 $30.00 $4,500.00 $57.10 $8,565.00


42 4-FT DIA Storm Sewer MH EA 3 $2,775.00 $8,325.00 $3,889.00 $11,667.00 $4,871.98 $14,615.94


43 5-FT DIA Storm Sewer MH EA 6 $4,225.00 $25,350.00 $5,674.00 $34,044.00 $6,900.81 $41,404.86


44 6-FT DIA Storm Sewer MH EA 2 $6,250.00 $12,500.00 $7,860.00 $15,720.00 $8,750.52 $17,501.04


45 7-FT DIA Storm Sewer MH EA 1 $8,465.00 $8,465.00 $10,916.00 $10,916.00 $12,249.20 $12,249.20


46 2-FT by 3-FT Storm Sewer Inlet EA 25 $2,145.00 $53,625.00 $3,435.00 $85,875.00 $2,953.68 $73,842.00


47 12-IN DIA RCP Bend Fitting EA 1 $1,270.00 $1,270.00 $1,634.00 $1,634.00 $2,235.90 $2,235.90


48 27-IN DIA RCP Bend Fitting EA 2 $3,675.00 $7,350.00 $3,220.00 $6,440.00 $4,052.58 $8,105.16


49 36-IN DIA RCP Apron End Wall W/ Pipe Gate and Cut-Off Wall EA 1 $5,115.00 $5,115.00 $5,232.00 $5,232.00 $7,006.26 $7,006.26


50 Replace Inlet Casting and Adjusting Rings EA 1 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $1,326.00 $1,326.00 $1,067.14 $1,067.14


51


Replace Rectangular Storm Sewer Casting W/ Solid Precast Concrete Top Slab at Inlet Structure Near Academy Street/Lynn 


Street Intersection (EXCL Concrete Repairs) LS 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $2,357.00 $2,357.00 $813.06 $813.06


52 Precast Concrete Top Slab at Inlet Structure Near Academy Street/Lynn Street Intersection (EXCL Concrete Repairs) LS 1 $2,750.00 $2,750.00 $1,490.00 $1,490.00 $3,671.46 $3,671.46


53 Abandon/Remove Existing Storm Sewer LS 1 $11,350.00 $11,350.00 $3,550.00 $3,550.00 $13,656.80 $13,656.80


54 Hauled-In Granular Backfill for Storm Sewer T 650 $16.00 $10,400.00 $20.50 $13,325.00 $8.96 $5,824.00


55 Concrete Driveway and Sidewalk Removal SY 1500 $3.75 $5,625.00 $12.00 $18,000.00 $22.87 $34,305.00


56 Concrete Curb and Gutter Removal LF 3650 $2.25 $8,212.50 $4.00 $14,600.00 $5.08 $18,542.00


57 Common Excavation LS 1 $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $149,500.00 $149,500.00 $166,803.71 $166,803.71


58 EBS Excavation CY 750 $14.00 $10,500.00 $22.00 $16,500.00 $30.81 $23,107.50


59 EBS Backfill T 1500 $14.00 $21,000.00 $20.00 $30,000.00 $11.94 $17,910.00


60 Geotextile for Subgrade Stabilzation SY 2500 $4.00 $10,000.00 $2.00 $5,000.00 $3.18 $7,950.00


61 Crushed Aggregate Base Course T 6000 $13.25 $79,500.00 $23.00 $138,000.00 $23.76 $142,560.00


62 30-IN Concrete Curb and Gutter LF 3600 $20.50 $73,800.00 $19.00 $68,400.00 $31.25 $112,500.00


63 Concrete Valley Gutter SF 350 $12.85 $4,497.50 $13.00 $4,550.00 $12.01 $4,203.50


64 5-IN Concrete Sidewalk SF 13000 $6.10 $79,300.00 $6.00 $78,000.00 $8.64 $112,320.00


65 6-IN Concrete Sidewalk SF 1800 $6.50 $11,700.00 $7.00 $12,600.00 $9.27 $16,686.00


66 6-IN Concrete Driveway Apron SF 1800 $7.15 $12,870.00 $7.00 $12,600.00 $9.27 $16,686.00


67 Cast Iron Detectable Warning at Sidewalk Ramps SF 200 $40.25 $8,050.00 $35.00 $7,000.00 $71.14 $14,228.00


68 Asphaltic Concrete Driveway Apron SF 380 $5.00 $1,900.00 $8.50 $3,230.00 $6.35 $2,413.00


69 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Lower Course T 1000 $82.00 $82,000.00 $78.50 $78,500.00 $99.09 $99,090.00


70 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Upper Course T 800 $88.00 $70,400.00 $79.00 $63,200.00 $101.63 $81,304.00


71 Turf Restoration - Topsoil, Seed, and Mulch LS 1 $25,500.00 $25,500.00 $20,500.00 $20,500.00 $29,505.04 $29,505.04


72 Turf Restoration - Topsoil and Sod LS 1 $19,500.00 $19,500.00 $5,800.00 $5,800.00 $14,793.81 $14,793.81


73 Erosion Mat SY 700 $2.15 $1,505.00 $1.20 $840.00 $2.86 $2,002.00


74 Utility Insulation SF 200 $4.50 $900.00 $2.00 $400.00 $4.83 $966.00


75 Insulate Existing Sanitary Sewer SF 300 $8.00 $2,400.00 $15.00 $4,500.00 $30.87 $9,261.00


76 Guard Rail Removal LS 1 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $635.20 $635.20


77 New Guard Rail LF 66 $196.50 $12,969.00 $151.00 $9,966.00 $191.83 $12,660.78


Street Construction and Restoration


Miscellaneous


 1040.137\MAF:ler\R:\MAD\Documents\Specifications\Archive\2022\Stoughton, City of (WI)\1040.137.1-2022.MAF\(14) Bid Tabs\Stoughton.1-2022.BidTab.xlsx







78 Grouted Medium Riprap SY 40 $145.00 $5,800.00 $145.00 $5,800.00 $184.21 $7,368.40


79 Stump Removal EA 10 $361.20 $3,612.00 $316.00 $3,160.00 $825.76 $8,257.60


80 24-IN White Epoxy Continental-Style Crosswalk Line LF 42 $75.00 $3,150.00 $75.00 $3,150.00 $95.28 $4,001.76


81 Erosion Control LS 1 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $10,182.00 $10,182.00 $26,519.60 $26,519.60


82 Traffic Control LS 1 $39,555.00 $39,555.00 $9,900.00 $9,900.00 $7,622.40 $7,622.40


A-1 Abandon Existing Water Main LS 1 $17,500.00 $17,500.00 $2,656.00 $2,656.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00


A-2 1-IN Water Service LF 30 $90.00 $2,700.00 $102.00 $3,060.00 $63.00 $1,890.00


A-3 1-IN Corporation Stop, Curb Stop, and Box EA 1 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $828.00 $828.00 $4,121.00 $4,121.00


A-4 Sidewalk Removal and Replacement SF 50 $25.00 $1,250.00 $20.00 $1,000.00 $22.00 $1,100.00


A-5 Curb and Gutter Removal and Replacement LF 10 $65.00 $650.00 $80.00 $800.00 $50.00 $500.00


A-6 4-IN Asphalt Pavement Patch SY 200 $65.00 $13,000.00 $64.00 $12,800.00 $62.40 $12,480.00


B-1 Abandon Existing Water Main LS 1 $9,500.00 $9,500.00 $2,530.00 $2,530.00 $8,300.00 $8,300.00


B-2 4-IN Asphalt Pavement Patch SY 100 $65.00 $6,500.00 $65.00 $6,500.00 $72.60 $7,260.00


Speedway Sand & Gravel Inc.Bid Alternative No. 2 - Giles Street


Bid Alternative No. 2 Total: $16,000.00 $9,030.00 $15,560.00


Wolf Paving Fischer Excavating, Inc. Speedway Sand & Gravel Inc.


Wolf Paving Fischer Excavating, Inc.


$1,766,427.25 $2,126,448.00 $2,441,163.70


Bid Alternative No. 1 - West South Street


Bid Alternative No. 1 Total: $36,350.00 $21,144.00 $32,591.00


Base Bid Total:


 1040.137\MAF:ler\R:\MAD\Documents\Specifications\Archive\2022\Stoughton, City of (WI)\1040.137.1-2022.MAF\(14) Bid Tabs\Stoughton.1-2022.BidTab.xlsx





		11 R-103-2022  An agreement with Wolf Paving & Excavating of Madison, Inc. for the 2022 Academy St Reconstruction Contract

		11a Utilities - Bid Award

		5.3- Bid Award - Bid Summary.pdf

		042122

		Stoughton.1-2022.BidTab










CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN  


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Payne & Dolan, 


Inc. for the 2022 Street Construction Contract 2-2022. 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee ___________ 
  


Fiscal Impact: $1,628,550.67 – Bond proceeds 
 


   
File Number: 


 
R -104- 2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
May 10, 2022 


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, Contract 2-2022 includes street pavement replacement, curb and gutter and sidewalk 
replacement on various streets; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City received two competitive bids; and 
 
WHEREAS, Strand & Associates, the City’s contracted engineering firm, has reviewed the bids and 
supports awarding the contract to the low responsible bidder, Payne & Dolan, Inc.; and 
 
WHEREAS, the low bid is $1,628,550.67; and  
 
WHEREAS, the bid includes $255,675 for spot sidewalk replacement outside of the street project areas 
and exceeds our estimates for this scope of work; now therefore  
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 
hereby directed and authorized to enter into an agreement with Payne & Dolan, Inc. for $1,628,550.67 
and initiate a Change Order to remove the City-wide sidewalk replacement ($255,675) from this year’s 
project, conditioned upon approval as to form by the City Attorney. 
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
                                             
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
 


 
 
Date:  April 29, 2022 
 
To:  Finance Committee  
 
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
Subject: 2022 Street Pulverization Project – Contract 2-2022 
 
The 2022 Street Construction Project includes the total reconstruction of Rowe Street (USH 
51/138 to W. Main Street), Ben Waite Circle and Giles St (east of Lynn St).  The following 
streets are also being pulverized and repaved with spot curb and gutter and sidewalk replacement 
abutting the street project areas: Holtan Rd, Hillcrest Rd, Silverado Dr, Kings Lynn Rd 
(Kenilworth to Jackson), Milwaukee St (Page to Van Buren).  Pavement repair work will be 
occurring on Page Street between Washington St and Roby Rd.  In addition to the above 
sidewalk replacement, this project includes spot sidewalk replacement at 63 properties 
throughout the City. 
 
We received two bids for this project.  The low bidder is Payne & Dolan, Inc. with a base bid of 
$1,628,550.67.  The unit pricing for the City-wide sidewalk replacement came in more than 
double the cost of replacement of sidewalk within street project areas.  Recognizing, property 
owners are assessed half of the cost of sidewalk replacement and this portion of the project came 
in well above estimates, we recommend processing a Change Order to remove this part of the 
project from this year’s project. 
 
It is our recommendation to award the contract to the low bidder, Payne & Dolan, Inc. for 
$1,628,550.67, and process a Change Order to remove the City-wide sidewalk replacement 
($255,675) from this year’s project. 
 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
    


 
 
 
 
 
 


S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Finance 4-29-2022 - 2022 Pulverize Project.docx 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





 


 
 


1040.140\MAF:ler\R:\MAD\Documents\Specifications\Archive\2022\Stoughton, City of (WI)\1040.140.2-2022.MAF\(16) Specification Letters\(a) Resulting Bid Tabulation\040722.docx 


April 7, 2022 
 
 
Mr. Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and Development 
City of Stoughton 
207 South Forrest Street   
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 
Re: 2022 Street Construction 


Contract 2-2022 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 
Dear Rodney, 
 
Bids for the 2022 Street Construction Project were opened on April 6, 2022. Two Bids were received 
with the resulting Bid tabulation enclosed.  
 
Payne and Dolan, Inc. of Fitchburg, Wisconsin, was the apparent low Bidder at $1,628,550.67. The Bid 
included a Bid Bond for 10 percent and Addendum No. 1 was acknowledged. The Bid is deemed to be 
responsive. 
 


Strand Associates, Inc. has previously worked with Payne and Dolan, Inc. on projects for the Cities of 
Stoughton and Whitewater. For those projects, the owners determined Payne and Dolan, Inc. to be 
responsible. Payne and Dolan, Inc. was a prequalified bidder, so if a Contract is to be awarded, we 
recommend proceeding in accordance with Article 18 of the Instructions to Bidders.  
 
Please contact me with any questions regarding this project. 


 
Sincerely, 
 
STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC.® 


 
Mark A. Fisher, P.E. 
 
Enclosure 
 
c:   Brett Hebert, Director of Public Works, City of Stoughton 


 







Section Title Line Item Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension


1 15-IN RCP Storm Sewer LF 15 $50.00 $750.00 $60.00 $900.00


2 12-IN RCP Storm Sewer LF 170 $48.00 $8,160.00 $55.00 $9,350.00


3 6-IN PVC Underdrain LF 50 $20.00 $1,000.00 $35.00 $1,750.00


4 4-FT DIA Storm Sewer MH EA 1 $2,400.00 $2,400.00 $3,250.00 $3,250.00


5 2-FT by 3-FT Storm Sewer Inlet EA 3 $2,200.00 $6,600.00 $2,100.00 $6,300.00


6 Connect to Existing Storm Sewer LS 1 $500.00 $500.00 $615.00 $615.00


7 Common Excavation LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $24,725.00 $24,725.00


8 Concrete Curb and Gutter Removal LF 120 $5.00 $600.00 $3.55 $426.00


9 Concrete Sidewalk and Driveway Apron Removal SY 135 $4.00 $540.00 $3.50 $472.50


10 Excavation Below Subgrade (EBS) CY 175 $18.00 $3,150.00 $14.00 $2,450.00


11 EBS Backfill T 350 $18.00 $6,300.00 $16.00 $5,600.00


12 Geotextile-Roadway Subgrade Stabilization SY 500 $2.25 $1,125.00 $3.50 $1,750.00


13 Crushed Aggregate Base Course T 1200 $19.10 $22,920.00 $14.00 $16,800.00


14 30-IN Concrete Curb and Gutter LF 1020 $20.50 $20,910.00 $20.50 $20,910.00


15 Concrete Valley Gutter SF 220 $12.85 $2,827.00 $12.85 $2,827.00


16 6-IN Concrete Sidewalk SF 700 $6.50 $4,550.00 $6.50 $4,550.00


17 5-IN Concrete Sidewalk SF 2200 $6.10 $13,420.00 $6.10 $13,420.00


18 6-IN Concrete Driveway Apron SF 900 $6.25 $5,625.00 $6.25 $5,625.00


19 Cast Iron Truncated Dome Detectable Warning SF 64 $35.00 $2,240.00 $35.00 $2,240.00


20 Asphaltic Concrete Driveway Apron SF 300 $6.45 $1,935.00 $3.00 $900.00


21 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Lower Course T 165 $75.60 $12,474.00 $94.00 $15,510.00


22 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Upper Course T 130 $75.60 $9,828.00 $99.00 $12,870.00


23 Adjust Existing Sanitary Sewer MH W/ New Upper Cone Section LS 1 $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $1,935.00 $1,935.00


Rowe Street and Ben Waite Circle–Storm Sewer


2022 Street Construction


Contract 2-2022


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin


Solicitor: Strand Associates, Inc.


April 6, 2022  1 P.M. CT


Payne & Dolan, Inc. Wolf Paving


Street Construction


Miscellaneous







24 Hauled-In Granular Tench Backfill T 50 $18.00 $900.00 $16.00 $800.00


25 Traffic Control LS 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,830.00 $1,830.00


26 Erosion Control LS 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,700.00 $2,700.00


27 Temporary Erosion Control Mat (WisDOT Class I, Type A) SY 900 $1.80 $1,620.00 $1.50 $1,350.00


28 Turf Restoration (Topsoil, Seed, and Mulch) LS 1 $4,200.00 $4,200.00 $7,200.00 $7,200.00


29 Stump Removal (6-IN and Larger) EA 6 $300.00 $1,800.00 $381.00 $2,286.00


30 Common Excavation LS 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $7,025.00 $7,025.00


31 Concrete Curb and Gutter Removal LF 60 $5.00 $300.00 $4.55 $273.00


32 Concrete Sidewalk and Driveway Apron Removal SY 10 $4.00 $40.00 $5.50 $55.00


33 Excavation Below Subgrade (EBS) CY 40 $18.00 $720.00 $15.00 $600.00


34 EBS Backfill T 80 $18.00 $1,440.00 $18.00 $1,440.00


35 Geotextile-Roadway Subgrade Stabilization SY 120 $2.25 $270.00 $4.00 $480.00


36 Crushed Aggregate Base Course T 320 $21.25 $6,800.00 $16.00 $5,120.00


37 30-IN Concrete Curb and Gutter LF 240 $34.45 $8,268.00 $34.45 $8,268.00


38 6-IN Concrete Driveway Apron SF 310 $6.25 $1,937.50 $6.25 $1,937.50


39 Asphaltic Concrete Driveway Apron SF 40 $6.45 $258.00 $3.00 $120.00


40 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Lower Course T 50 $75.60 $3,780.00 $108.00 $5,400.00


41 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Upper Course T 40 $75.60 $3,024.00 $116.00 $4,640.00


42 Traffic Control LS 1 $500.00 $500.00 $1,830.00 $1,830.00


43 Erosion Control LS 1 $250.00 $250.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00


44 Temporary Erosion Control Mat (WisDOT Class I, Type A) SY 250 $1.80 $450.00 $1.50 $375.00


45 Turf Restoration (Topsoil, Seed, and Mulch) LS 1 $500.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00


46 Stump Removal (6-IN and Larger) EA 2 $300.00 $600.00 $381.00 $762.00


47 Replace Storm Sewer Inlet EA 2 $2,400.00 $4,800.00 $2,635.00 $5,270.00


48 12-IN RCP Storm Sewer LF 35 $50.00 $1,750.00 $55.00 $1,925.00


49 Curb and Gutter Removal LF 1150 $9.60 $11,040.00 $9.60 $11,040.00


50 30-IN Curb and Gutter LF 1150 $34.45 $39,617.50 $34.45 $39,617.50


51 Pedestrian Refuge Island (EXCL Pavement Markings) EA 1 $10,500.00 $10,500.00 $10,500.00 $10,500.00


52 Traffic Island (EXCL Pavement Markings) EA 1 $5,200.00 $5,200.00 $5,200.00 $5,200.00


53 Concrete Sidewalk and Driveway Removal SY 1600 $31.50 $50,400.00 $31.50 $50,400.00


Milwaukee Street


Giles Street–Street Construction


Miscellaneous







54 5-IN Concrete Sidewalk SF 8600 $6.35 $54,610.00 $6.35 $54,610.00


55 6-IN Concrete Sidewalk or Curb Ramp SF 5800 $6.85 $39,730.00 $6.85 $39,730.00


56 Cast Iron Truncated Dome Detectable Warning for Sidewalk Ramp SF 225 $35.00 $7,875.00 $35.00 $7,875.00


57 Pulverize and Grade Existing Asphalt Pavement and Base Course SY 9900 $3.95 $39,105.00 $2.97 $29,403.00


58 Excavation Below Subgrade (EBS) CY 1200 $18.00 $21,600.00 $14.00 $16,800.00


59 EBS Backfill T 2400 $18.00 $43,200.00 $14.00 $33,600.00


60 Geotextile for Subgrade Stabilization SY 3500 $2.50 $8,750.00 $3.50 $12,250.00


61 Adjust Water Valve Box to Grade EA 4 $175.00 $700.00 $125.00 $500.00


62 Adjust MH Casting to Grade INCL New Adjusting Rings EA 12 $450.00 $5,400.00 $565.00 $6,780.00


63 Replace MH Casting and Adjusting Rings EA 2 $750.00 $1,500.00 $815.00 $1,630.00


64 Replace Inlet casting and Adjusting Rings EA 8 $750.00 $6,000.00 $575.00 $4,600.00


65 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Lower Course T 1350 $75.60 $102,060.00 $78.00 $105,300.00


66 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Upper Course T 1050 $75.60 $79,380.00 $83.00 $87,150.00


67 Asphalt Driveway Apron SF 100 $6.45 $645.00 $3.00 $300.00


68 8-IN Yellow Epoxy Diagonal Line LF 300 $7.00 $2,100.00 $7.00 $2,100.00


69 4-IN Yellow Epoxy Line LF 1400 $1.05 $1,470.00 $1.05 $1,470.00


70 18-IN White Epoxy Stop Bar LF 16 $12.00 $192.00 $12.00 $192.00


71 4-IN White Epoxy Lline LF 3600 $1.05 $3,780.00 $1.05 $3,780.00


72 White Epoxy Bike/Arrow Symbol EA 9 $205.00 $1,845.00 $205.00 $1,845.00


73 24-IN White Epoxy Continental-Style Crosswalk Line LF 200 $17.00 $3,400.00 $17.00 $3,400.00


74 Yellow Epoxy Median Nose SF 100 $7.00 $700.00 $7.00 $700.00


75 Yellow Epoxy Median Curb Head LF 120 $8.00 $960.00 $8.00 $960.00


76 Traffic Control LS 1 $2,976.92 $2,976.92 $6,040.00 $6,040.00


77 Turf Restoration (Topsoil, Seed, and Mulch) LS 1 $10,200.00 $10,200.00 $9,500.00 $9,500.00


78 Erosion Control LS 1 $3,200.00 $3,200.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00


79 Curb and Gutter Removal LF 950 $9.60 $9,120.00 $9.60 $9,120.00


80 30-IN Curb and Gutter LF 950 $34.45 $32,727.50 $34.45 $32,727.50


81 Concrete Sidewalk and Driveway Removal SY 90 $31.50 $2,835.00 $31.50 $2,835.00


82 5-IN Concrete Sidewalk SF 670 $6.35 $4,254.50 $6.35 $4,254.50


83 6-IN Concrete Sidewalk SF 120 $6.85 $822.00 $6.85 $822.00


84 6-IN Concrete Driveway Apron SF 200 $6.50 $1,300.00 $6.50 $1,300.00


85 Pulverize and Grade Existing Asphalt Pavement and Base Course SY 4450 $3.95 $17,577.50 $2.97 $13,216.50


Holtan Road/Hilcrest Road







86 Excavation Below Subgrade (EBS) CY 500 $18.00 $9,000.00 $14.00 $7,000.00


87 EBS Backfill T 1000 $18.00 $18,000.00 $15.00 $15,000.00


88 Geotextile for Subgrade Stabilization SY 1500 $2.25 $3,375.00 $3.50 $5,250.00


89 Adjust Water Valve Box to Grade EA 1 $175.00 $175.00 $125.00 $125.00


90 Adjust MH Casting to Grade INCL New Adjusting Rings EA 4 $350.00 $1,400.00 $565.00 $2,260.00


91 Replace Inlet Casting and Adjusting Rings EA 1 $725.00 $725.00 $575.00 $575.00


92 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Lower Course T 600 $75.60 $45,360.00 $81.00 $48,600.00


93 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Upper Course T 475 $75.60 $35,910.00 $84.00 $39,900.00


94 Asphalt Driveway Apron SF 550 $6.45 $3,547.50 $3.00 $1,650.00


95 Traffic Control LS 1 $500.00 $500.00 $2,965.00 $2,965.00


96 Turf Restoration (Topsoil, Seed, and Mulch) LS 1 $7,400.00 $7,400.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00


97 Erosion Control LS 1 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00


98 Curb and Gutter Removal LF 600 $9.60 $5,760.00 $9.60 $5,760.00


99 30-IN Curb and Gutter LF 600 $34.45 $20,670.00 $34.45 $20,670.00


100 Concrete Driveway Removal SY 40 $31.50 $1,260.00 $31.50 $1,260.00


101 6-IN Concrete Driveway Apron SF 350 $6.50 $2,275.00 $6.50 $2,275.00


102 Pulverize and Grade Existing Asphalt Pavement and Base Course SY 2550 $3.95 $10,072.50 $2.97 $7,573.50


103 Excavation Below Subgrade (EBS) CY 300 $18.00 $5,400.00 $14.00 $4,200.00


104 EBS Backfill T 600 $18.00 $10,800.00 $14.00 $8,400.00


105 Geotextile for Subgrade Stabilization SY 900 $2.25 $2,025.00 $3.50 $3,150.00


106 Adjust MH Casting to Grade INCL New Adjusting Rings EA 2 $350.00 $700.00 $565.00 $1,130.00


107 Replace Inlet Casting and Adjusting Rings EA 2 $750.00 $1,500.00 $965.00 $1,930.00


108 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Lower Course T 360 $75.60 $27,216.00 $85.00 $30,600.00


109 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Upper Course T 280 $75.60 $21,168.00 $89.00 $24,920.00


110 Asphalt Driveway Apron SF 450 $6.45 $2,902.50 $4.50 $2,025.00


111 Traffic Control LS 1 $500.00 $500.00 $2,965.00 $2,965.00


112 Turf Restoration (Topsoil, Seed, and Mulch) LS 1 $4,800.00 $4,800.00 $1,700.00 $1,700.00


113 Erosion Control LS 1 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00


114 Curb and Gutter Removal LF 225 $9.60 $2,160.00 $9.60 $2,160.00


115 30-IN Curb and Gutter LF 225 $34.45 $7,751.25 $34.45 $7,751.25


116 Concrete Sidewalk and Driveway Removal SY 250 $31.50 $7,875.00 $31.50 $7,875.00


Riverview Drive/Truman Road


Silverado Drive







117 5-IN Concrete Sidewalk SF 1450 $6.35 $9,207.50 $6.35 $9,207.50


118 6-IN Concrete Sidewalk SF 350 $6.85 $2,397.50 $6.85 $2,397.50


119 6-IN Concrete Diveway Apron SF 150 $6.50 $975.00 $6.50 $975.00


120 Pulverize and Grade Existing Asphalt Pavement and Base Course SY 2200 $3.95 $8,690.00 $2.97 $6,534.00


121 Excavation Below Subgrade (EBS) CY 260 $18.00 $4,680.00 $14.00 $3,640.00


122 EBS Backfill T 320 $18.00 $5,760.00 $18.00 $5,760.00


123 Geotextile for Subgrade Stabilization SY 750 $2.25 $1,687.50 $3.50 $2,625.00


124 Adjust MH Casting to Grade INCL Adjusting Rings EA 1 $350.00 $350.00 $565.00 $565.00


125 Adjust Water Valve Box to Grade EA 1 $175.00 $175.00 $125.00 $125.00


126 Replace Inlet Casting and Adjusting Rings EA 2 $725.00 $1,450.00 $575.00 $1,150.00


127 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Lower Course T 310 $75.60 $23,436.00 $85.00 $26,350.00


128 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Upper Course T 240 $75.60 $18,144.00 $88.00 $21,120.00


129 Asphalt Driveway Apron SF 150 $6.45 $967.50 $3.00 $450.00


130 Traffic Control LS 1 $600.00 $600.00 $2,355.00 $2,355.00


131 Turf Restoration (Topsoil, Seed, and Mulch) LS 1 $3,100.00 $3,100.00 $5,600.00 $5,600.00


132 Erosion Control LS 1 $1,700.00 $1,700.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00


133 Curb and Gutter Removal LF 210 $9.60 $2,016.00 $9.60 $2,016.00


134 30-IN Curb and Gutter LF 210 $34.45 $7,234.50 $34.45 $7,234.50


135 Concrete Sidewalk and Driveway Removal SY 140 $31.50 $4,410.00 $31.50 $4,410.00


136 5-IN Concrete Sidewalk SF 550 $6.35 $3,492.50 $6.35 $3,492.50


137 6-IN Concrete Sidewalk SF 120 $6.85 $822.00 $6.85 $822.00


138 7-IN Concrete Sidewalk SF 160 $7.35 $1,176.00 $7.35 $1,176.00


139 6-IN Concrete Driveway Apron SF 200 $6.50 $1,300.00 $6.50 $1,300.00


140 Pulverize and Grade Existing Asphalt Pavement and Base Course SY 1850 $3.95 $7,307.50 $3.17 $5,864.50


141 Excavation Below Subgrade (EBS) CY 250 $18.00 $4,500.00 $14.00 $3,500.00


142 EBS Backfill T 500 $18.00 $9,000.00 $18.00 $9,000.00


143 Geotextile for Subgrade Stabilization SY 650 $2.25 $1,462.50 $3.50 $2,275.00


144 Replace Inlet Casting and Adjusting Rings EA 4 $725.00 $2,900.00 $575.00 $2,300.00


145 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Lower Course T 260 $75.60 $19,656.00 $88.00 $22,880.00


146 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Upper Course T 200 $75.60 $15,120.00 $96.00 $19,200.00


147 Asphalt Driveway Apron SF 240 $6.45 $1,548.00 $4.00 $960.00


148 Traffic Control LS 1 $500.00 $500.00 $2,355.00 $2,355.00


Kings Lynn Road







149 Turf Restoration (Topsoil, Seed, and Mulch) LS 1 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00


150 Erosion Control LS 1 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00


151 Concrete Crosswalk Removal SY 25 $600.00 $15,000.00 $7.00 $175.00


152 Pulverize and Grade Existing Asphalt Pavement and Base Course SY 2400 $3.95 $9,480.00 $3.17 $7,608.00


153 Excavation Below subgrade (EBS) CY 200 $18.00 $3,600.00 $14.00 $2,800.00


154 EBS Backfill T 400 $18.00 $7,200.00 $18.00 $7,200.00


155 Geotextile for Subgrade Stabilization SY 600 $2.25 $1,350.00 $3.50 $2,100.00


156 Adjust MH Casting to Grade INCL Adjusting Rings EA 4 $350.00 $1,400.00 $565.00 $2,260.00


157 Adjust Water Valve Box to Grade EA 7 $175.00 $1,225.00 $125.00 $875.00


158 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Lower Course T 375 $75.60 $28,350.00 $92.00 $34,500.00


159 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Upper Course T 310 $75.60 $23,436.00 $95.00 $29,450.00


160 Asphalt Pavement Street Patch (INCL Sawcut, Pavement Removal, 4-IN Asphalt Material) SY 700 $30.00 $21,000.00 $42.00 $29,400.00


161 Existing Pavement Marking Line Removal LF 4100 $0.45 $1,845.00 $0.45 $1,845.00


162 4-IN Double Yellow Epoxy Centerline Marking LF 3050 $2.25 $6,862.50 $2.25 $6,862.50


163 4-IN Single Yellow Epoxy Line Marking LF 180 $1.50 $270.00 $1.50 $270.00


164 8-IN Diagonal Yellow Epoxy Gore Line LF 40 $7.00 $280.00 $7.00 $280.00


165 Traffic Control LS 1 $500.00 $500.00 $2,355.00 $2,355.00


166 Erosion Control LS 1 $750.00 $750.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00


167 5-IN Concrete Sidewalk Removal and Replacement INCL Restoration SF 12500 $18.25 $228,125.00 $18.25 $228,125.00


168 6-IN Concrete Sidewalk Removal and Replacement INCL Restoration SF 1450 $19.00 $27,550.00 $19.00 $27,550.00


Page Street


City-Wide Sidewalk Replacement


Base Bid Total: $1,628,550.67 $1,669,074.75







2022 STREET CONSTRUCTION
FOR THE


CITY OF STOUGHTON
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN


MARCH 2022


SHEET


A S S O C I A T E S®


Strand Associates, Inc.
910 West Wingra Drive
Madison, WI 53715
608-251-4843
 www.strand.com


1CONTRACT 2-2022


PROJECT LOCATION MAP
NO SCALE


DRAWING LIST
SHEET NO. SHEET TITLE


1 TITLE SHEET
2 STANDARD NOTES AND SYMBOLS
3 TYPICAL SECTIONS
4 DETAILS AND INLET SCHEDULE
5 ROWE STREET - PLAN AN PROFILE
6 BEN WAITE CIRCLE - PLAN AND PROFILE
7 ROWE STREET - INTERSECTION DETAIL
8 BEN WAITE CIRCLE - INTERSECTION DETAIL


9-15 ROWE STREET - CROSS SECTIONS
16-21 BEN WAITE CIRCLE - CROSS SECTIONS


22 GILES STREET - PLAN
23 HOLTAN ROAD - PULVERIZATION PLAN
24 HILCREST ROAD - PULVERIZATION PLAN
25 TRUMAN ROAD - PULVERIZATION PLAN
26 SILVERADO DRIVE - PULVERIZATION PLAN
27 KINGS LYNN ROAD - PULVERIZATION PLAN


28-30 MILWAUKEE STREET - PULVERIZATION PLAN
31-33 MILWAUKEE STREET - INTERSECTION DETAILS
34-35 NORTH PAGE STREET - PLAN
36-39 NORTH PAGE STREET - CROSS SECTIONS


40 AREA SIDEWALK REPLACEMENTS - OVERVIEW PLAN


HILLCREST AND
HOLTAN ROAD
PROJECT LOCATION


SILVERADO DRIVE
PROJECT LOCATION


KINGS LYNN ROAD
PROJECT LOCATION


MILWAUKEE STREET
PROJECT LOCATION


TRUMAN ROAD
PROJECT LOCATION


STATE MAP
CITY OF STOUGHTON
DANE COUNTY, WI


NORTH PAGE STREET
PROJECT LOCATION


GILES STREET
PROJECT LOCATION


ROWE STREET /
BEN WAITE CIRCLE
PROJECT LOCATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO SCALE







23


41


40


36


50


63


55


56


14


24
22


21


19


4


38


35


51


37


48


43
49


39


6
7


3


33


8 9
1
2


3
31


10
11


61


12


57


17


58


22


42


45
47


44
46


20


60


59


52


53 54


62


34


30


16


29


13


15
28


26


27


25


32


A
R


E
A


 S
ID


E
W


A
LK


 R
E


P
LA


C
E


M
E


N
T


O
V


E
R


V
IE


W
 P


LA
N


40


A S S O C I A T E S®


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


20
22


 S
T


R
E


E
T


 C
O


N
S


T
R


U
C


T
IO


N
 


C
IT


Y
 O


F 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E


 C
O


U
N


T
Y


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


1040.137


MAF


N. PAG
E ST.


W
SO


R


GREIG TRAIL


LI
N


C
O


LN
 A


VE
.


N
. P


A
G


E 
ST


.


S.
 P


A
G


E 
ST


.


W. MILWAUKEE ST.


S.
 4


TH
 S


T.


S.
 V


A
N


 B
U


R
EN


 S
T.


W. SOUTH ST.


W. MILWAUKEE ST.


W. MAIN ST.


USH 51
USH 51 / E. MAIN ST.


JACKSON ST.


NORTH ST.


KING
S LYNN RD.


ROBY RD.


BUCKINGHAM RD.


JO
H


N
SO


N
 S


T.


W
SOR


PROSPECT ST.


LI
N


C
O


LN
 A


VE
.


W. TAFT ST.


N
. M


A
D


IS
O


N
 S


T.


DUNKIRK AVE.


E. ACADEMY ST.


S.
 A


C
A


D
EM


Y 
ST


.


VERNON ST.


VE
TE


R
A


N
S 


R
D


.


MOLINE ST.


H
IL


LS
ID


E 
A


VE
.


GILES ST.


S.
 F


R
A


N
K


LI
N


 S
T.


RIDGE ST.


C
TH


 N


CEDARBROOK LN


USH 51 / W. MAIN ST.


S.
 6


TH
 S


T.


USH 51.



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

250



AutoCAD SHX Text

500



AutoCAD SHX Text

1000





		12 R-104-022 - An agreement with Payne & Dolan, Inc. for the 2022 Street Construction Contract 2-2022

		12a  An agreement with Payne & Dolan, Inc for the 2022 Street Construction Contrract 2-2022

		Finance 4-29-2022 - 2022 Pulverize Project.pdf

		Bid Summary Letter.pdf

		040722

		Stoughton.2-2022.BidTab



		3.17.22_C2-2022_2022 Street Construction.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		Title

		Plot





		Sheets and Views

		40 22x34 Area Sidewalk Replacements

		Plot




















CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN  


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Wolf Paving & 


Excavating of Madison for the 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022. 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee –  
  


Fiscal Impact: $958,329.75 (City) 
$808,097.50 (Stoughton Utilities) 


   
File Number: 


 
R -105- 2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
May 10, 2022 


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, Contract 1-2022 includes total street reconstruction of Academy Street from East Street to 
E. South Street including sidewalks, utilities, and storm sewer; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City received three competitive bids; and 
 
WHEREAS, Strand & Associates, the City’s contracted engineering firm, has reviewed the bids and 
supports awarding the contract to the low responsible bidder, Wolf Paving & Excavating of Madison; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the low base bid is $1,766,427.25 which includes $808,097.50 for Stoughton Utilities 
items; now therefore  
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 
hereby directed and authorized to enter into an agreement with Wolf Paving & Excavating of Madison 
with a base bid of $1,766,427.25 subject to Stoughton Utilities acceptance of their base bid items for 
$808,097.50 and to reject the two Bid Alternatives, conditioned upon approval as to form by the City 
Attorney.   
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
                                             
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R -- 2022 - Street Pulverization Project.docx 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
 


 
 
Date:  May 3, 2022 
 
To:  Finance Committee  
 
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
Subject: 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Project – Contract 1-2022 
 
The 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Project includes the total reconstruction of Academy 
Street from East Street to E. South Street.  Two Bid Alternatives for separate Stoughton Utility 
Projects were also part of the Bid Package. 
 
We received three bids for this project.  The low bidder is Wolf Paving & Excavating of 
Madison with a base bid of $1,766,427.55 of which $766,830 is related to Stoughton Utilities 
items.   
 
It is our recommendation to award the contract to the low bidder, Wolf Paving & Excavating of 
Madison with a base bid of $1,766,427.55 subject to Stoughton Utilities acceptance of their base 
bid items for $766,830.  It is our understanding that Stoughton Utilities desires to reject the two 
Bid Alternatives.  Award of Contract 1-2022 (Academy Street) and Contract 2-2022 
(Pulverization Project) as recommended allows the City to maintain approximately a 4% 
contingency for these projects. 
 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
    


 
 
 
 
 
 


S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Finance 5-3-2022 - 2022 Academy Street.docx 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





2022 Street Construction ‐ Stormwater 447,040.00$             
2022 Street Construction   1,827,186.00$          Removed $20,000 for Racetrack Road Engineering
Preventative Maintenance Budget 120,000.00$             
2022 Sidewalk Projects 100,000.00$             


Total 2,494,226.00$         


Base Project Bid 4% Contingency
Total Project Costs w/ 


Contingency
SU Trench 


Participation
Final City Cost


Total 2022 
Budget


Balance


Contract 2 ‐ Pulverization 1,359,150.67$         


Contract 1 ‐ Academy Reconstruct 999,597.25$             


Rutland Dunn Townline Rd 45,000.00$               
2,403,747.92$            


Contract 2‐ Pulverize ‐ Base Bid 1,628,550.67$            
Remove City Wide Sidewalk Replacement 255,675.00$                
Sto Utilities Items 13,725.00$                  


1,359,150.67$            


Contract 1 ‐ Academy Street Recon ‐ Base Bid 1,766,427.25$            
Sto Utilities Items 766,830.00$                


999,597.25$                


\\sto‐fs1\city‐shared$\Planning\RJS\STREET\2022 Street Projects\2022 Road Construction Budget Breakdown ‐ Bids.xlsx


16,728.16$    


Removed Sidewalk Program from Contract 2


22,400.00$               2,477,497.84$   


Updated: 5‐3‐2022


2022 Road Construction Project Budget Breakdown


2022 Road Construction Budget


96,149.92$          2,499,897.84$                2,494,226.00$   







 


1040.137\MAF:lerR:\MAD\Documents\Specifications\Archive\2022\Stoughton, City of (WI)\1040.137.1-2022.MAF\(16) Specification Letters\(a) Resulting Bid Tabulation\042122.docx 


 
 
April 21, 2022 
 
 
Mr. Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and Development 
City of Stoughton 
207 South Forrest Street   
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 
Re: Academy Street Reconstruction 


Contract 1-2022 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 
Dear Rodney, 
 
Bids for the Academy Street Reconstruction project were opened on April 20, 2022. Three Bids were 
received with the resulting Bid tabulation enclosed.  
 
Wolf Paving & Excavating of Madison, Inc. (Wolf Paving) of Sun Prairie, Wisconsin, was the apparent 
low Bidder with a base bid of $1,766,427.25. The Bid included a Bid Bond for 10 percent and Addendum 
No. 1 was acknowledged. The Bid is deemed to be responsive. 
 
Wolf Paving’s bid for Alternative Bid No. 1 was $36,350. Alternative Bid No. 1 includes water main 
abandonment on West South Street for Stoughton Utilities.  
 
Wolf Paving’s bid for Alternative Bid No. 2 was $16,000. Alternative Bid No. 2 includes water main 
abandonment on Giles Street for Stoughton Utilities.  
 


Strand Associates, Inc. has previously worked with Wolf Paving on projects for the City of Stoughton, 
Village of Waunakee, and Town of Brookfield. For those projects, the owners determined Wolf Paving 
to be responsible. Wolf Paving was a prequalified bidder, so if a Contract is to be awarded, we 
recommend proceeding in accordance with Article 18 of the Instructions to Bidders.  
 
Please contact me with any questions regarding this project. 


 
Sincerely, 
 
STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC.® 


 
Mark A. Fisher, P.E. 
 
Enclosure 
 
c:   Brett Hebert, Director of Public Works, City of Stoughton 
 Jill Weiss, P.E., Utilities Director, Stoughton Utilities    







Section Title Line Item Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension


1 8-IN DIA PVC Sanitary Sewer LF 180 $100.00 $18,000.00 $228.00 $41,040.00 $195.64 $35,215.20


2 12-IN DIA PVC Sanitary Sewer LF 130 $145.00 $18,850.00 $315.00 $40,950.00 $210.89 $27,415.70


3 15-IN DIA PVC Sanitary Sewer LF 700 $195.00 $136,500.00 $312.00 $218,400.00 $229.94 $160,958.00


4 21-IN DIA PVC Sanitary Sewer LF 110 $375.00 $41,250.00 $510.00 $56,100.00 $351.90 $38,709.00


5 Install 100-LF of Minimum 36-IN Steel Casing for Sanitary Sewer (INCL 21-IN PVC Sanitary Sewer) (No Open Cut Allowed) LS 1 $198,925.00 $198,925.00 $145,000.00 $145,000.00 $276,947.20 $276,947.20


6 15-IN by 4-IN Wye Fitting EA 6 $715.00 $4,290.00 $782.00 $4,692.00 $2,937.16 $17,622.96


7 15-IN by 6-IN Wye Fitting EA 6 $795.00 $4,770.00 $852.00 $5,112.00 $3,013.39 $18,080.34


8 12-IN by 4-IN Wye Fitting EA 1 $460.00 $460.00 $505.00 $505.00 $2,631.00 $2,631.00


9 12-IN by 6-IN Wye Fitting EA 1 $485.00 $485.00 $534.00 $534.00 $2,664.03 $2,664.03


10 4-IN PVC Sanitary Sewer Lateral LF 200 $72.00 $14,400.00 $102.00 $20,400.00 $95.28 $19,056.00


11 6-IN PVC Sanirary Sewer Lateral LF 200 $75.00 $15,000.00 $109.00 $21,800.00 $102.90 $20,580.00


12 4-FT DIA Sanitary Sewer MH EA 10 $5,385.00 $53,850.00 $8,066.00 $80,660.00 $7,279.39 $72,793.90


13 5-FT DIA Sanitary Sewer MH EA 2 $8,105.00 $16,210.00 $11,120.00 $22,240.00 $10,069.19 $20,138.38


14 Connect New Sanitary Sewer to Existing MH LS 1 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $1,196.00 $1,196.00 $19,036.94 $19,036.94


15 Sanitary Sewer Spot Repair EA 1 $3,510.00 $3,510.00 $18,825.00 $18,825.00 $7,908.24 $7,908.24


16 Remove and Replace MH Casting and Adjusting Rings EA 2 $915.00 $1,830.00 $1,425.00 $2,850.00 $1,060.78 $2,121.56


17 Abandon/Remove Existing Sanitary Sewer LS 1 $6,275.00 $6,275.00 $2,530.00 $2,530.00 $13,148.64 $13,148.64


18 Hauled-In Granular Backfill for Sanitary Sewer T 3800 $16.00 $60,800.00 $26.00 $98,800.00 $8.96 $34,048.00


19 4-IN DIA Water Main LF 35 $137.00 $4,795.00 $167.00 $5,845.00 $205.80 $7,203.00


20 6-IN DIA Water Main or Fire Hydrant Lead LF 30 $118.00 $3,540.00 $137.00 $4,110.00 $177.86 $5,335.80


21 8-IN DIA Water Main LF 190 $185.00 $35,150.00 $148.00 $28,120.00 $203.26 $38,619.40


22 8-IN Valve and Road Box EA 1 $3,035.00 $3,035.00 $3,516.00 $3,516.00 $4,753.84 $4,753.84


23 10-IN Valve and Road Box EA 2 $4,405.00 $8,810.00 $2,706.00 $5,412.00 $6,198.28 $12,396.56


24 Fire Hydrant W/ Auxiliary Valve and Road Box EA 3 $8,270.00 $24,810.00 $8,912.00 $26,736.00 $11,236.69 $33,710.07


25 1-IN Corporation Stop, Curb Stop, and Box EA 1 $735.00 $735.00 $827.00 $827.00 $4,358.74 $4,358.74


26 1-IN Water Service LF 30 $70.00 $2,100.00 $102.00 $3,060.00 $80.04 $2,401.20


27 Lower Existing Water Service EA 8 $2,500.00 $20,000.00 $980.00 $7,840.00 $2,477.28 $19,818.24


28 Lower Existing 10-IN Water Main INCL Water Main, Fittings, and Connections EA 2 $9,500.00 $19,000.00 $6,904.00 $13,808.00 $11,223.98 $22,447.96


29 Connect New Fire Hydrant Lead to Existing Water Main Tee EA 3 $1,250.00 $3,750.00 $6,332.00 $18,996.00 $896.90 $2,690.70


30 Connect New Water Main to Existing Water Main EA 4 $1,850.00 $7,400.00 $6,105.00 $24,420.00 $4,840.22 $19,360.88


31 Adjust Existing Water Valve Box EA 10 $215.00 $2,150.00 $431.00 $4,310.00 $412.88 $4,128.80


32 Abandon Existing Water Main and Appurtenances LS 1 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $2,530.00 $2,530.00 $10,798.40 $10,798.40


33 Hauled-In Granular Backfill for Water Main T 350 $16.00 $5,600.00 $26.00 $9,100.00 $8.96 $3,136.00


34 Slurry Backfill for Water Main CY 90 $250.00 $22,500.00 $224.00 $20,160.00 $181.67 $16,350.30


35 12-IN RCP Storm Sewer LF 300 $54.15 $16,245.00 $87.00 $26,100.00 $82.58 $24,774.00


Sanitary Sewer


Water Main


Storm Sewer


Academy Street Reconstruction, Contract 1-2022, City of Stoughton, Wisconsin (#8164286)


Contract 1-2022


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin


Solicitor: Strand Associates, Inc.


April 20, 2022  1 P.M.


Wolf Paving Fischer Excavating, Inc. Speedway Sand & Gravel Inc.


 1040.137\MAF:ler\R:\MAD\Documents\Specifications\Archive\2022\Stoughton, City of (WI)\1040.137.1-2022.MAF\(14) Bid Tabs\Stoughton.1-2022.BidTab.xlsx







36 15-IN RCP Storm Sewer LF 160 $57.65 $9,224.00 $83.00 $13,280.00 $86.39 $13,822.40


37 18-IN RCP Storm Sewer LF 100 $62.85 $6,285.00 $95.00 $9,500.00 $96.55 $9,655.00


38 24-IN RCP Storm Sewer LF 185 $84.25 $15,586.25 $112.00 $20,720.00 $158.80 $29,378.00


39 27-IN RCP Storm Sewer (EXCL Fittings) LF 20 $107.95 $2,159.00 $135.00 $2,700.00 $236.29 $4,725.80


40 36-IN RCP Storm Sewer LF 670 $175.60 $117,652.00 $181.00 $121,270.00 $235.02 $157,463.40


41 6-IN PVC Underdrain for Roadway LF 150 $35.00 $5,250.00 $30.00 $4,500.00 $57.10 $8,565.00


42 4-FT DIA Storm Sewer MH EA 3 $2,775.00 $8,325.00 $3,889.00 $11,667.00 $4,871.98 $14,615.94


43 5-FT DIA Storm Sewer MH EA 6 $4,225.00 $25,350.00 $5,674.00 $34,044.00 $6,900.81 $41,404.86


44 6-FT DIA Storm Sewer MH EA 2 $6,250.00 $12,500.00 $7,860.00 $15,720.00 $8,750.52 $17,501.04


45 7-FT DIA Storm Sewer MH EA 1 $8,465.00 $8,465.00 $10,916.00 $10,916.00 $12,249.20 $12,249.20


46 2-FT by 3-FT Storm Sewer Inlet EA 25 $2,145.00 $53,625.00 $3,435.00 $85,875.00 $2,953.68 $73,842.00


47 12-IN DIA RCP Bend Fitting EA 1 $1,270.00 $1,270.00 $1,634.00 $1,634.00 $2,235.90 $2,235.90


48 27-IN DIA RCP Bend Fitting EA 2 $3,675.00 $7,350.00 $3,220.00 $6,440.00 $4,052.58 $8,105.16


49 36-IN DIA RCP Apron End Wall W/ Pipe Gate and Cut-Off Wall EA 1 $5,115.00 $5,115.00 $5,232.00 $5,232.00 $7,006.26 $7,006.26


50 Replace Inlet Casting and Adjusting Rings EA 1 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $1,326.00 $1,326.00 $1,067.14 $1,067.14


51


Replace Rectangular Storm Sewer Casting W/ Solid Precast Concrete Top Slab at Inlet Structure Near Academy Street/Lynn 


Street Intersection (EXCL Concrete Repairs) LS 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $2,357.00 $2,357.00 $813.06 $813.06


52 Precast Concrete Top Slab at Inlet Structure Near Academy Street/Lynn Street Intersection (EXCL Concrete Repairs) LS 1 $2,750.00 $2,750.00 $1,490.00 $1,490.00 $3,671.46 $3,671.46


53 Abandon/Remove Existing Storm Sewer LS 1 $11,350.00 $11,350.00 $3,550.00 $3,550.00 $13,656.80 $13,656.80


54 Hauled-In Granular Backfill for Storm Sewer T 650 $16.00 $10,400.00 $20.50 $13,325.00 $8.96 $5,824.00


55 Concrete Driveway and Sidewalk Removal SY 1500 $3.75 $5,625.00 $12.00 $18,000.00 $22.87 $34,305.00


56 Concrete Curb and Gutter Removal LF 3650 $2.25 $8,212.50 $4.00 $14,600.00 $5.08 $18,542.00


57 Common Excavation LS 1 $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $149,500.00 $149,500.00 $166,803.71 $166,803.71


58 EBS Excavation CY 750 $14.00 $10,500.00 $22.00 $16,500.00 $30.81 $23,107.50


59 EBS Backfill T 1500 $14.00 $21,000.00 $20.00 $30,000.00 $11.94 $17,910.00


60 Geotextile for Subgrade Stabilzation SY 2500 $4.00 $10,000.00 $2.00 $5,000.00 $3.18 $7,950.00


61 Crushed Aggregate Base Course T 6000 $13.25 $79,500.00 $23.00 $138,000.00 $23.76 $142,560.00


62 30-IN Concrete Curb and Gutter LF 3600 $20.50 $73,800.00 $19.00 $68,400.00 $31.25 $112,500.00


63 Concrete Valley Gutter SF 350 $12.85 $4,497.50 $13.00 $4,550.00 $12.01 $4,203.50


64 5-IN Concrete Sidewalk SF 13000 $6.10 $79,300.00 $6.00 $78,000.00 $8.64 $112,320.00


65 6-IN Concrete Sidewalk SF 1800 $6.50 $11,700.00 $7.00 $12,600.00 $9.27 $16,686.00


66 6-IN Concrete Driveway Apron SF 1800 $7.15 $12,870.00 $7.00 $12,600.00 $9.27 $16,686.00


67 Cast Iron Detectable Warning at Sidewalk Ramps SF 200 $40.25 $8,050.00 $35.00 $7,000.00 $71.14 $14,228.00


68 Asphaltic Concrete Driveway Apron SF 380 $5.00 $1,900.00 $8.50 $3,230.00 $6.35 $2,413.00


69 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Lower Course T 1000 $82.00 $82,000.00 $78.50 $78,500.00 $99.09 $99,090.00


70 Asphaltic Concrete Pavement - Upper Course T 800 $88.00 $70,400.00 $79.00 $63,200.00 $101.63 $81,304.00


71 Turf Restoration - Topsoil, Seed, and Mulch LS 1 $25,500.00 $25,500.00 $20,500.00 $20,500.00 $29,505.04 $29,505.04


72 Turf Restoration - Topsoil and Sod LS 1 $19,500.00 $19,500.00 $5,800.00 $5,800.00 $14,793.81 $14,793.81


73 Erosion Mat SY 700 $2.15 $1,505.00 $1.20 $840.00 $2.86 $2,002.00


74 Utility Insulation SF 200 $4.50 $900.00 $2.00 $400.00 $4.83 $966.00


75 Insulate Existing Sanitary Sewer SF 300 $8.00 $2,400.00 $15.00 $4,500.00 $30.87 $9,261.00


76 Guard Rail Removal LS 1 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $635.20 $635.20


77 New Guard Rail LF 66 $196.50 $12,969.00 $151.00 $9,966.00 $191.83 $12,660.78


Street Construction and Restoration


Miscellaneous


 1040.137\MAF:ler\R:\MAD\Documents\Specifications\Archive\2022\Stoughton, City of (WI)\1040.137.1-2022.MAF\(14) Bid Tabs\Stoughton.1-2022.BidTab.xlsx







78 Grouted Medium Riprap SY 40 $145.00 $5,800.00 $145.00 $5,800.00 $184.21 $7,368.40


79 Stump Removal EA 10 $361.20 $3,612.00 $316.00 $3,160.00 $825.76 $8,257.60


80 24-IN White Epoxy Continental-Style Crosswalk Line LF 42 $75.00 $3,150.00 $75.00 $3,150.00 $95.28 $4,001.76


81 Erosion Control LS 1 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $10,182.00 $10,182.00 $26,519.60 $26,519.60


82 Traffic Control LS 1 $39,555.00 $39,555.00 $9,900.00 $9,900.00 $7,622.40 $7,622.40


A-1 Abandon Existing Water Main LS 1 $17,500.00 $17,500.00 $2,656.00 $2,656.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00


A-2 1-IN Water Service LF 30 $90.00 $2,700.00 $102.00 $3,060.00 $63.00 $1,890.00


A-3 1-IN Corporation Stop, Curb Stop, and Box EA 1 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $828.00 $828.00 $4,121.00 $4,121.00


A-4 Sidewalk Removal and Replacement SF 50 $25.00 $1,250.00 $20.00 $1,000.00 $22.00 $1,100.00


A-5 Curb and Gutter Removal and Replacement LF 10 $65.00 $650.00 $80.00 $800.00 $50.00 $500.00


A-6 4-IN Asphalt Pavement Patch SY 200 $65.00 $13,000.00 $64.00 $12,800.00 $62.40 $12,480.00


B-1 Abandon Existing Water Main LS 1 $9,500.00 $9,500.00 $2,530.00 $2,530.00 $8,300.00 $8,300.00


B-2 4-IN Asphalt Pavement Patch SY 100 $65.00 $6,500.00 $65.00 $6,500.00 $72.60 $7,260.00


Speedway Sand & Gravel Inc.Bid Alternative No. 2 - Giles Street


Bid Alternative No. 2 Total: $16,000.00 $9,030.00 $15,560.00


Wolf Paving Fischer Excavating, Inc. Speedway Sand & Gravel Inc.


Wolf Paving Fischer Excavating, Inc.


$1,766,427.25 $2,126,448.00 $2,441,163.70


Bid Alternative No. 1 - West South Street


Bid Alternative No. 1 Total: $36,350.00 $21,144.00 $32,591.00


Base Bid Total:


 1040.137\MAF:ler\R:\MAD\Documents\Specifications\Archive\2022\Stoughton, City of (WI)\1040.137.1-2022.MAF\(14) Bid Tabs\Stoughton.1-2022.BidTab.xlsx







ACADEMY STREET RECONSTRUCTION
FOR THE


CITY OF STOUGHTON
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN


MARCH 2022


SHEET


A S S O C I A T E S®


Strand Associates, Inc.
910 West Wingra Drive
Madison, WI 53715
608-251-4843
www.strand.com


1CONTRACT 1-2022


PROJECT LOCATION MAP
NO SCALE


DRAWING LIST
SHEET NO. SHEET TITLE


1 TITLE SHEET


2 STANDARD NOTES AND SYMBOLS


3 TYPICAL SECTIONS AND INLET SCHEDULE


4 EROSION CONTROL NOTES AND DETAILS


5-7 EROSION CONTROL AND RESTORATION PLAN


8-11 ACADEMY STREET - PLAN AND PROFILE


12 CLAY STREET AND GARDEN AVENUE - PLAN AND PROFILE


13 SOUTH STREET - PLAN AND PROFILE


14 DUNKIRK AVENUE - PLAN AND PROFILE


15 GARDEN AVENUE WATER MAIN CONSTRUCTION - PLAN AND PROFILE


16 RAILROAD SANITARY CROSSING - PLAN AND PROFILE


17-18 ACADEMY STREET - INTERSECTION DETAILS


19-43 ACADEMY STREET - CROSS SECTIONS


ALTERNATE BID NO. 1


44 WEST SOUTH STREET - WATER MAIN ABANDONMENT


ALTERNATE BID NO. 2


45 GILES STREET - WATER MAIN ABANDONMENT


STATE MAP
CITY OF STOUGHTON
DANE COUNTY, WI


ALTERNATE BID NO. 1
W SOUTH STREET
PROJECT LOCATION


ACADEMY STREET
PROJECT LOCATION


ALTERNATE BID NO. 2
GILES STREET
PROJECT LOCATION


STATE MAP
CITY OF STOUGHTON
DANE COUNTY, WI





		13 R-105-2022 - An agreement with Wolf Paving & Excavating of Madison for the 2022 Academy St Reconstruction Contract 1-2022

		13a An agreement with Wolf Paving & Excavating of Madison for the 2022 Academy St Reconstruction Contract 1-2022

		Finance 5-3-2022 - 2022 Academy Street.pdf

		Bid Summary Letter with Bid Tabulation.pdf

		042122

		Stoughton.1-2022.BidTab



		4.4.22_Academy Street Reconstruction.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		1 Title

		Plot




















CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


First Amendment to Agreement to Undertake Development with RHD Properties, LLC for 
51 West Development 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
 


 
Fiscal Impact:   Zero 
 
File Number: 


 
R-106-2022 


 
Date 5/10/2022   
044/26/24/02020


 


 


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the Common Council approved the developer’s agreement with RHD 
Properties, LLC for 51 West Development under Resolution R-79-2022 on April 12, 2022; and, 


 WHEREAS, the developer’s agreement should be amended regarding Professional 
Liability Coverage as per the attached First Amendment to Agreement to Undertake Development 
for 51 West Development; and, 


 WHEREAS, the attached First Amendment to Agreement to Undertake Development for 
51 West Development has been reviewed as to form by the City Attorney;  


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council authorizes the 
Mayor and City Clerk to sign the First Amendment to Agreement to Undertake Development for 
51 West Development on behalf of the City of Stoughton. 


 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
AGREEMENT TO UNDERTAKE DEVELOPMENT 


(51 West Development)


THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT TO UNDERTAKE DEVELOPMENT 
entered into as of the _______ day of_________________, 2022 (the “First Amendment”), by 
and between the City of Stoughton, a Wisconsin municipal corporation (the “City”), and RHD 
Properties, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability corporation (the “Developer”). 


RECITALS 


1. The City and Developer entered an Agreement to Undertake Development (51 West 
Development) dated as of ____________________, 2022 (the "Development Agreement").   


2. The City and Developer wish to amend certain parts of the Development Agreement 
relating to insurance requirements. 


AGREEMENT 


In consideration of the Recitals, and the mutual promises, obligations and benefits 
provided under the Development Agreement and hereunder, the receipt and adequacy of which 
are hereby acknowledged, Developer and the City agree as follows: 


A. Section F. 10 (a) of the Development Agreement is amended to provide as follows: 


(a) General requirements.  Except as expressly provided otherwise below, 
Developer and Developer’s engineering consultants and contractors designing or performing 
any work on the Public Improvements shall, at no cost to the City, maintain in effect at all 
times during the construction of the Public Improvements insurance coverage of the types and 
with limits not less than those set forth in this Section F. 10.  A start date for construction shall 
not be approved until a list of Developer’s contractors and proof of insurance have been 
provided to the Planning Director.  Proof of insurance shall include a certificate of insurance 
(Acord Form or equivalent for all coverages) signed by the insurer’s representative evidencing 
the coverage required by this Agreement.  The Commercial General Liability coverage must 
include the coverages described in form CG 20 10 07 04 for ongoing work exposure and form 
CG 20 37 07 04 for products-completed operations exposure or their equivalent.  In addition, 
Developer shall provide endorsements acceptable to the City demonstrating that the 
requirements of Section F. 10. (e), relating to naming additional insureds, have been satisfied.    


B. Section F. 10 (i) (5) of the Development Agreement is amended to provide as follows: 


(5)  Professional Liability Coverage.  Developer and 
Developer’s engineering consultants engaged in designing the Public 







Improvements, but not Developer’s construction contractors, shall maintain 
professional liability insurance coverage as follows:


a. Limits  
i. $1,000,000 each claim  
ii. $1,000,000 annual aggregate  


b. Must comply with claims-made requirements in Section 
F. (10) (g), above. 


C. Except as expressly modified in this First Amendment, Development Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect. 


D. Each party participated fully in the drafting of each and every part of this First 
Amendment.  This First Amendment shall not be construed strictly in favor of or against either 
party.  It shall be construed simply and fairly to each party. 


E. This First Amendment shall be effective as of the date and year first written above.  


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 
year and date first set forth above, and by so signing this Agreement, certify that they have been 
duly authorized by their respective entities to execute this Agreement on their behalf. 


CITY: 
CITY OF STOUGHTON 
Dane County, Wisconsin 


By       
Tim Swadley, Mayor 


ATTEST: 


Candee Christen, City Clerk 







DEVELOPER: 
RHD PROPERTIES LLC 


By       
Robert H. Dvorak, Managing Member 





		14 R-106-2022 - First Amendment to Agreement to Undertake Development with RHD Properties LLC for 51 West Development

		14a First Amendment to Agreement to Undertake Development with RHD Properties LLC for 51 West Development






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit regarding Developer Agreement with RHD Properties, 
LLC for 51 West Development 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
 


 
Fiscal Impact:   $10,900,000 
 
File Number: 


 
R-107-2022 


 
Date 5/10/2022   
044/26/24/02020


 


 


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the Common Council approved the developer’s agreement with RHD 
Properties, LLC for 51 West Development under Resolution R-79-2022 on April 12, 2022; and, 


 WHEREAS, the developer’s agreement required a letter of credit for $10,900,000 shall be 
provided to the City of Stoughton; and, 


 WHEREAS, the attached Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit, Exhibit A, and Exhibit B 
have all been reviewed as to form by the City Attorney; and, 


 WHEREAS, the developer’s agreement requires that the letter of credit shall be issued by 
an entity that is acceptable to the City or has a rating of its long-term unsecured debt not lower 
than A1 by Moody’s Investors Service or A+ by Standard and Poor’s; and, 


 WHEREAS, One Community Bank does not currently have a relationship with either 
rating agency because the bank is privately held and has not issued any public debt instruments; 
and, 


 WHEREAS, One Community Bank has provided information to both the City of 
Stoughton Finance Committee and City of Stoughton Common Council sufficient to deem that 
One Community Bank’s Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit is acceptable to the City; 


 


 


 


 


 







NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council finds the 
Irrevocable Letter of Credit from One Community Bank in the attached format approved by the 
City Attorney is hereby accepted by the City of Stoughton Common Council. 


 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       








 


 


Meetings of:       COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   


Date//Time:       Tuesday, May 10, 2022, 7:00 p.m. 


Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting. (Virtual and in person) 


  Virtual: You can join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom:  


 


  https://zoom.us/j/99063359231?pwd=dkF3dDM5aGxYWml3N1gwT0lKRnA5UT09 


 


Meeting ID: 990 6335 9231 


Passcode: 343806 


One tap mobile 


+13126266799,,99063359231#,,,,*343806# US (Chicago)  


+19292056099,,99063359231#,,,,*343806# US (New York)  
 


  In person: Council Chambers, (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


           321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin    


  The meeting can also be livestreamed on https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum       


  Channel 981 or on TDS Channel 12. 


 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki,  


                 Tom Majewski, Lisa Reeves, Brett Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky, Rachel Venegas, and Frank Raff 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may 


only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via 


telephone (608) 873-6677 or via email cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


1. Roll Call 


 


2. Minutes and Reports: 


 Finance (12/28/21, 1/25/22, 2/22/22, 3/8/22, 4/12/22); RDA (9/8/21, 10/13/21, 11/4/22, 11/10/22, 12/8/21, 1/12/22, 


2/9/22); River & Trails (3/7/22); Joint Review Board (3/14/22, 10/14/21); Alcohol Policy Committee (4/05/22) 


 


3. Public Comment Period: 


• If you would like to speak during public comment period, please fill out the form and submit it by 


6:30 p.m. on May 10, 2022. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com.  
 


4. Communications and Presentations: 


• Historic Preservation Month 


• Police Week - Stoughton 


 


5. Consent Agenda: 


 A.  Council Minutes April 26, 2022 


 B.  R-98-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator licenses to various 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA - AMENDED 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



https://zoom.us/j/99063359231?pwd=dkF3dDM5aGxYWml3N1gwT0lKRnA5UT09

https://wsto.tv/live

mailto:cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





 applicants. 


C. R-99-2022 Resolution confirming the Mayor's Committee Appointments to Boards, Committees, and 


Commissions, Pursuant to 2-127 of the Municipal Code. 


  


OLD BUSINESS 


 


6. O-12-2022 Ordinance approving Planned Development – General Development Plan for property located at 


the northeast corner of Williams Drive and Glacier Moraine Dive (Emmi Roth).  (Plan Commission 


recommends approval 7-0)         Second Reading


   
7. O-13-2022 Ordinance amendments to sections 78-920 and 58-2. (Plan Commission recommends approval 7-


0)               


            Second Reading 


______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


8. R-100-2022   Amendment to the Water Utility 2022 Capital Improvement Plan to Fund the 2022 Academy 
Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022. (Utilities Comm. recommends approval 5-0 on 5/4/2022) 


 


9. R-101-2022 Amendment to the Wastewater Utility 2022 Capital Improvement Plan to Fund the 2022 Academy 


Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022.  (Utilities Comm. recommends approval 5-0 on 5/4/2022) 


 


10. R-102-2022 Amendment to the 2022 Stoughton Utilities Operating Budget to Fund the 2022 Academy Street 


Reconstruction Contract 1-2022.  (Utilities Comm. recommends approval 5-0 on 5/4/2022) 


 


11. R-103-2022 Bid Award of 2022 Academy Street Reconstruction Contract 1-2022 to Wolf Paving & Excavating 


of Madison, Inc. (Utilities Comm. recommends approval 5-0 on 5/4/2022) 


 


12.  R-104-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Payne 


& Dolan, Inc. for the 2022 Street Construction Contract 2-2022 


      Finance Committee meets May 10, 2022– TIME SENSTIVE ITEM 


13.  R-105-2022  Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Wolf 


Paving & Excavating of Madison for the 2022 Academy St Reconstruction Contract 1-2022. 


      Finance Committee meets May 10, 2022– TIME SENSTIVE ITEM 


 


14. R-106-2022  First Amendment to Agreement to Undertake Development with RHD Properties LLC for 51 


West Development    Finance Committee meets May 10, 2022– TIME SENSTIVE ITEM 


 


15. R-107-2022  Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit regarding Developer Agreement with RHD Properties, 


LLC for 51 West Development 


      Finance Committee meets May 10, 2022– TIME SENSTIVE ITEM 


16. R-108-2022  Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit Regarding Developer Agreement with ROB Real Estate 


Brokerage & Builders LLC re Parker Cole Addition. 


      Finance Committee meets May 10, 2022– TIME SENSTIVE ITEM 


17. R-109-2022 Revision to Authorized Signatures for the City of Stoughton with Local Depositories. 







      Finance Committee meets May 10, 2022– TIME SENSTIVE ITEM 


18. R-110-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper City Official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B” Beer and 


“Class B” Wine Retailers License and Special Event License to the Taste of Stoughton. (Public Safety recommends 


approval 4-0 on April 26, 2022)  


 


19. Approval of conflict waiver letter 


 


ADJOURNMENT 


 
Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. 


For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677. 


By: Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch 


 
NOTE:  AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL. 


Dial by your location 


        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 


        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 


        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 


        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 


        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 


        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 


Meeting ID: 990 6335 9231 


Passcode: 343806 


Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/acAZy4c0wQ 


 


 


 


 



https://zoom.us/u/acAZy4c0wQ






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit regarding Developer Agreement with R.O. B.  Real 
Estate Brokerage & Builders, LLC re Parker Cole Addition 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
 


 
Fiscal Impact:   $801,590 
 
File Number: 


 
R-108-2022 


 
Date 5/10/2022   
044/26/24/02020


 


 


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the Common Council approved the pre-annexation agreement with R.O.B. 
Real Estate Brokerage & Builders, LLC for the Parker Cole Addition under Resolution R-97-2022 
on April 26, 2022; and, 


 WHEREAS, the pre-annexation agreement indicates the developer shall be solely 
responsible for the cost of constructing any and all public improvements needed to serve the 
development territory, including the cost of extending any off-site improvements to the territory; 
and 


 WHEREAS, the City’s Planning and Development Department has indicated that a 
Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit in the amount of $801,590 should be provided to the City of 
Stoughton; and, 


 WHEREAS, the attached Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit, Exhibit A, and Exhibit B 
have all been reviewed as to form by the City Attorney; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton’s standard practice is that developer’s agreements 
requires that the Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit shall be issued by an entity that is acceptable 
to the City or has a rating of its long-term unsecured debt not lower than A1 by Moody’s Investors 
Service or A+ by Standard and Poor’s; and, 


 WHEREAS, One Community Bank does not currently have a relationship with either 
rating agency because the bank is privately held and has not issued any public debt instruments; 
and, 


 WHEREAS, One Community Bank has provided information to both the City of 
Stoughton Finance Committee and City of Stoughton Common Council sufficient to deem that 
One Community Bank’s Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit is acceptable to the City; 


  







NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council finds the 
Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit from One Community Bank in the attached format approved 
by the City Attorney is hereby accepted by the City of Stoughton Common Council. 


 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







 


1 
T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2022\05-10-2022\DRAFT ROB Letter of Credit.docx 
0505220852 
 


IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT 
(Construction and Guarantee of Public Improvements) 


 
 


One Community Bank 
2401 Jackson Street 


Stoughton, Wisconsin 53589 
(608) 873-2010 


 
BENEFICIARY   LETTER OF CREDIT NO.      DATE   
 
The City of Stoughton, 
a Wisconsin municipal corporation  _______   May 12th, 2022 
 
 This Letter of Credit is issued to secure certain obligations of ROB Real Estate Brokerage 
& Builders, LLC under the Agreement to Undertake Development (Isham St Development) 
entered into as of the 12th day of May, 2022 (the “Development Agreement”).  We hereby 
authorize you to draw on us for the account of ROB Real Estate Brokerage & Builders, LLC up 
to an aggregate amount of Eight Hundred One Thousand Five Hundred Ninety Dollars and 
00/100 ($801,590.00) available by your drafts at sight to be accompanied by: 
 


1. Your draft in the form attached as Exhibit A. 
 


2. This original Letter of Credit.   
 
 2. An affidavit in the form attached as Exhibit B. 
 
 This Letter of Credit and each extended, renewed or replacement letter of credit shall be 
automatically extended without amendment for a period of one year from its expiration date, 
unless at least 45 days before such expiration date we notify the City in writing at 207 S. Forrest 
Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 53589, Attn:  Finance Director, that the Letter of Credit will not be 
extended for an additional one-year period, or that the Letter of Credit will be renewed or 
replaced by a letter of credit in an amount that is less than the amount required by Development 
Agreement, which amount shall be specified in a written notice to One Community Bank at 2401 
Jackson Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, Attn: Loan Servicing Department , at least ninety 
(90) days prior to the then expiration date of the Letter of Credit.   
 
SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS:   
 
 Partial drawings are  permitted.    
 
 All drafts must be marked "Drawn Under Letter of Credit of One Community Bank, No. 
____ Dated May 12, 2022." 
 
 Insofar as applicable, this Letter of Credit is subject to the International Standby Practices 
(1998), International Chamber of Commerce Publication #590.  This Letter of Credit shall be 
construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin, including 
insofar as applicable the Uniform Commercial Code as in effect in the State of Wisconsin. 
 







 


2 
T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2022\05-10-2022\DRAFT ROB Letter of Credit.docx 
0505220852 
 


 
 We agree with you to pay draft(s) drawn under and in compliance with the terms of this 
Letter of Credit if presented at this office together with this Letter of Credit on or before the 
close of our business on May 12, 2022.   
 
Dated:  May 12th 2022.   One Community Bank 
 
 
      By: ______________________________________ 
       Steve Peotter, President and CEO 


 
 
 


  







 


3 
T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2022\05-10-2022\DRAFT ROB Letter of Credit.docx 
0505220852 
 


 
EXHIBIT A 


 
 


 
Form of Sight Draft 


 
 
 
 
Drawn under One Community Bank Letter of Credit No. __________________ 
 
Date:  ___________________, 20___.  
 
$________________ 
 
 
 
Pay to the order of the CITY OF STOUGHTON, a Wisconsin municipal corporation 
 
______________________________________________________________ Dollars 
 
 
 
To: One Community Bank 
 
 
By: __________________________ 
 
_______________________________  
(Name/Title) 
 


  







 


4 
T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2022\05-10-2022\DRAFT ROB Letter of Credit.docx 
0505220852 
 


 
EXHIBIT B 


 
[City of Stoughton Letterhead] 


 
 
 


AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF LETTER OF CREDIT NO. _______ 
(Construction and Guarantee of Public Improvements) 


 
 


 _______________________, _______________ of the City of Stoughton, after being 
duly sworn certifies that the following are true and correct:   
 
 1. I am authorized by the City of Stoughton to sign and deliver this Affidavit to One 
Community Bank pursuant to the Agreement to Undertake Development (51 West Development) 
entered into as of the ______ day of __________, 2022 (the “Development Agreement”).  
 
 2. The City is due $__________ from RHD Properties, LLC ("Developer"), because 
Developer has failed to perform its obligations set forth in the Development Agreement.  
Accordingly, the City of Stoughton draws on this Letter of Credit No. ____________ in the 
amount of $_____________. 
 


OR 
 
 2. The City has received notice from One Community Bank that Letter of Credit No. 
__________ will not be extended for an additional term of one (1) year or that Letter of Credit 
No. _________ will be renewed or replaced by a letter of credit in an amount less than the 
amount required by the Development Agreement.  Accordingly, the City draws on Letter of 
Credit No. ___________ in the amount of $__________, which amount does not exceed the 
Letter of Credit amount required by the Development Agreement. 
 
 3. The City acknowledges that proceeds drawn from Letter of Credit No. 
_______________ must be used to construct public improvements described in the Development 
Agreement. 
 
 4. This Affidavit is made and delivered to One Community Bank on ____________. 
 
 


[Signature on following page] 
 
 
 


  







 


5 
T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2022\05-10-2022\DRAFT ROB Letter of Credit.docx 
0505220852 
 


  
 


Under penalties of perjury I declare this Affidavit is true, correct and complete.   
 
      City of Stoughton 
 
 
      By: ____________________________________ 
      Title: __________________________________ 
 
 


ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 


STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    )ss. 
COUNTY OF DANE             ) 


 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ____________, 20___, by 
______________, as the ______________ of City of Stoughton, a Wisconsin municipal 
corporation.   


      _________________________________________ 
      (Print name) ______________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
      My Commission (Expires) (Is) ________________ 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F:\DOCS\WD\20130\149\A2225709.DOCX 





		16 R-108-2022 - Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit Regarding Developer Agreement with ROB Real Estate Brokerage & Builders LLC re Parker Cole Addition

		16a Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit Regarding Developer Agreement with ROB Real Estate Brokerage & Builders LLC re Parker Cole Addition

		DRAFT ROB Letter of Credit.pdf





